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The Bonds The City of Philadelphia (the “City”) is issuing the Gas Works Revenue Refunding Bonds, Thirteenth Series (the “Bonds”).
The Bonds will be issued in denominations of $5,000 and integral multiples thereof.
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obligation of the City. The Bonds do not constitute debt of the City
within the meaning of the Constitution of the Commonwealth of

Pennsylvania.
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Dasent, P.C., Co-Bond Counsel, both of Philadelphia, Pennsylvania. Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the Underwriters by Ballard Spahr
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will be passed upon for the City by the City of Philadelphia Law Department. Certain legal matters will be passed upon for Philadelphia Gas Works
by the Office of General Counsel of the Philadelphia Gas Works and by Eckert Seamans Cherin & Mellott, LLC of Harrisburg, Pennsylvania. Hawkins
Delafield & Wood LLP, as Disclosure Counsel to the City, will deliver an opinion to the City and the Underwriters regarding certain matters.
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J.P. Morgan Loop Capital Markets The Williams Capital Group, L.P.

Dated:

* Preliminary, subject to change.
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Due
(August 1) Amount Rate Yield Price CUSIP No."”

2016 $16,730,000 % % $
2017 18,505,000
2018 17,715,000
2019 16,900,000
2020 16,040,000
2021 19,965,000
2022 19,480,000
2023 19,665,000
2024 19,090,000
2025 13,030,000
2026 13,295,000
2027 10,185,000
2028 10,695,000
2029 11,230,000
2030 11,795,000
2031 12,380,000
2032 12,995,000
2033 5,250,000
2034 5,515,000

Preliminary, subject to change.

CUSIP is a registered trademark of American Bankers Association (the “ABA”). CUSIP data is provided by CUSIP
Global Services, which is managed on behalf of the ABA by S&P Capital IQ, a division of McGraw-Hill Financial,
Inc. The CUSIP numbers listed above are being provided solely for the convenience of Bondholders of the Bonds only
at the time of original issuance of the Bonds and the City, the Philadelphia Gas Works (“PGW”) and the Underwriters
do not make any representation with respect to such CUSIP numbers or undertake any responsibility for their accuracy
now or at any time in the future. The CUSIP number for a specific maturity is subject to being changed after the
issuance of such Bonds as a result of various subsequent actions including, but not limited to, a refunding in whole or
in part of such maturity or as a result of the procurement of secondary market portfolio insurance or other similar
enhancement by investors that is applicable to all or a portion of such maturity of the Bonds.
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No dealer, broker, salesperson or other person has been authorized by the City, the Philadelphia
Gas Works (“PGW?”) or the Underwriters to give any information or to make representations, other
than as contained in this Official Statement, and if given or made, such other information or
representations must not be relied upon as having been authorized by the City, PGW or the
Underwriters. This Official Statement does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to
buy, nor shall there be any sale of the Bonds by any person, in any jurisdiction in which it is unlawful
for such person to make such offer, solicitation or sale.

The information set forth herein has been furnished by the City and PGW and includes
information obtained from other sources, all of which are believed to be reliable. The information and
expressions of opinion herein are subject to change without notice and neither the delivery of this
Official Statement nor any of the Bonds shall, under any circumstances, create any implication that
there has been no change in the affairs of PGW or the City since the date hereof. Such information and
expressions of opinion are made for the purpose of providing information to prospective investors and
are not to be used for any other purpose or relied on by any other party.

The order and placement of materials in this Official Statement, including the Appendices, are
not to be deemed a determination of relevance, materiality or importance, and this Official Statement,
including the cover page, the inside cover page and the Appendices, must be considered in its entirety.
The captions and headings in this Official Statement are for convenience only and in no way define, limit
or describe the scope or intent, or affect the meaning or construction, of any provisions or sections of
this Official Statement. The offering of the Bonds is made only by means of this entire Official
Statement.

The statements contained in this Official Statement, including in the Appendices, and in any
other information provided by PGW and the City and other parties to the transactions described herein
that are not purely historical are forward-looking statements. Such forward-looking statements can be
identified, in some cases, by terminology such as “may,” “will,” “should,” “expects,” “intends,” ‘“plans,”
“anticipates,” ‘“believes,” “estimates,” ‘“predicts,” “potential,” “illustrate,” “example,” and ‘“‘continue,”
or the singular, plural, negative or other derivations of these or other comparable terms. Readers
should not place undue reliance on forward-looking statements. All forward-looking statements
included in this Official Statement are based on information available to such parties on the date hereof,
and neither PGW nor the City assumes any obligation to update any such forward-looking statements.
The forward-looking statements included herein are necessarily based on various assumptions and
estimates and are inherently subject to various risks and uncertainties, including, but not limited to,
risks and uncertainties relating to the possible invalidity of the underlying assumptions and estimates
and possible changes or developments in various important factors. Accordingly, actual results may
vary from the projections, forecasts and estimates contained in this Official Statement and such
variations may be material, which could affect the ability of the City to fulfill some or all of the
obligations under the Bonds.

The Underwriters have reviewed the information in this Official Statement in accordance with,
and as part of, their responsibilities to investors under the federal securities laws as applied to the facts
and circumstances of this transaction, but the Underwriters do not guarantee the accuracy or
completeness of such information.

In connection with the offering of the Bonds, the Underwriters may overallot or effect
transactions which stabilize or maintain the market price of the Bonds at levels above those which might
otherwise prevail in the open market. Such stabilization, if commenced, may be discontinued at any
time.

These securities have not been recommended by any federal or state securities commission or
regulatory authority. Furthermore, the foregoing authorities have not confirmed the accuracy or
determined the adequacy of this document. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

This Official Statement is being provided to prospective purchasers either in bound printed form
(“original bound format”) or in electronic format on the following website: www.munios.com. This Official
Statement may be relied upon only if it is in its original bound format or if it is printed in full directly from
such website.
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OFFICIAL STATEMENT

$270,460,000
CITY OF PHILADELPHIA, PENNSYLVANIA
GAS WORKS REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS
THIRTEENTH SERIES
(1998 GENERAL ORDINANCE)

INTRODUCTION

This introduction is intended to provide a plain language overview of matters that are described in
more detail in this Official Statement, and as such is qualified by reference to the entire Official Statement.
The Official Statement includes the cover page, the inside cover page, the pages prior to and including the
Table of Contents, this introduction, and all appendices to the Official Statement.

General

The City of Philadelphia, Pennsylvania (the “City”) is issuing the City of Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
Gas Works Revenue Refunding Bonds, Thirteenth Series (1998 General Ordinance) (the “Bonds”). This
Official Statement describes the Bonds, the purposes for which they are being issued, the security and sources
of payment of the Bonds, and other related matters.

Purpose; Use of Proceeds

The proceeds of the Bonds, together with other available moneys, will be used to (i) redeem, refund or
defease all bonds currently outstanding under the General Gas Works Revenue Bond Ordinance of 1975, at
which time the pledge and security interest granted by the 1975 General Ordinance will be terminated, (ii)
redeem, refund or defease all or a portion of certain series of bonds currently outstanding under the General
Gas Works Revenue Bond Ordinance of 1998, (iii) make a deposit to the Sinking Fund Reserve established
under the 1998 General Ordinance, and (iv) pay the costs of issuing the Bonds. The refunding will result in
debt service savings to the City. “PLAN OF FINANCE AND ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS.”

The Bonds

The Bonds will be issued in the aggregate principal amount, the principal amounts per maturity, and at
the interest rates, yields and prices shown on the inside cover page. Interest on the Bonds will be payable on
each February 1 and August 1, commencing February 1, 2016.

The Bonds are being issued pursuant to: (i) the First Class City Revenue Bond Act of the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania (the “Act”); (ii) the General Gas Works Revenue Bond Ordinance of 1998, as
amended and supplemented (the “1998 General Ordinance”); (iii) the Thirteenth Supplemental Ordinance to
the General Gas Works Revenue Bond Ordinance of 1998 (the “Thirteenth Supplemental Ordinance”); and
(iv) the Bond Authorization for the Bonds adopted by the Bond Committee of the City (consisting of the
Mayor, the City Controller and the City Solicitor and acting by a majority thereof) (the “Bond Committee™)
(the “Thirteenth Series Bond Authorization™).

The Bonds will be issued in book-entry form with no physical distribution of the Bonds being made to
the public. The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”) will act as securities depository for the Bonds. U.S.
Bank National Association has been appointed as Fiscal Agent under the 1998 General Ordinance, and as such
will also act as paying agent, registrar, and Sinking Fund Depositary of the Sinking Fund (as defined below).

* Preliminary, subject to change.



Security and Sources of Payment

The Bonds will be issued as senior bonds under the 1998 General Ordinance (“Senior 1998 Ordinance
Bonds”), and will be secured by a pledge of, lien on, and security interest in all Gas Works Revenues and the
Sinking Fund Reserve. Gas Works Revenues are defined in the 1998 General Ordinance to include all
operating and non-operating revenues of the Philadelphia Gas Works (“PGW” or the “Gas Works”) derived
from its activities and assets involved in the supply, manufacture, storage and distribution of gas. See
“SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE 1998 ORDINANCE BONDS” and APPENDIX E — “SUMMARY
OF THE 1998 GENERAL ORDINANCE.”

The Bonds will be secured on a parity with all other Senior 1998 Ordinance Bonds as described below
under the caption “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE 1998 ORDINANCE BONDS.” The City is
authorized to issue additional 1998 Ordinance Bonds, which may be either on a parity with or subordinate to
the Senior 1998 Ordinance Bonds, subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions described below under the
caption “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE 1998 ORDINANCE BONDS — Authorized Additional
1998 Ordinance Bonds” and APPENDIX E — “SUMMARY OF THE 1998 GENERAL ORDINANCE.”

Rate Covenant

The City has covenanted in the 1998 General Ordinance that, for so long as the 1998 Ordinance Bonds
are outstanding, the City will, at a minimum, impose, charge and collect in each Fiscal Year of PGW such gas
rates and charges as shall, together with all other Gas Works Revenues to be received in such Fiscal Year,
equal not less than an amount needed to pay, among other costs, the sum of (i) certain operating expenses of
PGW (costs and expenses necessary and appropriate to operate and maintain the Gas Works in good operable
condition), and (ii) 150% of debt service on Senior 1998 Ordinance Bonds. See “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF
PAYMENT FOR THE 1998 ORDINANCE BONDS — Rate Covenant and Rate Requirements” and APPENDIX E —
“SUMMARY OF THE 1998 GENERAL ORDINANCE.”

Sinking Fund; Sinking Fund Reserve

The Act requires that a bond ordinance authorizing the issuance of bonds must provide for “the
establishment and maintenance of a sinking fund.” The 1998 General Ordinance establishes a Sinking Fund,
which operates as a debt service payment fund. The Sinking Fund is held in the name of the City separate and
apart from all other accounts of the City, and the City deposits in the Sinking Fund from Gas Works Revenues
the amounts needed to pay when due debt service on Senior 1998 Ordinance Bonds. See the third paragraph
under “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE 1998 ORDINANCE BONDS — Gas Works Revenues —
Order of Application of Gas Works Revenues” and APPENDIX E — “SUMMARY OF THE 1998 GENERAL
ORDINANCE.”

The 1998 General Ordinance also establishes a Sinking Fund Reserve as part of the Sinking Fund.
The City is required to deposit in the Sinking Fund Reserve an amount sufficient to cause the amount therein
to be equal to the Sinking Fund Reserve Requirement. Such deposits can be made from either the proceeds of
each series of bonds secured by the Sinking Fund Reserve, available Gas Works Revenues or some
combination of both. The Sinking Fund Reserve Requirement is equal to the greatest amount of debt service
requirements on bonds secured by the Sinking Fund Reserve in any Fiscal Year. The Sinking Fund Reserve
Requirement may be met by the use of letters of credit or other credit facilities. The Bonds and the other
Senior 1998 Ordinance Bonds currently outstanding are secured by the Sinking Fund Reserve. See “SECURITY
AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE 1998 ORDINANCE BONDS — Sinking Fund Reserve” and APPENDIX E —
“SUMMARY OF THE 1998 GENERAL ORDINANCE.”



Special Obligations

The Bonds are special obligations of the City payable solely from the sources described herein and
neither the taxing power nor the general revenues of the City is pledged for the payment of the principal of,
premium, if any, or interest on the Bonds, nor are the Bonds a general obligation of the City. The Bonds do
not constitute debt of the City within the meaning of the Constitution of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
(the “Commonwealth”).

Philadelphia Gas Works

The information under this caption is derived, in principal part, from the Independent Consultant’s
Engineering Report, dated July 2, 2015, prepared by Black & Veatch Corporation (“Black & Veatch”), an
independent engineer retained by the City to evaluate PGW (the “INDEPENDENT CONSULTANT’S
ENGINEERING REPORT”), which is attached hereto as APPENDIX B, and to which the reader is referred
for a more detailed presentation.

PGW is owned by the City and is accounted for in the City’s audited financial statements as a
component unit of the City. PGW prepares a CAFR that includes annual financial statements audited by an
independent auditor and an unaudited statistical section.

PGW is the largest municipally-owned gas utility in the nation, and is responsible for the acquisition
and storage of natural gas and is the sole distributer of natural gas within the limits of the City. Such limits
also define the service area of PGW.

PGW is principally a gas distribution utility, with a distribution system of approximately 3,024 miles
of gas mains and 475,800 service lines. In addition, PGW operates facilities for the liquefaction, storage, and
vaporization of natural gas to supplement gas supply taken directly from interstate pipeline and storage
companies. The principal PGW natural gas supply facilities include nine City gate stations, owned in large
part by the interstate pipeline companies serving PGW (Spectra Energy (“Spectra”) and Transcontinental Gas
Pipe Line Corporation (“Transco-Williams™)), and two liquefied natural gas (“LNG”) plants owned by the City
and operated by PGW.

PGW?’s operations are managed by the Philadelphia Facilities Management Corporation (“PFMC”), a
Pennsylvania not-for-profit corporation whose Board is appointed by the Mayor. PFMC’s responsibilities are
set forth in a Management Agreement between the City and PEMC dated December 29, 1972, as subsequently
amended (“Management Agreement”), which delegates responsibility for PGW’s operation to an executive
management team provided by PFMC. Under the Management Agreement, those responsibilities that are not
specifically granted to PFMC are the responsibilities of the Philadelphia Gas Commission (“PGC” or the “Gas
Commission”), except to the extent preempted by the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission (the “PUC”)
pursuant to the Pennsylvania Natural Gas Choice and Competition Act (“Gas Choice Act”). The Gas Choice
Act makes PGW subject to regulation by the PUC effective July 1, 2000, and provides that choice among
natural gas suppliers will be provided to PGW’s customers.



The following summary chart describes the management and governance of PGW:

Organization Function

City * Owns PGW property
* City administration reviews certain transactions and processes
(chiefly through the Director of Finance)

* City Council enacts legislation for the functioning of PGW (e.g., the
capital budget, real estate transactions, pension modifications and
gas supply contracts)

PGC * Consists of the City Controller, two members appointed by the City
and two members appointed by the Mayor

* Responsibilities include:
* approval of certain executive personnel provided by PEMC
* review of gas supply contracts for approval by City Council
* approval of PGW’s operating budget
* review of PGW’s capital budgets for approval by City Council

* review of real estate transactions for approval by City Council

PFMC * Incorporated by the City in 1972 for the specific purpose of operating
PGW

* Is governed by a seven member board of directors
* Provides executive management for PGW

* Directs operation of PGW facilities and operations

PGW * Manages construction, operation and maintenance of the gas system on
a day-to-day basis

* PGW executive management is responsible for hiring PGW staff

PUC * Regulates rates, customer services and safety

Independent Consultant’s Engineering Report

Black & Veatch, an independent engineer retained by the City to evaluate PGW, provided a report that
made certain findings relating to the adequacy of Gas Works Revenues to pay debt service on all bonds and
notes for which Gas Works Revenues are pledged. That report is the “Independent Consultant’s Engineering
Report,” a copy of which is attached hereto as APPENDIX B — “INDEPENDENT CONSULTANT’S
ENGINEERING REPORT.” Also see “INDEPENDENT CONSULTANT’S ENGINEERING REPORT” below.

Certain Terminology
As used in this Official Statement, the terms “gas” and “natural gas” are interchangeable.

The Fiscal Year of PGW begins on September 1 and ends on August 31 of the following calendar
year. For example, “Fiscal Year 2015” when used in connection with PGW refers to the Fiscal Year ending
August 31, 2015. The City’s Fiscal Year begins on July 1 and ends on June 30 of the following calendar year.
For example, “Fiscal Year 2015” or “FY2015” when used in connection with the City refers to the fiscal year
ending June 30, 2015.



When referred to individually, each Series of City of Philadelphia, Pennsylvania Gas Works Revenue
Bonds (1998 General Ordinance) is referred to by its numerical designation, followed by the words “Series
Bonds.”

PLAN OF FINANCE AND ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS"
Plan of Finance

The proceeds of the Bonds, together with amounts to be released from the sinking fund reserve
established under the General Gas Works Revenue Bond Ordinance of 1975, as amended and supplemented
(the “1975 General Ordinance”) and other available moneys, are to be used to (i) redeem, refund or defease all
of the outstanding City of Philadelphia, Pennsylvania Gas Works Revenue Bonds (1975 General Ordinance)
(the “1975 Ordinance Bonds”); (ii) redeem all of the Outstanding Fourth Series Bonds and Fifth Series A-1
Bonds and defease a portion of the Outstanding Seventh Series Bonds (the “1998 Refunded Bonds™); (iii)
make a deposit to the Sinking Fund Reserve; and (iv) pay the costs of issuing the Bonds.

The City will redeem, refund or defease all outstanding 1975 Ordinance Bonds simultaneously with
the issuance of the Bonds. Immediately after their redemption, refunding or defeasance, no 1975 Ordinance
Bonds will be outstanding and the pledge and security interest granted by the 1975 General Ordinance will be
terminated, and the City will no longer have the authority to issue any bonds under the 1975 General
Ordinance. When such pledge and security interest are terminated, the interest of the 1975 Ordinance Bonds in
Gas Works Revenues will terminate and the 1998 Ordinance Bonds will have the priority interest in Gas
Works Revenues described in “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE 1998 ORDINANCE BONDS” and
APPENDIX E - “SUMMARY OF THE 1998 GENERAL ORDINANCE - Closure of the 1975 General
Ordinance.”

The refunding will result in debt service savings to the City.

Estimated Sources and Uses of Funds

The sources and uses of funds are estimated to be as follows:

Estimated Sources:

Principal Amount of the Bonds $
Net Original Issue Premium/Discount
Amounts in the 1975 General Ordinance Sinking Fund Reserve
Other Available Moneys
Total r $

Estimated Uses:
Redemption, Refunding or Defeasance of 1975 Ordinance Bonds
Redemption or Defeasance of 1998 Refunded Bonds $

Deposit to the 1998 General Ordinance Sinking Fund Reserve
(1)

&

Costs of Issuance

Total Uses $

@ Includes the fees and expenses of various counsel and the Fiscal Agent, consultant’s fees, fees of
accountants, fees of financial advisors, rating agency fees, printing and publication costs, contingency,
underwriters’ discount, and other expenses related to the issuance of the Bonds.

* Preliminary, subject to change.



DESCRIPTION OF THE BONDS
General

The Bonds will be available in the denominations of $5,000 and integral multiples thereof and will
mature on the dates and in the principal amounts, and will bear interest from their date of delivery at the
interest rates, all as set forth on the inside cover page of this Official Statement. Interest on the Bonds is
payable on February 1 and August 1, commencing February 1, 2016, and is calculated on the basis of a 360-
day year of twelve 30-day months.

The Bonds are available only in book-entry form as fully-registered bonds without coupons. When
issued, the Bonds will be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee for DTC, to which payments of
principal and interest will be made. Purchasers of the Bonds will not receive physical delivery of bond
certificates representing their ownership interests during the period during which a nominee of DTC is owner
of the Bonds. So long as DTC or its nominee is the registered owner of the Bonds, principal of and interest on
the Bonds are payable directly to such nominee for redistribution to Participants and in turn to Beneficial
Owners as described herein. For so long as any purchaser is the Beneficial Owner of Bonds, such purchaser
must maintain an account with a broker or dealer who is, or acts through, a Participant to receive payment of
the principal of and interest on such Bonds. See APPENDIX G — “BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM” herein.

Optional Redemption of Certain of the Bonds at Par’

The Bonds maturing on or after __,___ are subject to optional redemption, at the direction of
the City, in whole or in part at any time on or after __.___,and in any order of maturity as may be
designated by the City, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the Bonds so redeemed,
plus accrued interest to the redemption date.

Optional Redemption of the Bonds at Make-Whole Redemption Price’

The Bonds are subject to optional redemption, at the direction of the City, in whole or in part, on any
date at the Make-Whole Redemption Price (defined below). The Make-Whole Redemption Price of the Bonds
will be determined by an independent accounting firm or registered municipal advisor selected by the City to
calculate such Make-Whole Redemption Price.

The following capitalized terms, when used under this subheading, shall have the respective meanings
set forth below:

“Make-Whole Redemption Price” means an amount equal to the greater of (a) one hundred percent
(100%) of the Amortized Value of the Bonds to be redeemed, plus accrued and unpaid interest to the date of
redemption; or (b) the sum of the present values of the remaining unpaid payments of principal and interest to
be paid on such Bonds to be redeemed from and including the date of redemption to the stated maturity dates
of the Bonds to be redeemed or as to Bonds subject to optional redemption, the optional redemption date at
which the Bonds subject to optional redemption, are to be redeemed at par, on a semiannual basis at a discount
rate equal to the Applicable Tax-Exempt Municipal Bond Rate plus ___ %.

“Amortized Value” means the principal amount of the Bonds to be redeemed multiplied by the price
of such Bonds expressed as a percentage, calculated based on the industry standard method of calculating bond
prices, with a delivery date equal to the date of redemption, a maturity date equal to the stated maturity dates of
such Bonds, or as to Bonds subject to optional redemption, the date on which such Bonds subject to optional
redemption are to be redeemed at par, and a yield equal to such Bonds’ original yields as set forth on the inside
front cover page of this Official Statement.

* Preliminary, subject to change.



“Applicable Tax-Exempt Municipal Bond Rate” means, the “Comparable AAA General Obligations”
yield curve rate for the stated maturity dates of such Bonds to be redeemed as published by Municipal Market
Data (“MMD?”) five business days prior to the date of redemption. If no such yield curve rate is established for
the stated maturity dates, the “Comparable AAA General Obligations” yield curve rate for the two published
maturities most corresponding to the applicable stated maturity date will be determined, and the “Applicable
Tax-Exempt Municipal Bond Rate” will be interpolated or extrapolated from those yield curve rates on a
straight-line basis. This rate is made available daily by Municipal Market Data and is available to its
subscribers through its internet address: www.tm3.com.

In calculating the Applicable Tax-Exempt Municipal Bond Rate, should MMD no longer publish the
“Comparable AAA General Obligations” yield curve rate, then the Applicable Tax-Exempt Municipal Bond
Rate will equal the Consensus Scale yield curve rate for the applicable year. The Consensus Scale yield curve
rate is made available daily by Municipal Market Advisors and is available to its subscribers through its
internet address: www.mma-research.com.

In the further event Municipal Market Advisors no longer publishes the Consensus Scale, the
Applicable Tax-Exempt Municipal Bond Rate will be determined by Wells Fargo Securities, or such other
municipal market maker selected by the City as the quotation agent, based upon the rate per annum equal to
the semiannual equivalent yield to maturity of those tax-exempt general obligation bonds if rated in the highest
rating category by Moody’s Investors Service and Standard & Poor’s Financial Services LL.C, with maturity
dates equal to the stated maturity dates of the Bonds subject to optional redemption, having characteristics
(other than the ratings) most comparable to the Bonds subject to optional redemption, in the reasonable
judgment of the quotation agent. The quotation agent’s determination of the Applicable Tax-Exempt
Municipal Bond Rate is final and binding in the absence of manifest error.

Selection of Bonds to be Called for Redemption

During the period when all of the Bonds are registered in the name of a nominee of DTC, if less than
all of the Bonds of a maturity are being redeemed, DTC’s practice is to determine by lot the amount of the
interest of each Participant in such maturity to be redeemed. (“Participants” is defined in APPENDIX G —
“BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM”). If the Bonds are not in book-entry form, then, if less than all of the
Bonds are to be redeemed, the particular Bonds to be called for redemption will be selected by lot or by such
other method as the Fiscal Agent deems fair and appropriate.

Notice of Redemption of Bonds

Notice of redemption of Bonds shall be made not less than thirty (30) days nor more than (60) days
before the date fixed for redemption to the applicable Registered Owners appearing on the Bond Register of
the Bonds to be redeemed. During the period when all of the Bonds are registered in the name of a nominee of
DTC the Fiscal Agent will send all redemption notices to such nominee, and DTC will be responsible for
notifying Participants, and Participants and Indirect Participants are responsible for notifying Beneficial
Owners. Neither the Fiscal Agent, the City nor PGW is responsible for sending notices to Beneficial Owners
or for the consequences of any action or inaction by the City or PGW as a result of the response or failure to
respond by DTC or its nominee as Bondowner. (“Indirect Participants” and “Beneficial Owners” are defined
in APPENDIX G - “BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM.”)

If the Bonds are not in book-entry from, notice of any redemption will be mailed, first class postage
prepaid, addressed to the registered owners of the Bonds called for redemption at the addresses appearing in
the registration books kept by the bond registrar. Not more than sixty days following the applicable
redemption date, a further notice will be mailed as described above to the Bondholders of any Bonds called for
redemption and not then presented for payment.



Any notice of redemption provided in accordance with the provisions described above shall be
conclusively presumed to have been duly given, whether or not such notice is actually received by the
Bondholders. No defect in the notice with respect to any Bond (whether in the form of notice or the providing
thereof) shall affect the validity of the redemption proceedings for any other Bonds. A notice with respect to
an optional redemption of the Bonds may state that it is conditioned upon the deposit of moneys with the
Fiscal Agent on or before the date fixed for redemption and in such event, such notice shall be of no effect
unless such moneys are deposited.

SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE 1998 ORDINANCE BONDS'
Pledge of Revenues and Funds

The Bonds and each series of bonds or notes previously issued or to be issued under the 1998 General
Ordinance (whether senior or subordinate) (collectively, “1998 Ordinance Bonds”) are special obligations of
the City secured by and payable by the City solely from (i) the Gas Works Revenues, and (ii) unless otherwise
set forth in the Supplemental Ordinance authorizing such 1998 Ordinance Bonds, the Sinking Fund Reserve.
The Bonds and all Outstanding Senior 1998 Ordinance Bonds are secured by the Sinking Fund Reserve. See
“— Gas Works Revenues” and “— Sinking Fund Reserve” below.

The Bonds are special obligations of the City payable solely from the sources described herein and
neither the taxing power nor the general revenues of the City are pledged for the payment of the principal
of, premium, if any, or interest on the Bonds, nor are the Bonds a general obligation of the City. The Bonds
do not constitute debt of the City within the meaning of the Constitution of the Commonwealth.

Outstanding 1998 Ordinance Bonds

Bonds and notes issued under the 1998 General Ordinance may be issued as Senior 1998 Ordinance
Bonds or as Subordinate 1998 Ordinance Bonds (“Subordinate 1998 Ordinance Bonds™). As of July 1, 2015,
the City has issued twelve Series of 1998 Ordinance Bonds in an aggregate principal amount of
$1,847,080,000, of which $859,120,000 were Outstanding as of July 1, 2015. All of the 1998 Ordinance
Bonds Outstanding as of such date were Senior 1998 Ordinance Bonds. Though there were no Subordinate
1998 Ordinance Bonds outstanding as of July 1, 2015, the City is authorized to issue, in a principal amount not
to exceed $120,000,000 Outstanding at any time, Subordinate 1998 Ordinance Bonds in the form of CP
Capital Project Notes (as defined below). As of the date of this Official Statement, there are no Outstanding
draws of CP Capital Project Notes. See “— Authorized Additional 1998 Ordinance Bonds” and
“COMMERCIAL PAPER PROGRAMS — CP Capital Project Notes” below.

Senior 1998 Ordinance Bonds

All Senior 1998 Ordinance Bonds (including the Bonds) are secured on a parity with all other Senior
1998 Ordinance Bonds and the obligations of the City to make, from Gas Works Revenues, payments (other
than termination payments) due under any Qualified Swaps and Exchange Agreements related to Senior 1998
Ordinance Bonds. In accordance with the 1998 General Ordinance, Net Operating Expenses then payable are
paid from Gas Works Revenues before debt service on Senior 1998 Ordinance Bonds and the other City
obligations payable on a parity with Senior 1998 Ordinance Bonds. The Bonds and all other Senior 1998
Ordinance Bonds are senior in right of payment and security to any Subordinate 1998 Ordinance Bonds. See
“— Gas Works Revenues — Order of Application of Gas Works Revenues” below.

" The information set forth under this heading describes the security and sources of payment for the 1998 Ordinance
Bonds when no 1975 Ordinance Bonds are outstanding, which will occur concurrently with the issuance of the
Bonds. See “PLAN OF FINANCE AND ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS” above.
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Subordinate 1998 Ordinance Bonds

All Subordinate 1998 Ordinance Bonds are subject to the prior right of payment and security of the
Senior 1998 Ordinance Bonds (including the Bonds), the other obligations of the City on a parity with Series
1998 Ordinance Bonds and payments to issuers of Credit Facilities related to Senior 1998 Ordinance Bonds.
See “— Senior 1998 Ordinance Bonds” above and “— Gas Works Revenues — Order of Application of Gas
Works Revenues” below. Any Subordinate 1998 Ordinance Bonds would be secured on a parity with all other
Subordinate 1998 Ordinance Bonds and certain other obligations of the City. See APPENDIX E —
“SUMMARY OF THE 1998 GENERAL ORDINANCE - Order of Application of Gas Works Revenues.”

Gas Works Revenues

General
The 1998 General Ordinance defines Gas Works Revenues as:

all operating and nonoperating revenues of the Gas Works derived from its
activities and assets involved in the supply, manufacture, storage and
distribution of gas, including all rents, rates and charges imposed or charged
by the City upon the owners or occupants of properties connected to, and
upon all users of, gas distributed by the Gas Works and all other revenues
derived therefrom and all other income derived by the City from the Gas
Works.

Revenues derived from activities unrelated to the supply, manufacture, storage and distribution of gas
or assets related thereto are not included in Gas Works Revenues. If PGW receives fair payment for the use of
gas related assets and personnel of PGW used in such unrelated activities, such payments are included in Gas
Works Revenues.

Gas Works Revenues may be divided into separate components in one or more Supplemental
Ordinances and any Series of 1998 Ordinance Bonds issued thereafter may be limited as to source of payment
to one or more of such components as provided in the Supplemental Ordinance authorizing the particular
Series of 1998 Ordinance Bonds. See “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE 1998 ORDINANCE
BONDS — Authorized Additional 1998 Ordinance Bonds.” As of the date of this Official Statement, no
portion of the Gas Works Revenues has been divided as described above and all Gas Works Revenues secure
and provide payment for all 1998 Ordinance Bonds. Only new sources of Gas Works Revenues may be so
divided while the Bonds and all previously issued Series of 1998 Ordinance Bonds remain Outstanding.

Gas Works Revenues do not include any portions of PGW’s rents, rates and charges derived from
non-performing assets, if any, which are securitized and sold pursuant to the 1998 General Ordinance. PGW
currently has no assets designated as “non-performing.” See “PERMITTED SECURITIZATION OF REVENUES
RELATED TO NON-PERFORMING ASSETS” below.

Order of Application of Gas Works Revenues

Gas Works Revenues are not exclusively available for payment of debt service on Senior 1998
Ordinance Bonds and deposits to the Sinking Fund Reserve. Gas Works Revenues are also the source of
payment for PGW’s operating costs, debt service on Subordinate 1998 Ordinance Bonds, payments required
under Credit Facilities and Qualified Swaps and Exchange Agreements, and certain other obligations of the
City related to PGW. For information concerning the City’s existing Qualified Swaps and Exchange
Agreements and Credit Facilities, see “— Qualified Swaps and Exchange Agreements” and “— Credit Facilities
With Respect to 1998 Ordinance Bonds” below. APPENDIX E — “SUMMARY OF THE 1998 GENERAL
ORDINANCE - Order of Application of Gas Works Revenues.”



The 1998 General Ordinance establishes an order of application of Gas Works Revenues as and when
collected in each Fiscal Year as follows: FIRST to Net Operating Expenses then payable; SECOND to debt
service on Senior 1998 Ordinance Bonds and payments (other than termination payments) due to the issuers of
Qualified Swaps and Exchange Agreements related to Senior 1998 Ordinance Bonds, and THEREAFTER to
the other obligations of the City (including, but not limited to, debt service on Subordinate 1998 Ordinance
Bonds and the replenishment of the Sinking Fund Reserve) described and in the order set forth in
APPENDIX E - “SUMMARY OF THE 1998 GENERAL ORDINANCE - Order of Application of Gas
Works Revenues.”

The City transfers Gas Works Revenues available after the payment of Net Operating Expenses then
payable from PGW’s operating funds to the Sinking Fund to make payments due on Senior 1998 Ordinance
Bonds. The 1998 General Ordinance requires such transfers to be made on or before the day that payments on
Senior 1998 Ordinance Bonds are due. The Sinking Fund (including the Sinking Fund Reserve) is held by the
Sinking Fund Depositary in the name of the City in an account or accounts separate and apart from all other
accounts of the City. U.S. Bank National Association, the Fiscal Agent with respect to the 1998 Ordinance
Bonds, also serves as the Sinking Fund Depositary. If the City elects to invest moneys in the Sinking Fund,
such investments may be invested and reinvested on a consolidated basis with investments held in the Sinking
Fund Reserve. See “— Sinking Fund Reserve” and “— Covenant Against Commingling with Other City
Funds” below and APPENDIX E — “SUMMARY OF THE 1998 GENERAL ORDINANCE - Sinking Fund”
and “— Fiscal Agent.”

Any deficiency in the Sinking Fund Reserve shall be replenished with the Gas Works Revenues
available after the payment of Net Operating Expenses then payable, debt service on 1998 Ordinance Bonds
and the other obligations on a parity with 1998 Ordinance Bonds, payments due to Credit Facility Issuers and
any Rebate Amount required to be paid to the United States. See APPENDIX E — “SUMMARY OF THE
1998 GENERAL ORDINANCE - Order of Application of Gas Works Revenues.” The 1998 General
Ordinance provides that any excess moneys (including investment earnings) in the Sinking Fund Reserve, to
the extent not required to be retained in the fund or account to which such moneys related, shall be transferred
to the operating accounts of PGW to be applied as Gas Works Revenues in accordance with the 1998 General
Ordinance.

Net Operating Expenses

Net Operating Expenses are defined in the 1998 General Ordinance as Operating Expenses exclusive
of City Charges.

Operating Expenses are defined in the 1998 General Ordinance as all costs and expenses of the Gas
Works necessary and appropriate to operate and maintain the Gas Works in good operable condition during
each Fiscal Year, and include, without limitation, the manager’s fee, salaries and wages, purchases of service
by contract, costs of materials, supplies and expendable equipment, maintenance costs, costs of any property or
the replacement thereof or for any work or project, related to the Gas Works, which does not have a probable
useful life of at least five years, pension and welfare plan and workmen’s compensation requirements,
provision for claims, refunds and uncollectible receivables and for City Charges, all in accordance with
generally accepted municipal accounting principles consistently applied, but shall exclude depreciation and
interest and sinking fund charges. The 1998 General Ordinance, however, excludes expenses which are
unrelated to the supply, manufacture, storage and distribution of gas or assets related thereto from the
definition of Operating Expenses. Gas Works are defined in the 1998 General Ordinance as all property, real
and personal, owned by the City and used in the acquisition or manufacture, storage and distribution of natural,
liquefied, synthetic or manufactured gas or in the maintenance, management or administration thereof and all
activities ancillary and related thereto, and also means, as the context may require, the business entity managed
by PFMC.
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City Charges

City Charges are defined in the 1998 General Ordinance as the proportionate charges, if any, for
services performed for the Gas Works by all officers, departments, boards or commissions of the City which
are contained in the computation of operating expenses of the Gas Works including, without limitation, the
expenses of the Gas Commission, and also means the base payments to the City contained in the Management
Agreement and all other payments made to the City from Gas Works Revenues.

City Charges are payable from Gas Works Revenues provided, however, that such payments are
subordinate to all other City obligations payable from the Gas Works Revenues. See APPENDIX E —
“SUMMARY OF THE 1998 GENERAL ORDINANCE - Order of Application of Gas Works Revenues.”
The City has covenanted in the 1998 General Ordinance that it will not in any Fiscal Year pay from Gas Works
Revenues any City Charges or debt service on any general obligation bonds of the City unless, among other
things, there has been deposited in the Sinking Fund an amount sufficient to pay all sinking fund charges then
payable with respect to all Outstanding 1998 Ordinance Bonds. See APPENDIX E — “SUMMARY OF THE
1998 GENERAL ORDINANCE - Covenants — Additional Covenants.” Assuming the satisfaction of the
above referenced covenant, PGW’s annual $18.0 million payment to the City under the Management
Agreement is paid currently in equal installments on the first business day of February, March, April and
May in each Fiscal Year. See “PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS — Management — Management Agreement” and
“GAS SERVICE TARIFF AND RATES — Rates — Ratemaking Methodology to Account for Bond Covenants.”

Related Covenants

Prior to issuing any 1998 Ordinance Bonds, the Act and the 1998 General Ordinance require the City
Council to adopt a Supplemental Ordinance that makes certain findings relating to the adequacy of Gas Works
Revenues to pay debt service on all then-Outstanding 1998 Ordinance Bonds, the 1998 Ordinance Bonds to be
issued thereunder and all other bonds or notes secured by the Gas Works Revenues. In connection with the
adoption of the Thirteen Supplemental Ordinance and the issuance of the Bonds, such findings were based (in
conformance with the Act and the 1998 General Ordinance) on a report of Black & Veatch, an independent
engineer retained by the City to evaluate PGW. A copy of such report is available at the office of the Chief
Clerk of the City Council, Room 402 City Hall, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania.

The 1998 General Ordinance requires the City to comply with a rate covenant (the “Rate Covenant”),
which requires the City to impose, charge and collect, in each Fiscal Year, rates and charges which, together
with all other Gas Works Revenues to be received in such Fiscal Year, shall be sufficient to meet, among other
things, Net Operating Expenses then payable and the debt service coverage requirements (including those with
respect to the 1998 Ordinance Bonds) specified in the 1998 General Ordinance. See “— Rate Covenant and
Rate Requirements” below and APPENDIX E - “SUMMARY OF THE 1998 GENERAL ORDINANCE”
herein.

Sinking Fund Reserve

The 1998 General Ordinance establishes the Sinking Fund Reserve as a separate account in the
Sinking Fund. Each Series of 1998 Ordinance Bonds (unless otherwise set forth in the Supplemental
Ordinance authorizing such Series) is entitled to the benefit of the Sinking Fund Reserve. The City is required
to deposit to the credit of the Sinking Fund Reserve from the proceeds of sale of each Series of 1998
Ordinance Bonds secured by the Sinking Fund Reserve and/or Gas Works Revenues an amount which,
together with other amounts in the Sinking Fund Reserve, equal the greatest amount of debt service
requirements required in any Fiscal Year to pay principal of and interest on the 1998 Ordinance Bonds of such
Series coming due and payable in that Fiscal Year. In lieu of a deposit to the credit of the Sinking Fund
Reserve or in substitution for amounts in the Sinking Fund Reserve, the City may provide one or more letters
of credit or other Credit Facilities in the same aggregate amount, issued by a provider or providers whose
Credit Facilities are such that bonds secured by such Credit Facilities are rated in one of the three (3) highest
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rating categories by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. (“Moody’s”), Fitch ICBA, Inc. (“Fitch”) or Standard &
Poor’s Ratings Service, a Division of The McGraw Hill Companies, Inc. (“S&P”), all in the manner described
in APPENDIX E — “SUMMARY OF THE 1998 GENERAL ORDINANCE - Sinking Fund Reserve.”

If, at any time and for any reason, the moneys in the Sinking Fund (other than the Sinking Fund
Reserve) are insufficient to pay, as and when due, debt service on any 1998 Ordinance Bonds secured by the
Sinking Fund Reserve, the Sinking Fund Depositary is required to pay over to the Fiscal Agent, from the
Sinking Fund Reserve, the amount of the deficiency. If by reason of such withdrawal (including draws on any
Credit Facilities held to satisfy the Sinking Fund Reserve Requirement) or for any other reason there shall be a
deficiency in the Sinking Fund Reserve, the City has covenanted to restore such deficiency from Gas Works
Revenues (either by a deposit of funds or the reinstatement of the cash limits of the Credit Facilities) within
twelve (12) months.

The Sinking Fund Reserve is established solely for the benefit of the Holders of those 1998 Ordinance
Bonds secured by the Sinking Fund Reserve. The Bonds and all Outstanding Senior 1998 Ordinance Bonds
are secured by the Sinking Fund Reserve. Providers of Qualified Swaps or Exchange Agreements, issuers of
Credit Facilities (other than those that become Bondholders as a result of a draw under a Credit Facility), the
holders of any bonds or notes which are Subordinate 1998 Ordinance Bonds or on a parity with Subordinate
1998 Ordinance Bonds and the providers of any credit facilities related thereto do not have a lien on or security
interest in the Sinking Fund Reserve.

Assuming the issuance of $ aggregate principal amount of Bonds, the amount required to
be on deposit in the Sinking Fund Reserve upon the issuance of the Bonds is expected to be $
The City expects to deposit $ of the proceeds of the Bonds into the Sinking Fund Reserve so that

the amount on deposit in the Sinking Fund Reserve on the date of issuance of the Bonds satisfies this
requirement. See ‘“PLAN OF FINANCE AND ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS” above.

The Sinking Fund Reserve is managed by, and invested and reinvested under the direction of, the City.
The Sinking Fund Reserve is valued by the Sinking Fund Depositary promptly after any withdrawal from the
Sinking Fund Reserve or any other event indicating a possible deficiency in the Sinking Fund Reserve and on
August 31 of each Fiscal Year of PGW.

The 1998 General Ordinance establishes permitted investments and the terms of such investments for
moneys held in the Sinking Fund, including the Sinking Fund Reserve. See APPENDIX E — “SUMMARY OF
THE 1998 GENERAL ORDINANCE - Investment of Funds.” For information regarding such investments,
which totaled approximately $72.8 million as of August 31, 2014, all of which were held in the 1998
Ordinance Sinking Fund Reserve, as well as investments held in the sinking fund reserve established under the
1975 General Ordinance (which totaled approximately $33.1 million as of August 31, 2014), see Note 3(b) in
APPENDIX A — “COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT FOR FISCAL YEARS ENDED
AUGUST 31, 2014 AND 2013 OF THE PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS - Financial Section.” All of the
investments currently held in the sinking fund reserve established under the 1975 General Ordinance will be
liquidated upon the expected redemption, refunding or defeasance of the 1975 Ordinance Bonds and applied as
described under “PLAN OF FINANCE AND ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS” above.

For additional information concerning the Sinking Fund Reserve, see APPENDIX E — “SUMMARY
OF THE 1998 GENERAL ORDINANCE - Sinking Fund Reserve.”

Rate Covenant and Rate Requirements
Pursuant to the Rate Covenant, the City has covenanted in the 1998 General Ordinance that, for so
long as the 1998 Ordinance Bonds are outstanding, the City will, at a minimum, impose, charge and collect in

each Fiscal Year of the Gas Works such gas rates and charges as shall, together with all other Gas Works
Revenues to be received in such Fiscal Year, equal not less than the greater of (a) and (b) below:
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(a) The sum of:
1) all Net Operating Expenses payable during such Fiscal Year;

(i1) 150% of the amount required to pay Sinking Fund deposits required during
such Fiscal Year in respect of all Outstanding Senior 1998 Ordinance Bonds;

(iii) the amount required to pay Sinking Fund deposits required during such
Fiscal Year in respect of all Outstanding Subordinate 1998 Ordinance Bonds and other obligations of the Gas
Works on a parity with Subordinate 1998 Ordinance Bonds payable during such Fiscal Year;

(iv) the amount, if any, required to be paid into the Sinking Fund Reserve during
such Fiscal Year;

v) the Rebate Amount required to be paid to the United States during such
Fiscal Year; and

(vi) the amounts required to be paid to the issuers of Credit Facilities and the

providers of Qualified Swaps and Exchange Agreements during such Fiscal Year;
or
(b) The sum of:
@) all Net Operating Expenses payable during such Fiscal Year;

(i1) all Sinking Fund deposits required during such Fiscal Year in respect of all
Outstanding 1998 Ordinance Bonds and all amounts payable in respect of obligations of PGW which are on a
parity with any of the 1998 Ordinance Bonds and in respect of general obligation bonds issued for
improvements to the Gas Works and all amounts, if any, required during such Fiscal Year to be paid into the
Sinking Fund Reserve;

(iii) the Rebate Amount required to be paid to the United States during such
Fiscal Year; and

(@iv) the amounts required to be paid to the issuers of Credit Facilities and the
providers of Qualified Swaps and Exchange Agreements during such Fiscal Year.

In calculating the City’s compliance with the Rate Covenant set forth above, required Sinking Fund
deposits are calculated without regard to the effect of any Qualified Swap and Exchange Agreements. For a
further discussion of the Rate Covenant and other rate requirements applicable to the City, including the PUC
obligation to set rates, see “PGW BUDGETS AND FINANCES — Debt Service Coverage Ratio” and “GAS
SERVICE TARIFF AND RATES — Rates — Ratemaking Methodology to Account for Bond Covenants.”

Qualified Swaps and Exchange Agreements

The 1998 General Ordinance permits the City to enter into a Qualified Swap or Exchange Agreement
with respect to a series of Senior 1998 Ordinance Bonds or Subordinate 1998 Ordinance Bonds or a portion
thereof upon the enactment of an ordinance by the City Council authorizing such Qualified Swap or Exchange
Agreement. Payments, other than termination payments, due to the provider of a Qualified Swap or Exchange
Agreement are payable from Gas Works Revenues on a parity with debt service on, as applicable, Senior 1998
Ordinance Bonds (if such Qualified Swap or Exchange Agreement relates to a series of Senior 1998 Ordinance
Bonds) or Subordinate 1998 Ordinance Bonds (if such Qualified Swap or Exchange Agreement related to a
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series of Subordinate 1998 Ordinance Bonds). See “— Gas Works Revenues — Order of Application of Gas
Works Revenues” above. The 1998 General Ordinance prohibits the provider of any Qualified Swap or
Exchange Agreement from having any right or claim at any time to amounts on deposit in the Sinking Fund
Reserve. There are four Qualified Swaps and Exchange Agreements in effect, each of which is related to a
Series of Senior 1998 Ordinance Bonds and detailed in the table below.

Table 1
QUALIFIED SWAPS & EXCHANGE AGREEMENTS
RELATED TO SENIOR 1998 ORDINANCE BONDS

as of July 1, 2015
Related Senior 1998 Ordinance Bond
Series 8b 8c 8d 8e
Initial Notional Amount $313,390,000 $50,000,000 $50,000,000 $50,000,000
Current Notional Amount"” $50,260,000 $50,000,000 $75,000,000 $50,260,000
Termination Date 8/1/2028 8/1/2028 8/1/2028 8/1/2028
Product Fixed Payer Swap Fixed Payer Swap Fixed Payer Swap Fixed Payer Swap
Rate Paid by Provider 70% 1-month 70% 1-month 70% 1-month 70% 1-month
LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR
Rate Paid by City® 3.6745% 3.6745% 3.6745% 3.6745%
Provider JPMorgan Chase JPMorgan Chase JPMorgan Chase JPMorgan Chase
Bank, N.A.© Bank, N.A.© Bank, N.A.© Bank, N.A.©
Net Present Value"’ ($8,411,848) ($8,368,003) ($12,552,370) ($8,411,848)

Credit Related Termination Events

For Provider:

For City: 2

For Provider:

For City: 2

For Provider:

For City: 2

For Provider:

For City: 2

O

2
3)
“)

)

©6)

As of July 1, 2015. As of such date, the notional amount of each swap was equal to, as applicable, the principal outstanding
amount of the related series.

The City’s fixed rate payments under each swap are insured by Assured Guaranty Municipal Corporation (“Assured”).

Net present values are as of June 30, 2015, and are shown from the City’s perspective.

Each swap may be terminated by the provider if (a) Assured’s claims paying ability is rated below “A” by S&P and its financial
strength rating is rated below “A2” by Moody’s or if either rating is withdrawn or suspended and not reinstated within 30 days
(provided that Assured maintains a rating of at least “AA” from S&P or “Aa2” from Moody’s during such 30 day period), and
(b) the Eighth Series Bonds are rated below “Baa2” by Moody’s or below “BBB” by S&P. As of July 21, 2015, Assured was
rated A2 by Moody’s and AA by S&P.

Each swap may be terminated by the City if the senior long-term debt or deposits of the provider are rated below “A3” by
Moody’s or “A-" by S&P, unless the provider has (i) assigned or transferred the swap to a party acceptable to the City;
(ii) provided a credit support provider acceptable to the City whose obligations are pursuant to a credit support document
acceptable to the City; or (iii) executed a credit support annex, in form and substance acceptable to the City, providing for the
collateralization by the provider of its obligations under the applicable swap.

As of July 21, 2015, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. was rated “Aa3” by Moody’s and “A+” by S&P.
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For additional information regarding such Qualified Swap and Exchange Agreements as of August 31,
2014 see Note 8 in APPENDIX A — “COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT FOR FISCAL
YEARS ENDED AUGUST 31, 2014 AND 2013 OF THE PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS - Financial
Section.”

Credit Facilities With Respect to 1998 Ordinance Bonds

The 1998 General Ordinance permits the City to enter into a Credit Facility with respect to any Series
of Senior 1998 Ordinance Bonds and Subordinate 1998 Ordinance Bonds. As of the date of this Official
Statement, there is a Credit Facility in effect in the form of a letter of credit with respect to each of the five
subseries of variable rate Senior 1998 Ordinance Bonds, which bonds (in the aggregate) have an Outstanding
principal balance of $255,520,000 as of July 1, 2015. Such amount represents 29.74% of the Senior 1998
Ordinance Bonds Outstanding as of July 1, 2015. The coverage for principal payments under each letter of
credit is equal to the outstanding principal amount of applicable subseries as of the date of this Official
Statement. Each letter of credit expires prior to the final maturity date of the applicable series of Senior 1998
Ordinance Bonds. In connection with any scheduled expiration, the City may extend the scheduled expiration,
provide an alternate liquidity facility to replace the expiring letter of credit, or convert the interest rates on the
applicable 1998 Ordinance Bonds to fixed interest rates or to an interest rate mode that does not require a
liquidity facility. There can be no assurance that the City will be able to extend any expiration date or to
obtain an alternate Credit Facility on terms substantially similar to the terms of any expiring letter of credit.

Following an unreimbursed draw on a letter of credit, the applicable 1998 Ordinance Bonds, so long
as they are owned by such issuer, are “bank bonds” and will bear an interest rate determined in accordance
with the applicable Bond Authorization and letter of credit (a “bank bond rate”). This interest rate may be
higher or lower than the rate that 1998 Ordinance Bonds of the same Series that are not bank bonds would
otherwise bear. In addition, each bank bond rate may increase upon the occurrence of certain defaults (such
increased bank bond rate is the “default rate”).

The table below describes the existing letters of credit, and the issuers thereof, related to Senior 1998
Ordinance Bonds as of the date of this Official Statement. In accordance with the 1998 General Ordinance, the
payment of interest on and principal of bank bonds that are Senior 1998 Ordinance Bonds is on a parity with
debt service on all other Senior 1998 Ordinance Bonds.

Table 2
VARIABLE RATE SENIOR 1998 ORDINANCE BONDS
LETTERS OF CREDIT
Issuer Issuer Issuer
Long Term Long Term Long Term
Bonds and Short and Short and Short
Related Outstanding Expiration Term Ratings Term Ratings Term Ratings
Series  ($000 omitted)®’ Issuer Date (Moody’s)"™” (S&P)® (Fitch)®
5A-21 $30,000 JPMorgan™" 12/31/15 Aa3/P-1 A+/A-1 AA-/Fl1+
8b® 50,260 Wells Fargo” 8/1/16 Aa2/P-1 AA-/A-1+ AA/F1+
gcH1O 50,000 Barclays® 8/1/16 A2/P1 A-/A-2 A/F1
8dW!” 75,000 RBC® 8/1/16 Aa3®/p-1© AA-DIA-1+ AA/F-1+
8e1” 50,260 PNC® 8/30/16 Aa2/P-1 A/A-1 A+/F1

" JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A (“JPMorgan™). The City is required to repay the principal component of bank bonds in

six semi-annual installments beginning on the letter of credit expiration date. The bank bond rate is (i) for the period
from and including the effective date of the letter of credit through and including the expiration date, the “base rate”
(as defined below), (ii) after the expiration date to and including the date that the bank bonds are required to be paid
pursuant to the terms of the letter of credit (the “extended loan period”), the base rate plus one percent (1.00%), and
(iii) after the expiration of the extended loan period, the base rate plus two percent (2.00%) (the “default rate”). The
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“base rate” is the higher of (a) the prime rate publically announced by JPMorgan in New York City, and (b) the
federal funds rate plus one-half percent (0.5%). Notwithstanding the foregoing, from and after and during the
continuation of an event of default under the letter of credit, the bank bond rate is the default rate.
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association (“Wells Fargo”). The City is required to repay the principal component of
the purchase price of bank bonds, assuming the satisfaction of certain conditions, in 180 days after the related
unreimbursed draw in four semi-annual installments, beginning 6 months after the term loan is made. In no event will
the bank bond rate exceed the lessor of (a) twenty-five percent (25%), and (b) the maximum lawful rate.
Barclays Bank PLC (“Barclays”). The City is required to repay the principal component of the purchase price of
bank bonds, assuming the satisfaction of certain conditions, in 10 equal quarterly installments beginning 6 months
after the unreimbursed related draw. The bank bond rate is (i) for the first 90 days after Barclays has purchased the
1998 Ordinance Bonds, the “base rate” (as defined below), (ii) for days 91 through and including 180, the base rate
plus (except for component (c) of the base rate) one percent (1.0%), and (iii) on and after the 181* day, the base rate
plus (except for component (c) of the base rate) two percent (2.0%). The “base rate” is the highest of (a) the prime
rate publically announced by Barclays in New York city plus two and one-half of one percent (2.50%), (b) the federal
funds rate plus two and one-half of one percent (2.50%), (c) one hundred fifty percent (150%) of the yield on 30-year
United States Treasury bonds, and (d) eight percent (8.0%). Notwithstanding the foregoing, immediately and
automatically upon the occurrence of an event of default under the letter of credit, and during the continuation
thereof, the bank bond rate shall be equal to the base rate plus three percent (3.0 %). In no event will the bank bond
rate exceed the lessor of (a) twenty-five percent (25%), and (b) the maximum lawful rate.
Royal Bank of Canada (“RBC”). The City is required to repay the principal component of the purchase price of bank
bonds, assuming the satisfaction of certain conditions, in 12 quarterly installments beginning on the date three months
after the 90" day following the related unreimbursed draw. The bank bond rate is (i) from the date that RBC has
purchased the 1998 Ordinance Bonds to and including the 90" day thereafter, the “base rate” (as defined below), and
(ii) from and after the earlier of the 91* day following such purchase and the stated expiration date, the base rate plus
two percent (2.00%). The “base rate” is the highest of (a) the prime rate established by RBC, (b) the federal funds
rate plus two percent (2.00%), and (c) 8.50%. Notwithstanding the foregoing, from and after the occurrence of an
event of default under the letter of credit, but only so long as such event of default continues, bank bonds will bear
interest at the base rate plus three percent (3.00%). In no event will the bank bond rate exceed the lessor of (a)
twenty-five percent (25%), and (b) the maximum lawful rate.
PNC Bank, National Association (“PNC”). The City is required to repay the principal component of the purchase
price of bank bonds, assuming the satisfaction of certain conditions, in 10 equal semiannual installments payable in
arrears beginning on the day that is 6 months after the date the term loan is made. Conversion to term loans is the
earlier of 180 days after the purchase or the Letter of Credit expiration date. The bank bond rate is (i) for the first 180
days after PNC has purchased the 1998 Ordinance Bonds, the “base rate” (as defined below), and (ii) from and after
the earlier of the 181" day following such purchase and the termination date of the letter of credit, the base rate plus
two percent (2.00%). The “base rate” is the highest of (a) the prime rate publically announced by PNC effective in
Pittsburg, Pennsylvania, (b) the sum of the federal funds rate plus three percent (3.00%), and (c) 7.50%.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, from and after the occurrence and during the continuation of an event of default under
the letter of credit, the bank rate shall be equal to the base rate plus three percent (3.0 %). In no event will the bank
bond rate exceed the lessor of (a) twenty-five percent (25%), and (b) the maximum lawful rate.
© Moody’s rating outlook is negative.
' S&P’s rating has been placed on negative credit watch.
® " All ratings are as of July 21, 2015.
©@ " As of July 1, 2015.
19" Notwithstanding the establishment of the bank bond rate, bank bonds shall bear interest at the greater of the
applicable bank bond rate or the rate of interest borne by 1998 Ordinance Bonds of the applicable series that are not
bank bonds.

2

3)

“)

®)

Pursuant to respective reimbursement agreements, JPMorgan Chase Bank National Association
(“JPMorgan”) and PNC Bank, National Association (“PNC”) have each issued a direct pay irrevocable letter
of credit in a stated amount of $50,000,000 and $70,000,000, respectively (each a “Stated Amount”), to pay the
principal of and interest on maturing CP Capital Project Notes and Gas Works Notes, from time to time. In
accordance with each letter of credit, the aggregate principal amount of the CP Capital Project Notes and Gas
Works Notes subject to each letter of credit (and the interest thereon) plus any advances and unreimbursed
drawings thereunder (and the interest thereon) cannot exceed the related Stated Amount, unless such amount is
increased. Each letter of credit expires on August 14, 2017. The CP Capital Project Notes are Subordinate
1998 Ordinance Bonds and such letters of credit, solely as they relate to the CP Capital Project Notes, are
Credit Facilities under the 1998 General Ordinance. The Gas Works Notes are junior in priority of payment to
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the Senior 1998 Ordinance Bonds and payments due in respect of Gas Works Notes are on a parity with
Subordinate 1998 Ordinance Bonds. See “COMMERCIAL PAPER PROGRAMS.”

Issuers of Credit Facilities (other than those that are Bondholders) do not have any lien on or security
interest in the Sinking Fund Reserve. See APPENDIX E - “SUMMARY OF THE 1998 GENERAL
ORDINANCE - Order of Application of Gas Works Revenues” for a discussion of the respective payment
priorities of amount due under a Credit Facility.

Authorized Additional 1998 Ordinance Bonds

The 1998 General Ordinance permits the issuance of additional 1998 Ordinance Bonds which, if and
when issued, will be either Senior 1998 Ordinance Bonds or Subordinate 1998 Ordinance Bonds. The
issuance of the Bonds and any additional 1998 Ordinance Bonds (other than any additional 1998 Ordinance
Bonds issued pursuant to the Thirteenth Supplemental Ordinance, as described below) requires, among other
things, the adoption by the City Council of a Supplemental Ordinance that makes the findings described under
“— Gas Works Revenues — Related Covenants” above.

The Twelfth Supplemental Ordinance to the 1998 General Ordinance authorizes the City to issue one
or more series of CP Capital Project Notes (as defined below). The CP Capital Project Notes are issued as
Subordinate 1998 Ordinance Bonds. See “— Pledge of Revenues and Funds — Subordinate 1998 Ordinance
Bonds” above and “COMMERCIAL PAPER PROGRAMS” below. See “— Credit Facilities with respect to 1998
Ordinance Bonds” for information regarding the letters of credit for the CP Capital Project Notes. Pursuant
to the Twelfth Supplemental Ordinance, the CP Capital Project Notes are not secured by the Sinking Fund
Reserve.

The Thirteenth Supplemental Ordinance authorizes the City to issue one or more series of Senior 1998
Ordinance Bonds (including the Bonds) in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $1,026,000,000. After
the issuance of the Bonds, additional Senior 1998 Ordinance Bonds may be issued pursuant to the Thirteenth
Supplemental Ordinance without any additional City Council action (including the adoption of another
supplemental ordinance that makes the findings described under “— Gas Works Revenues — Related
Covenants” above) solely to refund any 1998 Ordinance Bonds previously issued pursuant thereto. If the City
elects to issue any additional refunding 1998 Ordinance Bonds pursuant to the Thirteenth Supplemental
Ordinance, such additional 1998 Ordinance Bonds must (i) not extend the final maturity of the 1998 Ordinance
Bonds to be refunded and have debt service in each year lower than the debt service in each year on the bonds
to be refunded, and (ii) be in a principal amount not to exceed the amount which accomplishes the foregoing,
together with the amount necessary to pay the costs of issuance related to such refunding bonds. Any future
Series of 1998 Ordinance Bonds issued pursuant to the Thirteenth Supplemental Ordinance will be entitled to
the benefit of the Sinking Fund Reserve. After issuing the Bonds, the City will retain the authority to issue up
to $ of 1998 Ordinance Bonds pursuant to the Thirteenth Supplemental Ordinance.

As noted above under “— Gas Works Revenues,” Gas Works Revenues, pursuant to a Supplemental
Ordinance, may be divided into separate components and any Series of 1998 Ordinance Bonds issued
thereafter may be limited as to source of payment to one or more such components. Since all current Gas
Works Revenues are pledged for the security of and payment on all 1998 Ordinance Bonds, only new revenues
that satisfy the definition of Gas Works Revenues could be so divided and pledged as security for and the only
source of payment on one or more future Series of 1998 Ordinance Bonds.

The Act and the 1998 General Ordinance authorize the City to issue Senior 1998 Ordinance Bonds
and Subordinate 1998 Ordinance Bonds in the form of revenue bond anticipation notes (“Anticipation Notes™).
The principal of any Anticipation Notes is payable by exchange for, or out of the proceeds of the sale of, a
designated Series of 1998 Ordinance Bonds referred to in the related Anticipation Notes. If such designated
Series of 1998 Ordinance Bonds is offered for sale but cannot be sold, the sole remedy of the Holders of
Anticipation Notes is to accept the 1998 Ordinance Bonds of the designated Series at their maximum interest
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rate (which must be set forth in the related Anticipation Notes), or to extend the maturity of the Anticipation
Notes for one or more specified additional periods of not less than six months during which additional offers of
the designated Series of 1998 Ordinance Bonds may be made. As of the date of this Official Statement, the
City has never issued Anticipation Notes.

See “POSSIBLE FUTURE PGW RELATED FINANCINGS” below for information concerning potential
future issuances of 1998 Ordinance Bonds.

Covenant Against Commingling with Other City Funds

The City has covenanted that so long as any of the Bonds remain outstanding, all Gas Works
Revenues, as applicable, shall be deposited and held in and disbursed from, one or more unsegregated accounts
of PGW which shall be separate from and not commingled with the consolidated cash account of the City or
any other account of the City not held exclusively for PGW purposes.

The effectiveness of the separation of proceeds of the Bonds and revenues from other City accounts
may be limited under certain circumstances, including a bankruptcy filing by the City. See “REMEDIES OF
BONDHOLDERS — Limitation On Remedies of Bondholders” below.

Senior 1998 Ordinance Bonds Debt Service Schedule

The table below reflects the debt service schedule for all Senior 1998 Ordinance Bonds outstanding as
of July 1, 2015, as well as the debt service schedule for the Bonds.
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Table 3
COMPARISON OF DEBT SERVICE PAYMENTS
WITH AND WITHOUT THE ISSUANCE OF THE BONDS
(THOUSANDS OF U.S. DOLLARS)

WITHOUT THE ISSUANCE OF THE BONDS WITH THE ISSUANCE OF THE BONDS
Outstanding Total 1975 Senior Total
Outstanding Senior 1998 Ordinance Bonds 1998 Ordinance Senior 1998
1975 Ordinance Ordinance and Senior 1998 Bonds Excluding Ordinance Bonds
Bonds (as of Bonds (as of Ordinance Bonds (as the 1998 (including the
July 1, 2015) July 1, 2015)" of July 1, 2015) Refunded Bonds Bonds Bonds)?
Fiscal Year Combined
Ending Existing Debt Total Debt Total Debt
August 31 Service ($)"V Principal Interest Service Service®
2015 $ 8,520 $ 27,309 $ 35,830
2016 22,653 70,077 92,730
2017 21,125 69,977 91,102
2018 19,598 68,479 88,077
2019 18,070 68,514 86,583
2020 16,532 68,545 85,077
2021 15,006 68,587 83,593
2022 13,519 68,639 82,158
2023 12,733 68,678 81,411
2024 11,172 69,001 80,173
2025 4,159 69,175 73,334
2026 3,770 69,333 73,102
2027 69,964 69,964
2028 70,190 70,190
2029 41,249 41,249
2030 39,622 39,622
2031 39,619 39,619
2032 39,619 39,619
2033 31,220 31,220
2034 31,224 31,224
2035 45,100 45,100
2036 22,795 22,795
2037 22,789 22,789
2038 22,787 22,787
2039 9,937 9,937
2040 9,936 9,936
Total $166,857 $1,282,365 $1,449,222

D Includes the 1998 Refunded Bonds. Interest on the Fifth Series A-2 bonds calculated at 0.05%. Interest on the Eighth Series B, C, D and E bonds calculated at the swap rate of
3.6745%. This table assumes that there will be no draws on the letters of credit. See “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE 1998 ORDINANCE BONDS — Credit
Facilities with Respect to 1998 General Ordinance.”

@ Excludes the 1998 Refunded Bonds.
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COMMERCIAL PAPER PROGRAMS

The City is authorized to issue commercial paper to finance the costs of certain PGW capital projects,
other project costs and working capital requirements.

CP Capital Project Notes

Pursuant to the Twelfth Supplemental Ordinance to the 1998 General Ordinance, the City may issue
one or more series of commercial paper notes in installments in a principal amount not to exceed $120,000,000
Outstanding at any time (the “CP Capital Project Notes”) to finance capital projects included in PGW’s
approved capital program. CP Capital Project Notes are issued as Subordinate 1998 Ordinance Bonds. The
City previously issued a first installment of CP Capital Project Notes solely for the purpose of initiating its CP
Capital Project Notes program, all of which were promptly repaid. As of the date of this Official Statement, no
CP Capital Project Notes are Outstanding under the first installment. PGW may request the City to issue CP
Capital Project Notes in PGW’s Fiscal Year 2015 and in PGW’s Fiscal Year 2016 to finance the cost of
certain PGW capital projects if they are or have been approved by City Council as part of PGW’s Fiscal Year
2015 and Fiscal Year 2016 capital budgets. CP Capital Project Notes are not secured by the Sinking Fund
Reserve. See “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE 1998 ORDINANCE BONDS — Pledge of
Revenues and Funds — Subordinate 1998 Ordinance Bonds” and “— Sinking Fund Reserve.”

The Independent Consultant’s Engineering Report incorporates forecasts by PGW of future issuances
of CP Capital Project Notes and other debt obligations, all or a portion of which may also be in the form of CP
Capital Project Notes. Such forecasts reflect the issuance in Fiscal Year 2015 and Fiscal Year 2016 of the CP
Capital Project Notes described above. See “POSSIBLE FUTURE PGW RELATED FINANCINGS — The
Independent Consultant’s Engineering Report.” In addition, in its most recent review of PGW, PUC staff
identified the issuance of additional debt (which could include CP Capital Project Notes) as one possible
means of financing PGW pipeline replacements. See “POSSIBLE FUTURE PGW RELATED FINANCINGS — PUC
April 2015 Report” below.

Gas Works Notes

PGW’s working capital requirements may be financed by the issuance of notes (the “Gas Works
Notes”) pursuant to The City of Philadelphia Municipal Utility Inventory and Receivables Financing Act of
the Commonwealth (the “Inventory and Receivables Financing Act”) and the General Inventory and
Receivables Gas Works Revenue Note Ordinance of 2013 (the “Note Ordinance”). Gas Works Notes may be
issued in installments in a principal amount (together with interest) not to exceed, in the aggregate,
$150,000,000 at any one time outstanding. As of the date of this Official Statement, no Gas Works Notes are
outstanding. The proceeds of Gas Works Notes may be used to finance or refund the costs of acquiring or
funding certain inventory, accounts and other expenses of PGW or to refund Gas Works Notes.

Gas Works Notes are not 1998 Ordinance Bonds. Debt service on Gas Works Notes is payable from
Gas Works Revenues on a parity with Subordinate 1998 Ordinance Bonds. The Bonds and all other Senior
1998 Ordinance Bonds are senior in right of payment and security to the Gas Works Notes. See “SECURITY
AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE 1998 ORDINANCE BONDS — Pledge of Revenues and Funds” and
APPENDIX E - “SUMMARY OF THE 1998 GENERAL ORDINANCE - Order of Application of Gas
Works Revenues.” The holders of any Gas Works Notes and the issuers of any credit facilities related thereto
do not have a lien on or a security interest in the Sinking Fund Reserve. “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF
PAYMENT FOR THE 1998 ORDINANCE BONDS — Sinking Fund Reserve.” See “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF
PAYMENT FOR THE 1998 ORDINANCE BONDS — Credit Facilities with respect to 1998 Ordinance Bonds” for
information regarding the two current credit facilities in the form of direct pay irrevocable letters of credit in
effect for the Gas Works Notes.
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Letters of Credit

As described above under “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE 1998 ORDINANCE BONDS
— Credit Facilities with Respect to 1998 Ordinance Bonds,” pursuant to respective reimbursement
agreements, JPMorgan and PNC have each issued a direct pay irrevocable letter of credit in a stated amount of
$50,000,000 and $70,000,000, respectively (each a “Stated Amount™), to pay the principal of and interest on
maturing CP Capital Project Notes and Gas Works Notes, from time to time. In accordance with each letter of
credit, the aggregate principal amount of the CP Capital Project Notes and Gas Works Notes subject to each
letter of credit (and the interest thereon) plus any advances and unreimbursed drawings thereunder (and the
interest thereon) can not exceed the related Stated Amount, unless such amount is increased. Each letter of
credit expires on August 14, 2017. Such letters of credit, solely as they relate to the CP Capital Project Notes,
are Credit Facilities under the 1998 General Ordinance.

OTHER DEBT OBLIGATIONS PAYABLE FROM GAS WORKS REVENUES
Short-Term Borrowings

The City may issue Gas Works Notes to finance PGW’s working capital requirements. See
“COMMERCIAL PAPER PROGRAMS — Gas Works Notes” above.

PGW is authorized to make interfund loans from various consolidated accounts of PGW that do not
secure 1998 Ordinance Bonds for payment, as necessary, of PGW obligations, including debt service on bonds
issued under the 1998 General Ordinance. PGW must reimburse such accounts as revenues are received by the
end of each Fiscal Year during which such withdrawals were made. No such interfund loans are outstanding.

Additional Bond Ordinances

The Act permits the City to enact new general bond ordinances that pledge, for the security and
payment of any bonds and notes issued thereunder, the Gas Works Revenues. Prior to enacting any such bond
ordinance, the City Council must adopt a supplemental ordinance that makes certain findings relating to the
adequacy of Gas Works Revenues to pay debt service on all then-outstanding 1998 Ordinance Bonds, Gas
Works Notes and the new series of bonds to be issued thereunder. Such findings are to be based on a report of
the chief fiscal officer of the City, which in turn can be based on a report of an independent engineer employed
by the City to evaluate PGW. The 1998 General Ordinances requires any such bonds and notes to be payable
from Gas Works Revenues on a parity with debt service on Subordinate 1998 Ordinance Bonds and the other
obligations on a parity therewith. See “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE 1998 ORDINANCE
BONDS — Order of Application of Revenues” above and APPENDIX E — “SUMMARY OF THE 1998
GENERAL ORDINANCE - Order of Application of Gas Works Revenues.”

As of the date of this Official Statement, the City does not expect to enact any bond ordinances that
pledge all, or a portion of, the Gas Works Revenues for the security and payment of any bonds and notes other
than the 1998 Ordinance Bonds and the Gas Works Notes, although, as described under “POTENTIAL LNG
FACILITIES EXPANSION,” proceeds of bonds issued under a new bond ordinance is a potential source of
financing under consideration by PGW for the expansion of PGW’s LNG facilities.

POSSIBLE FUTURE PGW RELATED FINANCINGS
Financing of Potential LNG Facility Expansion
PGW is exploring ways to expand its existing LNG facilities. One method of financing such
expansion currently under consideration is using internally generated funds and the proceeds of borrowings.

The Independent Consultant’s Engineering Report incorporates forecasts by PGW of future debt issuances of:
(1) $78.6 million aggregate principal amount of CP Capital Project Notes to provide additional funding for
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capital improvements, (2) $24.0 million CP Capital Project Notes to finance the LNG expansion, (3) $250.0
million in Fiscal Year 2017 to repay outstanding notes and provide additional funds for capital improvements,
(4) $100.0 million in Fiscal Year 2017 to finance LNG expansion and (5) $100.0 million in Fiscal Year 2020
to fund capital improvements. The prospective debt issuance bonds described in the preceding sentence could
be in the form of 1998 Ordinance Bonds (including CP Capital Project Notes) or bonds issued pursuant to one
or more new City ordinances as described above under “OTHER DEBT OBLIGATIONS PAYABLE FROM GAS
WORKS REVENUES - Additional Bond Ordinances.” See APPENDIX B - “INDEPENDENT
CONSULTANT’S ENGINEERING REPORT.” Also see, “POTENTIAL LNG FACILITIES EXPANSION.” If the
CP Capital Project Notes are refinanced with Approved Bonds, then associated debt service would be
included in the PUC rates under the 2010 PUC Policy Statement (as defined below). See “GAS SERVICE
TARIFF AND RATES — Rates — Ratemaking Methodology to Account for Bond Covenants.”

PUC April 2015 Report

In its most recent review of PGW, the PUC staff identified the issuance of additional debt as one
possible means of financing PGW pipeline replacements. See “PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS — Governmental
Oversight — PUC April 2015 Report’ below. Such debt, if any, may be issued as 1998 Ordinance Bonds
(including CP Capital Project Notes) or pursuant to one or more new City ordinances as described above under
“OTHER DEBT OBLIGATIONS PAYABLE FROM GAS WORKS REVENUES — Additional Bond Ordinances.”

PERMITTED SECURITIZATION OF REVENUES RELATED TO NON-PERFORMING ASSETS

The 1998 General Ordinance permits the City to securitize and sell that portion of the Gas Works
rents, rates and charges that relate to assets which are designated as non-performing by the PUC and as to
which the PUC has designated specific rents, rates or charges.

Prior to any such securitization and sale, the City must deliver to the Fiscal Agent (1) an engineer’s
report including a statement that, for the three year period following such securitization and sale, the Gas
Works rents, rates and charges (excluding those securitized and sold) are currently and will be sufficient to
comply with the Rate Covenant described under the heading “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE
1998 ORDINANCE BONDS — Rate Covenant and Rate Requirements” above applied as if the percentage in
subsection (a)(iii) thereof were 175% rather than 150% and (2) an opinion of bond counsel that such
securitization and sale will not adversely affect the exclusion from gross income for federal income tax
purposes of interest on any outstanding 1998 Ordinance Bonds the interest on which is intended to be so
excluded. Proceeds received from any such securitization and sale shall be excluded from Gas Works
Revenues in all calculations relating to the Rate Covenant and, notwithstanding any provision of the 1998
General Ordinance to the contrary, may be used to redeem or refund obligations issued to finance the related
assets designated as non-performing.

Any and all Gas Works rates, rents and charges that are securitized and sold as described under this
heading, do not constitute Gas Works Revenues and would not serve as security for or a source of payment of
the 1998 Ordinance Bonds (including the Bonds). As of the date of this Official Statement, no PGW assets
have been designated as “non-performing.”

REMEDIES OF BONDHOLDERS
General

Remedies under the Act and the 1998 General Ordinance available to Holders of 1998 Ordinance
Bonds, including Holders of the Bonds, and to any trustee for Bondholders appointed by the Holders of 25% in
principal amount of any Series of 1998 Ordinance Bonds in default, are described in the summary contained in
APPENDIX E hereto. In addition to the remedies described therein, Bondholders, the Fiscal Agent, as
representative of the Bondholders, or a trustee for the Bondholders are entitled under the Pennsylvania
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Uniform Commercial Code to all remedies of secured parties in respect of (i) the Gas Works Revenues and the
funds on deposit in the Sinking Fund and (ii) the Sinking Fund Reserve if such bonds are secured by the
Sinking Fund Reserve. So long as DTC or its nominee is the Registered Owner, the remedies of Beneficial
Owners are exercisable through the procedures established by DTC.

Limitation on Remedies of Bondholders

The ultimate enforcement of Bondholders’ rights upon any default by the City in the performance of
its obligations under the 1998 General Ordinance will depend upon the application of remedies provided in the
Act, the 1998 General Ordinance and other applicable laws. Litigation may be necessary to obtain relief in
accordance with these remedies. Such litigation may be protracted and costly. Remedies such as mandamus,
specific performance or injunctive relief are equitable remedies that are subject to the discretion of the courts.

The rights and remedies of Bondholders with respect to the City’s obligations under the Bonds could
be significantly limited by the provisions of Chapter 9 of the United States Bankruptcy Code (“Chapter 97).
Chapter 9 permits, under prescribed circumstances (and only after an authorization by the applicable state
legislature or by a governmental office or organization empowered by state law to give such authorization), a
“municipality” of a state to file a petition for relief in a bankruptcy court of the United States if it is insolvent
or unable to meet its debts as they mature, and it desires to effect a plan to adjust its debt. Chapter 9 defines
“municipality” as a “political subdivision or public agency or instrumentality of a State.” Thus, for purposes of
Chapter 9, except as may be limited by state law, the City would be considered a “municipality.” As a result of
the commencement of a federal bankruptcy case by the City, Bondholders could experience delays in receiving
Bond payments, as well as partial or total losses of their investments in the Bonds.

The Pennsylvania Intergovernmental Cooperation Authority Act for Cities of the First Class
(Pa. P.L. 9, No.6 (1991)) (the “PICA Act”), prohibits the City from filing a petition for relief under Chapter 9
of the United States Bankruptcy Code so long as the Pennsylvania Intergovernmental Cooperation Authority
(“PICA”) has outstanding any bonds issued pursuant to the PICA Act. As of June 30, 2015, the principal
amount of PICA bonds outstanding was $315,955,000, and the final maturity date of such bonds is June 15,
2023. Furthermore, if no PICA bonds are outstanding, the PICA Act requires approval in writing by the
Governor of the Commonwealth for a filing under Chapter 9 by the City, and of the City’s proposed plan, after
holding a hearing as required by the PICA Act. If the Governor were to grant an approval for the City to file a
petition under Chapter 9 and approve the City’s plan, and the City were to so file, provisions of the United
States Bankruptcy Code could limit the enforcement of Bondholders’ rights and remedies. See “THE CITY
OF PHILADELPHIA GOVERNMENT AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION - Local Government Agencies
— Non-Mayoral-Appointed or Nominated Agencies — PICA” in APPENDIX C hereto.

The filing of a bankruptcy petition under Chapter 9 operates as an automatic stay of the
commencement or continuation of any judicial or other proceeding against the debtor or its property.
However, a petition filed under Chapter 9 does not operate as a stay of application of pledged “special
revenues” (as defined in the United States Bankruptcy Code) to the payment of indebtedness secured by such
revenues. Special revenues include receipts derived from the ownership or operation of systems that are used
to provide utility services and the proceeds of borrowings to finance such systems. The Bankruptcy Code
further provides that special revenues acquired by the debtor after commencement of a Chapter 9 case shall
remain subject to any lien resulting from any security agreement entered into by the debtor before the
commencement.

The lien on special revenues derived from a system, however, will be subject to the payment of the
necessary operating expenses of that system. Therefore if Gas Works Revenues are determined by a
bankruptcy court to constitute “special revenues” within the meaning of Chapter 9, then Gas Works Revenues
acquired by the City before and after the filing of a Chapter 9 petition will remain subject to the lien and
security interest of the 1998 General Ordinance in favor of Holders of the 1998 Ordinance Bonds, but would
be subject to the payment of PGW’s necessary operating expenses as determined by the City.
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If the pledged Gas Works Revenues could not support both the debt service requirements and
operating expenses of PGW, it is possible that payments to Holders of the Bonds could be reduced. No
representation is made that a bankruptcy court will determine that the Gas Works Revenues constitute
“special revenues” within the meaning of Chapter 9.

Unless a debtor consents or the plan proposed under Chapter 9 provides, the bankruptcy court may not
interfere with any of the property or revenues of a Chapter 9 debtor or with such debtor’s use or enjoyment of
any income producing property. Accordingly, if the City were permitted by State law to use the proceeds of
the Bonds and the Gas Works Revenues pledged for the benefit of the Bondholders other than to benefit the
Gas Works, and decided to do so, it is unclear whether a bankruptcy court would have the power to interfere
with that decision. Even if a bankruptcy court had such power, the court, in the exercise of its equitable
powers, could refuse to require the City to use the proceeds of the Bonds or the Gas Works Revenues to pay
Holders of the Bonds, could permit a subordination of the liens to new bonds if the former were found more
than “adequately protected” or could avail itself of a broad range of equitable remedies.

Regardless of any specific adverse determinations in a City bankruptcy proceeding, the existence of
such a proceeding could have a materially adverse effect on the liquidity and value of the Bonds.

INDEPENDENT CONSULTANT’S ENGINEERING REPORT

The Independent Consultant’s Engineering Report prepared by Black & Veatch, contained herein as
APPENDIX B, has been included in reliance upon the expertise of that company as an independent consulting
firm having broad experience in the design and analysis of the operation of gas works or gas distribution
systems of the magnitude and scope of PGW and having skill in assessing assumptions used in the preparation
of forecast financial statements of gas works systems.

As described in certain of the assumptions below, and as further detailed in the Independent
Consultant’s Engineering Report, in certain instances Black & Veatch has evaluated projections for the
period only through Fiscal Year 2020 and has considered PGW’s capital improvement program only
through Fiscal Year 2020 in reaching the conclusions expressed in its opinions (described below).

Among the subjects of the Independent Consultant’s Engineering Report are the issuance of the Bonds
and the issuance of 1998 Ordinance Bonds to finance the expansion of PGW’s current LNG facilities.

The following is a summary of certain assumptions and opinions of Black & Veatch, stated in their
entirety in the Independent Consultant’s Engineering Report. This section, “INDEPENDENT
CONSULTANT’S ENGINEERING REPORT,” is in all respects subject to the complete text of the
Independent Consultant’s Engineering Report, which is contained herein as APPENDIX B.

Assumptions

Black & Veatch stated that in preparing the Independent Consultant’s Engineering Report it relied on
PGW’s financial planning model and PGW’s assumptions contained within that model with several exceptions
as noted in the Independent Consultant’s Engineering Report. Black & Veatch stated that the analyses
summarized in the Independent Consultant’s Engineering Report were based on assumptions provided by or
reviewed by PGW and others and it relied on currently available information and present circumstances.
Black & Veatch stated that it did not conduct verification tests of this information. Black & Veatch stated that
although it believes that these data and underlying assumptions are reasonable, actual results may materially
differ from those projected, as influenced by conditions, events, and circumstances that may actually occur that
are unknown at this time and/or which are beyond the control of Black & Veatch.

The following is a partial list of critical assumptions used by Black & Veatch in the development of
the projections contained in the Independent Consultant’s Engineering Report.
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Revenues

1. The PUC will comply with its statutory obligations, requiring that the PUC, in determining
PGW’s revenue requirement and approving overall rates and charges, “follow the same rate-making
methodology and requirements that were applicable to [PGW] prior to the assumption of [rate-setting]
jurisdiction by the [PUC]” and permit PGW to “impose, charge and collect rates or charges as
necessary to permit...PGW to comply with its covenants to the holders of any approved bonds.”

2. The throughput and revenue figures are based on the assumption of normal weather.

3. Projected revenue figures are based on the assumption that PGW will recover, in a timely
manner, 100 percent of all gas supply and customer assistance programs costs. To the extent that
weather is warmer than normal, the resulting contribution margin will be maintained to the extent that
the WNA (as defined below) remains in effect.

4. If PGW were unable to meet the rate covenants required under the 1998 General Ordinance,
PGW would then have to reduce expenditures, develop other sources of Gas Works Revenues, and/or
file for and receive timely rate relief.

5. If lost margins resulting from customers’ reducing usage due to Demand Side Management
programs are significant, PGW will file for additional base rate increases.

6. PGW’s current DSIC (as defined below) surcharge will allow the recovery of $22.0 million in
annual revenues to fund annual capital improvements and will increase to $33.0 million in Fiscal Year
2017 (assuming approval by the PUC). The PUC will continue to provide either rate increases or
surcharges to fund these expenditures. If the PUC determines that PGW’s cast iron main replacement
should be accelerated above current levels, the PUC will also provide rate increases or surcharges to
fund the additional expenditures.

7. PGW will realize $40.0 million in revenue enhancements, cost savings, or base rate increases
on a levelized basis beginning in Fiscal Year 2018.

Operating Expenses

1. PGW’s annual bad debt expense will range from $35.2 to $37.2 million and PGW’s
collection factor on billed revenues will be 96 percent during the projected Fiscal Years 2016-2020
period.

Debt Service

1. The debt service and interest costs reflect the refunding of all of the outstanding 1975
General Ordinance Bonds and the [1998 General Ordinance Fourth and Fifth Series Bonds] and the
new bond issues projected for 2017 and 2020. If PGW refunds additional bonds, it is assumed that
such additional refunding will result in a reduction in interest costs and annual debt service from the
levels reflected in the Independent Consultant’s Engineering Report.
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Capital Improvement Program (Fiscal Years 2015 - 2020)

1. The planned capital improvements will be completed at the levels budgeted, for the projects
currently planned and within the time frame projected.

2. Projected levels of capital improvements that are paid for by internally generated funds are
assumed to comply with PGW’s internal policies for financing capital improvements with other
funding sources.

3. PGW is currently studying a $120.0 million LNG liquefaction expansion project. It is
assumed that PGW will have adequate incremental LNG sales to recover the operating and financing
costs of such a facility. Any excess revenues associated with this project would be used to lower the
$40.0 million base rate increase assumed for 2018, and any shortfall associated with this project would
be recovered through additional base rate increases. Based on the costs and potential sales provided
by PGW associated with this project, the incremental benefit (up to $10.0 million annually) or
incremental cost (up to $5.0 million annually) associated with this project would have a relatively
minor impact on base rates.

The City

1. PGW will make an annual payment to the City in Fiscal Years 2015 through 2020 of $18.0
million.

Opinions

In its Independent Consultant’s Engineering Report, which is attached hereto as APPENDIX B,
Black & Veatch has opined and concluded, based upon its investigation and assumptions set forth in the
Independent Consultant’s Engineering Report, that:

1. PGW is a competently managed and operated gas distribution utility. PGW and PGW’s gas
works system (the “System”) are organized, operated, and maintained at a level equal to, or in excess
of, regulatory requirements and generally accepted industry practices. The System is in good
operating condition.

2. Based upon Black & Veatch’s evaluation of financial projections and certain assumptions
with respect to the System, which Black & Veatch believes to be reasonable, and on the basis of actual
and estimated future annual financial operations of the System, the System should yield Gas Works
Revenues (which are pledged under the 1998 General Ordinance) over the amortization periods of the
outstanding 1998 Ordinance Bonds and the Bonds, which will be sufficient to: (a) pay all expenses of
operation, maintenance, repair and replacement of the System, (b) satisfy the deposit and payment
requirements of all reserve or special funds required to be established under the 1998 General
Ordinance, (c) pay the principal of and interest on all 1998 Ordinance Bonds (including the Bonds)
issued under the 1998 General Ordinance as the same shall become due and payable, and (d) provide
such surplus requirements as are contained in the respective rate covenant of the 1998 General
Ordinance. The Gas Works Revenues forming the basis of the opinion comply with the requirements
of the definition of Project Revenues contained in Section 2 of the Act.

3. The Gas Works Revenues which are pledged as security for the bonds issued under the 1998
General Ordinance are currently, and are projected to be, sufficient to comply with the rate covenants
set forth in Section 4.03(b) of the 1998 General Ordinance. See “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF
PAYMENT FOR THE 1998 ORDINANCE BONDS — Rate Covenant and Rate Requirements” and
APPENDIX E — SUMMARY OF THE 1998 GENERAL ORDINANCE - Rate Covenant.”
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4. The capital improvements proposed during the projection period, September 1, 2015, through
August 31, 2020, should, along with continued good operation and maintenance practices, enable
PGW to maintain the System in good operating condition. Review of present management practices
indicates that good operation and maintenance is likely to continue.

5. Contracted PGW gas supplies plus: (a) spot market purchases, (b) anticipated additional
contracted supplies plus supplemental gas capacities, and (c) the pipeline transport capacity to move
these supplies to PGW, appear adequate to meet PGW’s projected demand on a day of maximum
demand (a “design peak day”), in an hour of maximum demand (a “design peak hour”), and during a
year of maximum demand (a “design peak year”).

PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
General

PGW is principally a gas distribution facility. It is an unincorporated division of the City and is the
largest municipally-owned gas utility in the nation. PGW sells natural gas within the City, its service territory,
and is the exclusive distributor of natural gas within the limits of the City. PGW maintains a distribution
system with approximately 3,024 miles of gas mains and service lines and approximately 475,800 service lines
serving approximately 500,000 customers as of August 31, 2014.

PGW consists of real and personal property owned by the City and used for the acquisition,
manufacture, storage, processing and distribution of natural gas in the City, and all property, books and records
employed and maintained in connection with the operation, maintenance and administration of PGW.
Included among such assets, in addition to an extensive distribution system, are facilities for the liquefaction,
storage and vaporization of natural gas used to supplement the natural gas supply from pipeline transmission
companies and facilities for storage. Such facilities include two LNG plants.

In addition to the information under this heading, additional information about PGW is found in other
sections of this Official Statement:

For a discussion of PGW’s facilities, see “THE GAS WORKS FACILITIES” and “THE CAPITAL
IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM.”

For a discussion of PGW’s revenues and expenses, see “PGW BUDGETS AND FINANCES,” “GAS
SERVICE TARIFF AND RATES,” “MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
AND FINANCIAL CONDITION FOR THE Six MONTHS ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2014 AND 2013 (UNAUDITED)” and
APPENDIX A — “COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT FOR FISCAL YEARS ENDED
AUGUST 31, 2014 AND 2013 OF THE PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS - Financial Section.”

For additional information regarding PGW, see APPENDIX B - “INDEPENDENT
CONSULTANT’S ENGINEERING REPORT.”

For information about the City, see APPENDIXC - “THE CITY OF PHILADELPHIA
GOVERNMENT AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION.” APPENDIX D —“THE CITY OF PHILADELPHIA
SOCIOECONOMIC INFORMATION” includes information about the City and its residents. APPENDIX D
includes information regarding the City’s population, demographics, employment and unemployment
conditions, median and average household incomes and cost-of-living index.
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Management
Governance of the Gas Works

The Philadelphia Home Rule Charter (as defined in APPENDIX E) and the Management Agreement,
which was adopted by an ordinance passed on December 29, 1972 (Bill No. 455, as subsequently amended),
establishes the governance structure through legislation regarding the (i) ownership of PGW property and
functioning of PGW by the City; (ii) approval by the Philadelphia City Council (the “City Council”) of capital
budgets and certain gas supply contracts for PGW; (iii) review and approval by the Gas Commission of certain
personnel provided by PFMC and operating budgets, and recommendation by the Gas Commission to City
Council of certain gas supply contracts, real estate matters and capital budgets; and (iv) provisions of executive
management functions and directions for operation of PGW facilities by PFMC. PGW personnel are
responsible for the day to day management of the construction, operation and maintenance of the gas system.
PGW’s management organization is set forth in the table “Philadelphia Gas Works Organization Chart” on
page 14 of the Independent Consultant’s Engineering Report attached hereto as APPENDIX B. Any changes
in governance of PGW must be made pursuant to ordinances adopted by the City Council.

In addition, PGW’s rates are regulated by the PUC under the Pennsylvania Natural Gas Choice and
Competition Act No. 1999 21, PL. 122, 66 Pa. C.S. Section 2201 et seq. (the “Gas Choice Act”). See
“- Governmental Oversight -The PUC.”

Management Agreement

PFMC has operated PGW pursuant to the Management Agreement since January 1, 1973. The
Management Agreement authorizes PFMC to manage and operate all the property, real and personal,
collectively known as the Gas Works, for the sole and exclusive benefit of the City and establishes PFMC’s
primary obligation as applying the highest standards of management practice and diligence to the operation of
the Gas Works.

The Management Agreement and any amendments thereto are authorized by ordinances of the City
Council. The Management Agreement has a two-year term, which, upon execution, is automatically extended
for another two-year term, provided the City has not exercised its right of cancellation. The City can cancel
the Management Agreement at any time by providing PFMC a 90-day notice of cancellation. Any such
cancellation, however, must be approved by resolution or ordinance of the City Council.

Under the Management Agreement, PFMC is responsible for providing executive management of
PGW. Various aspects of PFMC’s management of PGW are subject to review and approval by the Gas
Commission, including approval of the PGW chief executive officer, chief operating officer and the chief
financial officer, and, where authorization by the City Council is required, recommendation of the City’s
Director of Finance and/or the Gas Commission. The Management Agreement sets forth various
responsibilities for the Gas Commission’s oversight of the operations of PGW. The City’s Director of Finance
oversees certain financial practices of PGW. The Management Agreement designates the City’s Law
Department as the designated legal advisor to the Gas Commission and PGW. The Law Department has
assigned the representation of PGW to the Office of General Counsel of PGW. See “— Governmental
Oversight — Gas Commission” and “PGW BUDGETS AND FINANCES — Budget Approval” for additional
discussions of the Gas Commission.

PFMC Board
The PFMC Board of Directors consists of seven members appointed by the Mayor of the City. Each

member is appointed to a two-year term and serves until his successor is duly qualified and seated. The
following are the current members of the PEMC Board of Directors:
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Current Members Title Term Began

David W. Seltzer, Principal, Mercator Advisors LLC Chairman 2/20/2008
Member, Finance and Audit Committees

Clarence D. Armbrister, President, Girard College Vice Chair 1/27.2012
Chair, Audit and Finance Committees

Catherine M. Paster, First Deputy Director of Finance, Treasurer 1/27/2012
City of Philadelphia
Member, Audit and Finance Committees

Sharmain Matlock-Turner — President and CEO, member 2/20/2008

Urban Affairs Coalition
Member, Workforce Development Committee

Saskia Thompson, Deputy Director of Finance, member 6/9/2015
City of Philadelphia

PGW Senior Officers
The following are brief biographical descriptions of PGW’s current senior officers:

Craig E. White, President and Chief Executive Officer. Mr. White is the President and Chief
Executive Officer of the Philadelphia Gas Works. Mr. White started with the organization in 1980. During
his 35 years of service, he served in many capacities, increasing in responsibility and seniority and in March of
2011 he was appointed to his present position as President and Chief Executive Officer. Mr. White received a
Bachelor of Science Degree from Kutztown University. He is a graduate of Drexel University’s MBA
Program and has completed executive development programs at Drexel University and Harvard Business
School. Mr. White is actively involved in his industry and professional organizations. He serves on the Board
of Directors of the American Gas Association and the National Petroleum Council. He also serves on the
Board of the Energy Association of Pennsylvania and is the past Chairman as well as former Executive Board
Member of the American Public Gas Association.

Douglas A. Moser, Executive Vice President and Acting Chief Operating Officer. Mr. Moser started
with the Philadelphia Gas Works in 1979. During his 36 years of service, he served in many capacities,
increasing in responsibility and seniority and in 2012 he was appointed to his present position as Executive
Vice President and Acting Chief Operating Officer. In this capacity he is responsible for gas management,
supply chain, operations, information services, customer affairs and enterprise strategic services. Mr. Moser
received his Bachelor of Science degree in Chemical Engineering from Pennsylvania State University and his
Master in Business Administration degree from Widener University. He serves on the Gas Board of the
Energy Association of Pennsylvania as Chairman and the Leadership Council of the American Gas
Association.

Joseph F. Golden, Jr., Executive Vice President and Acting Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Golden was
appointed Executive Vice President and Acting Chief Financial Officer in March 2012. In this capacity he is
responsible for the treasury, accounting, budgeting, and gas planning functions. Prior titles held by Mr.
Golden at PGW include: Controller, Treasurer, Manager Treasury Department, Senior Staff Accountant, and
Staff Accountant. Mr. Golden started his career with PGW in August of 1986. Mr. Golden has prior work
experience in public accounting, treasury accounting and cash management, and manufacturing. Mr. Golden
holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Accounting from Villanova University, a Master of Business
Administration degree from Drexel University, and received his Juris Doctor (cum laude) from Temple
University School of Law.

Abby L. Pozefsky, Esq., Chief Administrative Officer and General Counsel. Ms. Pozefsky has
served as General Counsel since 1998. In December 2012 she was also appointed Chief Administrative
Officer, promoted from the position of Senior Vice President, Administration. She manages Human
Resources, Risk Management, Technical Compliance, Ethics and Legal. Ms. Pozefsky previously held the
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position of Chief Deputy City Solicitor of Regulatory Affairs for the City’s Law Department, where she was
also General Counsel for the Philadelphia Water Department and the Philadelphia International Airport.
Having been licensed in four states, she has practiced law with a private law firm, community legal services
and the Colorado Attorney General, and she has taught at Virginia Commonwealth University. She serves as a
trustee for the PGW OPEB Trust and Secretary to the Philadelphia Facilities Management Corporation, and is
a member of various legal and human resources professional associations. Ms. Pozefsky received her Juris
Doctor from New York University Law School, and her Bachelor of Arts (cum laude) from the University of
Pennsylvania.

Charles J. Grant, Chief of Staff. Mr. Grant was appointed Chief of Staff in the Office of the
President and Chief Executive Officer in March 2011. He held the same position in the Office of the
Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer when he joined PGW in June 2010. His responsibilities
include oversight and enforcement of PGW’s labor contracts and PGW security. He is also responsible for
media relations, crisis communications, community partnerships, government affairs, internal communication,
digital communication/social media and advertising campaign development. Prior to joining PGW, Mr. Grant
was the owner and managing partner of the law firm Grant & Lebowitz, LLC. Mr. Grant also served as the
Chief of the Homicide Unit for the Philadelphia District Attorney’s Office and Deputy District Attorney in the
Los Angeles County District Attorney’s Office, and an adjunct professor at the Beasley School of Law,
Temple University. Mr. Grant earned his Bachelor of Arts degree from the Honors College of Ohio
University and his Juris Doctor degree from Georgetown University Law Center.

Daniel P. Murray, Senior Vice President — Customer Affairs and Operations. Mr. Murray was
appointed Senior Vice President of Customer Affairs and Operations in December 2012. He is responsible for
defining the strategy and the execution of all customer care, collections, field operations, and supply chain
functions. Prior titles held by Mr. Murray at PGW include: Vice President Customer Affairs, Director of
Resource Management for Field Operations, and Director of Special Projects. Prior to joining PGW, Mr.
Murray was a Senior Manager in the Ultility practice of global management consulting company Accenture.
Mr. Murray holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Business Management from Providence College.

Raymond M. Snyder, P.E., Senior Vice President — Gas Management. Mr. Snyder was appointed
Senior Vice President — Gas Management in March 2015. Mr. Snyder began his career at PGW almost 35
years ago in the Engineering Department. He continued in Engineering until he reached the level of Manager.
Mr. Snyder moved into Operations as the Director of Systems Administration and then as Director of Gas
Processing. In his current position, Mr. Snyder is responsible for Gas Processing, Engineering, Gas
Acquisition, Transportation & Gas Control, as well as PGW-owned and -leased properties. Mr. Snyder
received his Bachelor of Science in Civil Engineering from the Pennsylvania State University and his Master
of Science in Engineering Management from Drexel University. He is a licensed professional engineer in
Pennsylvania. Mr. Snyder serves as a member and former Vice-Chair of the AGA Supplemental Gas
Committee.

Eloise N. Young, Chief Information Officer and Vice President, Information Services. Ms. Young
has been the Chief Information Officer of PGW since August 2007. She brings more than 20 years of
experience to the position. As CIO, Ms. Young is responsible for delivering information technology
capabilities to PGW’s approximately 1,600 employees. Prior to her appointment, she served in a number of
positions in PGW’s Information Services Department, including Director of Technical Strategy and Support,
Manager of Systems Services, System Administrator in both the Unix and CICS environments, DBA, and
applications developer. Ms. Young sits on the Philadelphia chapter’s Corporate Advisory Council of the
Philadelphia chapter of the Black Data Processing Professionals. She received a Bachelor of Science degree in
Information Technology from the University of Phoenix in 2003 and a Generalist Master of Business
Administration from Rosemont College in 2014.
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Additional PGW Senior Staff
The following are brief biographical descriptions of current PGW senior staff:

Michael H. Jones, Vice President — Technical Compliance. Mr. Jones was appointed Vice President of
Technical Compliance in January 2010. In this capacity, he is responsible for services to operations involving
gas safety regulatory compliance, chemical laboratory analyses and environmental services. Mr. Jones’s
previous position was Director, Technical Compliance and before that Director, Engineering Design and
Construction Planning. Mr. Jones has been with PGW since 1981. Mr. Jones is a member of the American
Gas Association’s Operations Safety Regulatory Action Committee, Environmental Regulatory Action
Committee, and the Distribution and Transmission Engineering Committee. Mr. Jones is also a member of the
Energy Association of Pennsylvania’s Gas Transmission and Distribution Committee, and the National Society
of Black Engineers. Mr. Jones has a Bachelor of Science degree in General Sciences from Lincoln University
in Pennsylvania, and Bachelor of Science and Master of Science degrees in Civil Engineering from Drexel
University. Mr. Jones is a registered professional engineer in Pennsylvania.

Raquel N. Guzman, Esq., Vice President — Legal and Associate General Counsel. Ms. Guzman was
appointed Associate General Counsel in 2003 and Vice President — Legal in August 2005. She, together with
the General Counsel, is responsible for PGW’s Legal Department. Prior to joining PGW’s legal staff, Ms.
Guzman was a Deputy City Solicitor for Regulatory Affairs for the City of Philadelphia and also practiced at a
major Philadelphia law firm in its real estate department. She holds a Bachelor of Arts magna cum laude from
Harvard College and a Juris Doctor degree from the University of Pennsylvania Law School.

Raymond J. Welte, Vice President — Field Operations. Mr. Welte was appointed Vice President,
Field Operations in November 2014. He is responsible for Philadelphia Gas Works Distribution and Field
Services Departments. He previously held many positions at PGW in both departments since commencing
employment in October 1978 including: Director Field Operations; Manager Field Service Department;
Manager Meter Measurement/Pressure Force; Superintendent of Commercial & Industrial; Supervisor Field
Service. He has been an active member of the American Gas Association, Society of Gas Operators and the
Energy Association of Pennsylvania.

Governmental Oversight
Gas Commission

The Gas Commission was created by the Philadelphia Home Rule Charter. By Ordinance of City
Council, the Gas Commission is a five-member body consisting of the City Controller, two members
appointed by City Council and two members appointed by the Mayor. The Management Agreement vests in
the Gas Commission the responsibility for overseeing the operation by PEMC of PGW. The City Controller
serves during his incumbency as City Controller. The members appointed by the City Council and the Mayor
each serve for terms of four years and hold office until their successors are appointed and qualified.

The ordinance authorizing the Management Agreement grants the Gas Commission certain specified
powers and duties and other powers not specifically granted to PFMC including: approval of certain personnel
provided by PFMC; review of gas supply contracts and contracts for the distribution or transmission of gas for
approval by City Council; approval of changes in tests and standards of gas quality; approval of PGW-
established gas pressure; initial approval of PGW’s operating budget; review of PGW’s capital budgets and
recommendations thereon to City Council; approval of certain loans (but not issuance of bonds); access to and
review of all books, records and accounts of PGW; prescription of insurance requirements; promulgation of
standards for procurement and disposal of material, supplies and services and initial approval of all real
property acquisitions, sales and leases for further approval by the City Council.
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The PUC

The PUC was created by Pennsylvania statute and consists of five members appointed by the
Governor of the Commonwealth, with the consent of the Pennsylvania Senate. Each member serves a five-
year term and until his or her successor is appointed and qualified. The PUC conducts reviews of various
aspects of PGW and the other utilities for which it establishes rates. The PUC has implemented various
substantive and procedural regulations regarding the supervision of those utilities. PGW’s rates are established by
the PUC under the Commonwealth’s Public Utility Code (the “Code”) by virtue of the Gas Choice Act, subject
to certain limits on the PUC’s authority as described under “GAS SERVICE TARIFF AND RATES — Rates —
Ratemaking Methodology to Account for Bond Covenants.” Also see APPENDIX B — “INDEPENDENT
CONSULTANT’S ENGINEERING REPORT - Organization and Management — Pennsylvania Public
Utility Commission.”

PUC April 2015 Report

The most recent renewed PUC assessment of PGW is a Staff Report entitled “Inquiry into
Philadelphia Gas Works’ Pipeline Replacement Program,” released on April 21, 2015 (the “PUC April 2015
Report”). The PUC April 2015 Report states that a renewed assessment of PGW’s pipeline infrastructure and
pipeline replacement program is necessary because approximately two-thirds of such infrastructure consists of
aging cast iron and unprotected steel pipes, “both of which are high risk pipe that pose a potential risk to life
and property....” The PUC April 2015 Report concludes that PGW’s pipeline replacement efforts are not
aggressive enough given the risk of the cast-iron and unprotected steel pipes. The PUC staff identifies several
areas that PGW “should explore to increase its main replacement rate to ensure that its customers receive safe,
adequate and reliable service.” These areas include: increasing the Distribution System Improvement Change
(“DSIC”), changing PGW’s current timing for collecting DSIC payments, issuing additional debt to finance
pipeline replacement, reducing PGW’s cash liquidity by 25% and applying the released funds to pipeline
replacement, increasing the funds available for pipeline replacement by having the City waive all or portion of
its annual $18.0 million payment from PGW, streamlining PGW governance structure by eliminating the Gas
Commission, and consolidating existing facilities.

PGW has met with the PUC to discuss the suggestions made in the PUC April 2015 Report, including
matters summarized in this paragraph. PGW has proposed an increase in the DSIC to 7.5 percent and to
levelize and annualize the DSIC. It expects to submit a formal request for such increase in the DSIC in August
2015, to be effective in Fiscal Year 2016. PGW believes that this could provide an increase from the current
$22.0 million to up to $33.0 million per year to fund PGW’s pipeline replacement program. PGW is
considering requesting future increases to the DSIC once the 7.5 percent DSIC has been in place for a period
of two years and PGW has had the opportunity to evaluate the effect of such increase on risk and customers
and PGW’s ability to effectively implement the level of pipeline replacement associated with the 7.5 percent
DSIC (or higher levels). PGW also discussed liquidity as an important component of its operations. PGW is
in the process of evaluating the consolidation of facilities and expects a report by the end of the summer.

See the following sections of this Official Statement for discussion of (i) PGW’s infrastructure and
pipeline replacement activities: “THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM,” (ii) the DSIC and annual payment
to the City: “GAS SERVICE TARIFF AND RATES —Rates — Surcharge” and “— Ratemaking Methodology to
Account for Bond Covenants,” (iii) PGW governance: “PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS — Governmental
Oversight” and (iv) operation of existing facilities: “THE GAS WORKS FACILITIES.”

City Council’s Special Committee on Energy Opportunities for Philadelphia
By resolution adopted January 29, 2015, the Philadelphia City Council created a Special Committee
on Energy Opportunities for Philadelphia, the members of which are City Council members appointed by the

Council President. The Committee’s charge is to develop “strategies for developing Philadelphia and the
region as an energy hub” including by “soliciting conceptual proposals, holding public hearings, and
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conducting research.” The resolution states that the Committee’s “scope of work shall include, but not be
limited to, identifying strategies for enhancing the Philadelphia Gas Works through such means as reforming
its governance or entering into joint ventures and public-private partnerships.” The Committee has conducted
a hearing. No representation can be made regarding the future actions, if any, of the Committee or by the City
Council.

Effect of Sale of PGW or its Facilities

No sale of all or substantially all of PGW, its gas operations or its gas facilities can be completed
without providing for: (i) the payment and legal defeasance of the City’s Outstanding 1998 Ordinance Bonds
and Gas Works Notes, (ii) the termination of agreements, including interest rate exchange agreements, relating
to such Bonds and Notes, and (iii) the satisfaction by the City of all of its obligations under such agreements,
including the payment in full of associated termination costs. Any such sale would be subject to authorization
by Philadelphia’s City Council and approval by the PUC. (However, the City can sell PGW assets no longer
useful for gas operations.)

On March 2, 2014, following a competitive bidding process, the City entered into an agreement to sell
PGW to UIL Holdings Corporation, subject to authorization by City Council and the PUC. On December 4,
2014, UIL exercised its option to withdraw from the agreement after no authorizing ordinance was introduced
in City Council.

Other Federal, Commonwealth and City Oversight

In addition to the Gas Service Tariff (the “Gas Service Tariff”) and other rate related regulations
promulgated by the PUC (see “— Gas Service Tariff” herein), PGW’s operations and facilities are subject to
laws and regulations, including permitting and approval requirements, promulgated by federal agencies such as
the U.S. Department of Transportation, the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (“USEPA”) and the
Federal Emergency Management Agency, state entities such as the Pennsylvania Department of Labor and
Industry and the Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection (“PADEP”), the Pennsylvania
Emergency Management Agency and local entities such as the Philadelphia Water Department, the
Philadelphia Department of Public Health, the Philadelphia Air Management Services and the Philadelphia
Office of Emergency Management. In addition, the prices of gas transportation and storage are subject to
regulation by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (“FERC”), although PGW, its operations and its
facilities, are not.

Labor Relations

As of May 31, 2015, PGW had 1,585 employees, approximately 72% of whom are represented by the
Gas Works Employees’ Union of Philadelphia Local 686, Utility Workers’ Union of America, AFL-CIO
(“Local 686”). On June 3, 2015, PGW and the Officers of Local 686 tentatively agreed upon a new, five-year
Collective Bargaining Agreement. The tentative Collective Bargaining Agreement was approved by the
PFMC Board on June 15, 2015 and was ratified by the members of Local 686 on June 17, 2015. The approved
and ratified Collective Bargaining Agreement (the “Collective Bargaining Agreement”) became effective
retroactively to May 16, 2015.

The Collective Bargaining Agreement includes general wage increases of 2%, 2.5%, 2.5%, 2.5%, and
2.5% effective May 15, 2015, 2016, 2017, 2018, and 2019, respectively. The starting salaries for select entry
level union positions will be increased 10%. Union covered employees on the payroll at May 15, 2015 will be
protected from layoff for the term of the contract. The PGW employees in the Distribution Department and
Field Services Department, combined, must include a minimum staffing level for field classifications of 590
union covered field classified employees. The current combined complement of applicable union covered field
classified employees in these departments is approximately 650. Shift premiums will also be increased
approximately $0.25 per hour.
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The Collective Bargaining Agreement now permits PGW to freely employ outside contractors to
perform work on coated and unprotected steel mains, cast iron mains, and service lines through which gas is
flowing provided a base mileage of 22 miles of applicable main replacement is achieved through the course of
a Fiscal Year. (See “THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM.”) This work includes: installing mains of all
types and diameters, installing service lines, and rebuilding meter sets, and relighting systems inside
customer’s properties after main installation. Further, outside contractors may be used to perform main
abandonment projects regulated by the PUC, including shut-offs. Under the prior collective bargaining
agreement, this work could only be performed by Local 686 employees.

Insurance, Loss Reserves and Cost Recovery

PGW is exposed to various risks of loss related to: torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; injuries to employees and natural disasters. While self-insured for many risks, PGW
purchases insurance coverage when appropriate. PGW’s real and personal property is insured against the risk
of loss or damage in the amount of $250.0 million, subject to a $0.5 million per accident deductible at the
Richmond and Passyunk facilities and a $0.1 million per accident deductible at all other locations. There are
separate sublimits for flood and earth movement at select locations. PGW?’s property insurance includes
coverage for damages incurred from a terrorist attack. PGW does not carry first party environmental coverage
through which it could access direct payment of claims for environmental remediation costs. In addition,
PGW maintains boiler and machinery, blanket crime, directors and officers, fiduciary liability and other forms
of insurance.

PGW maintains $210.0 million in liability (including terrorism) coverage against the risk of damage to
property or injury to the public with a per occurrence self-insured retention of $1.0 million. PGW is a
qualified self-insured employer in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. In addition, PGW maintains Excess
Workers’ Compensation Liability coverage with a $0.5 million per occurrence retention and Privacy and
Security (Cyber) insurance.

PGW maintains $30.0 million Public Officials Liability (Directors and Officers Liability) policy with
a $0.5 million retention, as well as a $60.0 million Fiduciary Liability policy with a $0.2 million retention.

The above coverage descriptions are subject to the terms, conditions, and exclusions of the individual
policies.

Although PGW is principally insured through insurance carriers, it is required to cover any settlements
of claims that are excluded from coverage under the applicable insurance policies. PGW has established, in
accordance with the Gas Commission regulations, an estimated liability for such settlements to be paid in
Fiscal Year 2015.

See Notes 1(p) and 13 to PGW’s audited financial statements included in APPENDIX A -
“COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT FOR FISCAL YEARS ENDED AUGUST 31, 2014
AND 2013 OF THE PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS - Financial Section — Notes to Financial Statements.”

PGW has been deemed a “local agency” for purposes of the Pennsylvania Political Subdivision
Tort Claims Act (“Tort Claims Act”), 42 Pa.C.S. § 8541 et seq. As such, it is entitled to all protections
and immunities from liability provided under the Tort Claims Act.

Costs that exceed the applicable insurance coverage and liability reserves set aside for the applicable
events and any retainage that is in excess of such reserve are eligible for inclusion in the Base Rate (see “GAS
SERVICE TARIFF AND RATES — Rates — Base Rate”) although any increase in the Base Rate must be approved
by the PUC.
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Pension Plans and Other Postemployment Benefits

PGW maintains pension plans covering all eligible employees of PGW and PFMC, which provide
certain retirement, death and disability benefits. Retirement payments for vested employees commence (i) at
age 65 and five years of credited service, (ii) age 55 and 15 years of credited service, or (iii) without regard to
age, after 30 years of credited service. Union employees hired after May 21, 2011 and Non-union employees
hired after December 21, 2011 must make an irrevocable choice within 30 days of hire to participate in either
the defined benefit pension plan or the defined contribution plan. As of May 31, 2015, there were 1,585 full
time employees. Of these 1,585 employees, approximately 359 were hired after the respective dates noted
above. There are 299 Union employees and 60 Non-union employees in this group. The defined contribution
plan was chosen by 189 Union employees and 49 Non-union employees for a total of 238 employees. The
defined benefit plan was chosen by 110 Union employees and 11 Non-union employees for a total of 121
employees. However, this allocation may not be representative of the choices made by future employees.

PGW pays the full cost of medical, basic dental, and prescription coverage for employees and their
beneficiaries who retired prior to December 1, 2001. Employees who retire active after December 1, 2001 are
provided a choice of three plans at PGW’s expense and can elect to pay toward a more expensive plan. PGW
pays 100% of the cost of the prescription drug plan after drug co-pays. Union employees hired after May 21,
2011 and non-union employees hired after December 21, 2011 who retire are entitled to receive postretirement
medical, prescription, and dental benefits for five years only. Retirees hired prior to those dates receive
benefits until either their death or the death of their beneficiary, if such election is made.

See APPENDIX A — “COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT FOR FISCAL YEARS
ENDED AUGUST 31, 2014 AND 2013 OF THE PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS - Financial Section —
Notes to Financial Statements — (10) Pension Costs” and “— Notes to Financial Statements — (11) Other
Postemployment Benefits” and APPENDIX C — “THE CITY OF PHILADELPHIA GOVERNMENT AND
FINANCIAL INFORMATION — PGW Pension Plan” and “— PGW Post Employment Benefits” for further
information.

Treatment in Financial Statements

Under Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 27, Accounting for Pensions by
State and Local Governmental Employers (GASB 27), a net pension obligation was recorded on a
governmental employer’s balance sheet, only to the extent the employer did not contribute at least the
actuarially determined annual required contribution (ARC) each year. GASB 27 defines the ARC as the
amount sufficient to pay (i) the normal cost and (ii) the amortization of the unfunded actuarial liability over a
period not to exceed 30 years. Under GASB 27, PGW had no net pension obligation as of any of the years
ended August 31 presented in the “PGW BUDGETS, RATES AND FINANCES” section below.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Pensions — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27 (GASB 68) is effective for PGW’s Fiscal Years
beginning on and after September 1, 2014. The Government Accounting Standards Board has stated that the
primary objective of GASB 68 is to improve accounting and financial reporting by state and local governments
for pensions. GASB 68 will result in PGW’s net pension liability being reflected on its balance sheet,
measured as the portion of the present value of projected benefit payments to be provided to current and
inactive employees that is attributed to those employees’ past periods of service (total pension liability), less
the amount of the pension plan’s fiduciary net position. PGW estimates that its net pension liability was
approximately $200.0 million at September 1, 2014. PGW’s audited financial statements as of and for the year
ended August 31, 2015 will reflect the impact of GASB 68, and PGW expects to retrospectively apply its
provisions to all periods presented, which will result in certain amounts presented in APPENDIX A —
“COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT FOR FISCAL YEARS ENDED AUGUST 31, 2014
AND 2013 OF THE PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS” changing for the purposes of comparative analysis
when they are presented alongside the audited 2015 financial statements.
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The GASB approved on June 2, 2015 GASB Statement No. 75, which will replace GASB Statement
No 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions (GASB 45).
Under GASB 45, PGW recognizes each year the difference between its annual other postemployment benefit
(“OPEB”) cost and contributions made to the plan, including contributions made from the OPEB surcharge in
base bates (see “GAS SERVICE TARIFFS AND RATES — Rates — Base Rate” below) as an addition to its net
OPEB obligation included in other non-current liabilities in its balance sheet. PGW’s net OPEB obligation at
August 31, 2014 was $102.0 million. GASB 75 parallels the requirements of GASB 68 and will be effective
for years beginning after June 15, 2017, with earlier application encouraged. Under GASB 75, the difference
net OPEB liability will be recognized, representing the portion of the present value of projected benefit
payments to be provided to current and inactive employees that is attributed to those employees’ past periods
of service, less the amount of the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position.

Litigation

In the ordinary course of its business operations, PGW and PFMC are from time to time sued or
threatened with litigation. Most frequently such litigation alleges property damage or personal injury to third
parties. However, other forms of litigation also arise from time to time. Such litigation, among other possible
subjects, may include environmental-related actions and proceedings in which it may be alleged that the PGW
is liable for damages, including but not limited to property damage and bodily injury, or that the City should
pay fines or penalties or the costs of response or remediation, because of the alleged generation, transport, or
disposal of toxic or otherwise hazardous substances by the City, or the alleged disposal of such substances on
or to City-owned property. Other than as described in the next paragraph, (1) PGW is aware of no litigation
pending or threatened in which a final adverse determination, singly or in the aggregate, would have a material
adverse effect on PGW’s operations or financial condition and (2) PGW believes it has set aside sufficient
reserves to meet liabilities arising out of litigation to the extent not covered by insurance.

Plaintiffs, purporting to represent a class of non-owner-occupied residential and commercial property
owners, seek to enjoin the City from imposing or enforcing gas liens on their properties for unpaid charges
incurred by their tenants or others living in or utilizing the properties (the “Landlord Lien Suit”). Plaintiffs
allege that the City (which for this purpose includes the Philadelphia Gas Works) imposes such liens on their
properties without meaningful and timely notice to them or opportunity to be heard beforehand, in alleged
violation of their federal due process rights. Plaintiffs seek declaratory and injunctive relief, an order requiring
the City to release all such existing liens, and “such other relief deemed by the Court to be necessary or
appropriate.” The parties are currently engaged in discovery. The City believes that it has strong and credible

defenses to this suit and intends to defend the suit vigorously. The total amount of liens at issue far exceeds
$2,500,000.

Competition

Although under the Gas Choice Act all of PGW’s customers may choose among natural gas suppliers,
to date, only commercial, industrial and municipal customers have been able to make such choice. Residential
customers have not had the option to so choose because there has been no third-party gas supplier offering to
serve PGW’s residential customer base. PGW is developing a series of administration and payment billing and
handling procedures designed to encourage gas suppliers to offer gas to residential customers. If a customer
selects a gas provider other than PGW, such customer will be required to use PGW’s distribution (also referred
to as “transportation”) system and pay a fee for such use.

Table 4 shows a breakdown of the components of the average annual bill for residential customers.
Customers who select a provider other than PGW will pay the Distribution Rate and Universal Service and
Energy Conservation Surcharge components. Note, though, the table does not reflect the costs of natural gas
to a customer that selects a different provider.
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Table 4
AVERAGE RESIDENTIAL COSTS FOR ALL
CUSTOMERS IN A FISCAL YEAR"®

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
Distribution Rate® $560 $571 $554 $634 $658 $717 $682 $698 $785
Universal Service and
Energy Conservation
Surcharge 187 215 177 217 136 180 141 151 144
Gas Cost Rate 966 910 846 904 567 547 381 456 474
Total $1,713 $1,696 $1,577 $1,755 $1,361 $1,444 $1,204 $1,305 $1,403

" Source: PGW’s records.
@ See “GAS SERVICE TARIFF AND RATES — Rates.”
@ Includes the Restructuring and Consumer Education, Efficiency Cost Recovery, OPEB and DSIC surcharges.

PGW customers are classified as residential, commercial, or industrial, with residential and
commercial customers accounting for approximately 98% of PGW’s non-heating customer base and
approximately 85% of PGW’s heating customer base for Fiscal Year 2014. PGW holds in excess of 90% of
the home heating market in the City, with fuel oil constituting most of the remaining market share. PGW'’s
residential and small to medium-sized commercial market shares are expected to remain stable due to the costs
to customers of changing energy sources absent monetary incentives in the form of rebates and related
financing mechanisms. Costs of new or replacement residential gas equipment can be affected by many
factors such as the U.S. Department of Energy’s proposed regulations that could require newly-manufactured
gas furnaces have a higher efficiency rating than is currently required. The costs of acquiring such gas
furnaces as well as any necessary duct work could affect the willingness of customers to convert to or maintain
natural gas. Growth in PGW’s market share is expected to be limited absent an expansion in PGW’s service
territory beyond the City and an investment in marketing or incentive programs.

The average number of firm residential non-heating customers (including CRP (herein defined)
customers) is projected to decline from 22,988 in Fiscal Year 2015 to 12,972 in Fiscal Year 2020. The average
number of firm residential heating customers (including CRP customers) is projected to decline from 449,458
in Fiscal Year 2015 to 447,019 in Fiscal Year 2020. See APPENDIX B - “INDEPENDENT
CONSULTANT’S ENGINEERING REPORT - Financial Feasibility for the Thirteenth Series Bonds —
Projected Revenues — Projected Average Number of Customers.”

The historical average number of customers served monthly (for Fiscal Years 2011 through 2014) has
been approximately 499,000. PGW’s customer base is largest at the end of the peak heating season and
decreases afterwards as customers terminate their service until the next heating season begins. The total
average number of customers served is projected to decline from approximately 499,000 in Fiscal Year 2015
to approximately 490,000 in Fiscal Year 2020, a total decline of about 1.9% over five years, with most of this
decline in the number of non-heating residential customers served. PGW expects that the decline in customers
will not negatively impact PGW’s operating revenue.

PGW experiences greater competition in the larger commercial and industrial markets, with
interruptible customers (load balancing service, boiler and power plant service and interruptible transportation
sale customers) having the ability to utilize alternate energies (such as oil, propane, electric or steam) if the
equivalent price of natural gas is higher than the price of alternative energy. See “GAS SERVICE RATES AND
TARIFFS — Gas Service Tariff” herein. Growth in the PGW’s commercial and industrial customer base may
also be affected by regulations of the Clean Air Act as use of natural gas (instead of fuel oil) may help such
customers meet air emission operating permits. In addition, the lower cost of natural gas relative to alternative
energy sources has resulted in large commercial and industrial customers switching to natural gas.
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THE GAS WORKS FACILITIES

PGW maintains and operates a large number of facilities, including a distribution system of gas mains
and service lines, and meters, gas supply facilities (including City gate stations where natural gas is received
from pipeline transmission companies), centers to monitor and control gas flow and pressure, liquid natural gas
liquefaction, vaporization and gas storage facilities. For additional information see “NATURAL GAS SALES,
CosTs AND SUPPLIES — Gas Supply, Storage and Transportation.” Also, the PGW facilities are described
briefly below but more information about PGW’s facilities can be found in APPENDIX B — “INDEPENDENT
CONSULTANT’S ENGINEERING REPORT — The PGW Gas System.”

Gate Stations

Natural gas is received through nine City gate stations, eight of which are owned by the two interstate
pipeline companies serving PGW (Spectra Energy (“Spectra”) and Transcontinental Gas Pipe Line
Corporation (“Transco-Williams™”). The supply facilities also include a gas control center. The pressure
delivered to PGW’s distribution system is controlled at each of the City gate stations. A gas control center
monitors and controls gas flow and pressure from the nine City gate stations to the high-pressure distribution
system and provides direction to the LNG production plant operators concerning startup, shutdown and gas
flow output from the LNG facilities.

LNG Storage and Vaporization Facilities

There are two LNG facilities — one at the Passyunk Facility and one at the Richmond Facility. The
smaller satellite facility at the Passyunk facility includes LNG storage and vaporization. It receives liquefied
gas supply from the Richmond Plant via cryogenic trailer trucks. The Passyunk LNG facility consists of one
LNG storage tank of 3,066,000 gallons gross capacity (i.e., the equivalent of 253,300 thousand cubic feet
(“Mcf”) of natural gas) and two LNG vaporizers, each having a capacity of 45,000 Mcf per day, resulting in
45,000 Mcf per day planned capacity and 45,000 Mcf per day reserve.

The Richmond LNG plant is one of the largest peak shaving facilities in the United States. It includes
liquefaction, storage and vaporization facilities. Its liquefaction facility has a daily liquefaction capacity of
16,000 Mcf per day and utilizes open expander technology. This technology utilizes energy from the high
pressure interstate pipeline system to run the expander/compressors, significantly reducing fuel requirements.
In addition, this facility has the capability to liquefy natural gas year round providing greater operational
flexibility. Further, this technology utilizes significantly fewer components than the older modified cascade
facility and has resulted in lower operation and maintenance costs. The maximum capacity of the open
expander liquefaction facility of 16,000 Mcf per day is not available during the summer months because the
demand on the PGW system is not sufficient to create the throughput necessary to run at this capacity.

The two storage tanks at the Richmond Plant have a combined gross capacity of 48,970,000 gallons of
LNG (4,045,800 Mcf). Regasification of the liquid natural gas is accomplished with six vaporizers having a
total output of 463,000 Mcf per day plus 100,000 Mcf per day in reserve. The Richmond Plant also has
facilities to receive LNG from and deliver LNG to cryogenic trailer trucks.

PGW is considering expanding its current LNG facilities. See “POTENTIAL LNG FACILITIES
EXPANSION.”

Gas Holder Storage Facilities
The Richmond Plant has a low pressure gas holder. The Richmond holder has an operating capacity

of 1,000 Mcf. It was installed in the manufactured gas era and is in working order. It is used to enhance
operational flexibility of the LNG Plant.
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Distribution Facilities

The principal gas distribution facilities consist of approximately 3,024 miles of main, 475,800 service
lines, 202 regulator stations, 573,052 meters (of which 511,872 are active) and miscellaneous valves,
instruments, and other appurtenances. PGW operates eight different operating pressure systems; each system
is connected to the other by control regulators. The majority of PGW customers are served from the
low-pressure system (approximately 0.25 psig).

Approximately 50 percent (by length) of the gas mains are cast iron, 33 percent are steel, 4 percent are
ductile iron, and 13 percent are plastic. Of the steel mains, approximately 50 percent are wrapped, coated, and
cathodically protected. Approximately 31 percent of the service lines are steel (of which 17 percent are
cathodically protected) and 69 percent are plastic. See ‘“THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM” for
information regarding PGW’s gas main replacement program.

Data Center

A data center, including a new dedicated backup generator, two fully independent or redundant power
supply circuits fed from two new fully redundant battery powered uninterruptible power supplies. The
modular datacenter design allows for information technology equipment load growth such as future
supervisory control and data acquisition equipment and telecom switching equipment and provides increased
redundancy of cooling systems to essentially four systems.

Combined Heat and Power

A 200 kW natural gas-fired micro-turbine combined heat and power (“CHP”) system produces
electricity, heat and cooling for the 800 West Montgomery Avenue building. PGW estimates that
approximately half of the building’s electricity is produced by the CHP at approximately half the cost of that
purchased from the local distribution grid. Waste heat from the micro-turbine’s exhaust is converted via an
absorber chiller into building cooling providing additional annual operating savings. The CHP system is also
used by PGW marketing to demonstrate the advantages of CHP systems to customers in the growing CHP
service segment.

Other Facilities

In addition to administrative offices, PGW has facilities for distribution and field service dispatching,
gas control dispatching, equipment and automobile repair, training, telecommunications, warehousing and
metal fabrication.

NATURAL GAS SALES, COSTS AND SUPPLIES
PGW Gas Sales and Natural Gas Costs

PGW serves residential, commercial and industrial customers with residential and commercial
customers accounting for approximately 98% of PGW’s non-heating customer base and approximately 85% of
PGW’s heating customer base for Fiscal Year 2014. Historical average number of customers (for Fiscal Years
2010 through 2014) has been approximately 498,000. References to gas “sales,” “revenues” and “receipts” in
this Official Statement generally refer to respectively, volume of gas, billings for gas delivered and payments
received from billed customers. See “PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS — Competition.”

PGW provides three categories of heating or non-heating services: (1) firm service to residential,
commercial or industrial customers who are given an applicable general service rate, municipal service rate or
Philadelphia Housing Authority service rate, (2) interruptible service (mostly boiler and power plant service or
load balancing service) to customers who must have an alternate energy source because their service may be
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interrupted and (3) transportation service to approximately 3,786 customers, as of August 31, 2014, who do not
use PGW as its gas provider. For Fiscal Year 2014, firm customers constituted approximately 99% of PGW’s
customer base and account for 95% of its sales volume (representing gas delivered to customers). For Fiscal
Years 2015 through 2020, PGW projects that average firm non-heating customers will decline from 27,377 to
17,054, and total average heating customers will decline from 468,157 to 467,059 and total average
transportation customers will increase from 3,786 to 5,655. See Table 9 in APPENDIX B — “INDEPENDENT
CONSULTANT’S ENGINEERING REPORT - Financial Feasibility for the Thirteenth Series Bonds —
Projected Revenues — Historical and Projected Average Number of Customers.”

For the twelve month period ended August 31, 2014, approximately 78.9% of gas revenues were
derived from residential customers, approximately 18.6% were derived from commercial and industrial
customers and approximately 2.5% were derived from municipal and housing authority customers. Gas
revenues represent gas for which PGW has billed customers.

PGW?’s gas sales and gas costs reflect a variety of factors, including natural gas utilization, natural gas
prices, pipeline demand charges and refunds, and exercise by customers of their rights under the Gas Choice
Act to purchase natural gas from providers other than PGW, though such customers will be required to use
PGW’s distribution (also referred to as “transportation”) system and pay a fee for such use. To date, gas
choice has not been available to residential customers (see “PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS — Competition™).
Such choice has been available to commercial, industrial and municipal customers. Residential customers
have not had the option to so choose because there has been no third-party gas supplier offering to serve
PGW?’s residential customer base. See “Competition.” The temperature and other weather conditions greatly
affect the gas usage of PGW’s heating customers. Colder than normal weather conditions result in a greater
demand for natural gas and warmer than normal weather conditions result in a lower demand for natural gas.

Total sales by PGW’s customer type, net of transportation sales, during each of the past five Fiscal
Years ended August 31, are shown in the following Table 5:

Table 5
PERCENT OF GAS SALES?
BY CUSTOMER TYPE
THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED AUGUST 31"

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Residential 78.9 78.4 78.0 77.5 77.0
Commercial and Industrial 18.6 19.1 19.3 19.8 20.3
Municipal and Housing Authority 25 25 2.7 2.7 2.7
TOTAL 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0

' Source: PGW’s records.
@ Sales represent gas delivered to customers.

Total gas sales for PGW are comprised of sales to firm and interruptible customers. Firm customers
receive gas service under various schedules which anticipate no interruptions in the delivery of natural gas.
Firm sales represented 98% of total gas sales by volume in Fiscal Year 2014. Interruptible sales service is
offered to customers under schedules or contracts which anticipate and permit interruptions on short notice,
generally in peak load periods. Interruptible gas service, which is sold to high volume commercial and
industrial customers, represented 2% of total gas sales in Fiscal Year 2014. For information regarding PGW’s
gas sales by customer and service type, see “PGW BUDGETS AND FINANCES — Selected Operating Data
Regarding Customers and Gas Sales — Table 12 — Selected Operating Data Regarding Customers and Gas
Sales.”
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During the five-year period Fiscal Year 2010 through Fiscal Year 2014, natural gas sales revenues
were affected by the commodity price of natural gas and heating demand caused by weather. The price of
natural gas affects sales revenue because a substantial portion of PGW’s revenue is the recovery of natural gas
costs. The commodity price of natural gas during this period was trending downward. The major cause of the
downward pressure on natural gas prices was the volume of natural gas from additional supply coming on line
from drilling activity in the Appalachian shale region, over the past several years. Degree days experienced
during this period varied from a low of 3,037 (Fiscal Year 2012) to a high of 4,405 (Fiscal Year 2014). The
30-year average degree days for the period ending in Fiscal Year 2014 were 4,245. Fiscal Years with higher
degree days would indicate more demand for heat and higher sales volumes. Sales volumes for the period
range from a low of 43 Bcf in Fiscal Year 2012 to a high of 55 Bcf in Fiscal Year 2011.

The cost of natural gas is PGW’s single largest expense. During the five-year period Fiscal Year 2010
through Fiscal Year 2014, natural gas expenses averaged $295.6 million, with a low of $233.7 million in Fiscal
Year 2012 and a high of $354.0 million in Fiscal Year 2010. Information regarding PGW’s natural gas costs
and operating revenues during each of the past five Fiscal Years ended August 31, is shown in the following
Tables. For information regarding PGW’s natural gas sales volume, see the table entitled “Sales Volume” in
APPENDIX A — “COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT FOR FISCAL YEARS ENDED
AUGUST 31, 2014 AND 2013 OF THE PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS - Statistical Section.”

Table 6
NATURAL GAS COSTS FOR THE FISCAL
YEARS ENDED AUGUST 31"
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Natural Gas Costs ($ thousands) $304,040 $255,496 $233,709 $330,926 $353,998
% Increase (Decline) from Prior
Fiscal Year 19.0 9.3 (29.4) (6.5) (35.1)
% Natural Gas Utilization
Increase (Decline) from Prior
Fiscal Year Bcf® 2.8 7.2 (12.0) 3.2 (3.7)
% Natural Gas Price
Increase (Decrease) 12.8 (6.3) 9.7 (12.0) (30.6)
Pipeline Demand Charges
($ thousands) $63,564 $65,901 $66,236 $72,091 $71,675
Pipeline Refunds ($ thousands) $4,441 $86 $10 $123 $225

M Source: PGW’s records.
@ Billion cubic feet.
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Table 7
OPERATING REVENUES
HEAT AND NON-HEAT CUSTOMERS
FISCAL YEARS 2010 THROUGH 2014 ®
(THOUSANDS OF U.S. DOLLARS)

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Firm non-heat $ 30,324 $ 31,401 $ 33,282 $ 36,779 $ 37,932
Interruptible gas sales 9,068 4,703 3,338 14,431 12,503
Billed non-heating 39,392 36,104 36,620 51,210 50,435
GCR ¥ non-heating adjustment 218 (841) 434 228 908
Total non-heating 39,610 35,263 37,054 51,438 51,343
Billed heating 660,942 605,761 519,950 659,681 630,970
GCR heating adjustment 6,174 (12.407) 4,244 5,360 16,742
Total billed heating 667,116 593,354 524,194 665,041 647,712
Weather normalization adjustment

(WNA) (11,810) 8,060 44,016 1,696 12,970
Total heating 655,306 601,414 568,210 666,737 660,682
Total gas sold 694,916 636,677 605,264 718,175 712,025
Firm transportation (FT) non-heat **’ 5,671 5,194 3,861 4,582 3,306
FT heating 23,330 19,665 14,037 14,541 13,254
WNA FT (488) 331 1,412 128 455
Total heating FT 22,842 19,996 15,449 14,669 13,709
Total FT 28,513 25,190 19,310 19,251 17,015
Unbilled adjustment 5 1,398 (6,201) 2,393 3,457
GTS: transportation'” 1,173 1,050 1,086 1,147 1,928
GTS (customer/customer choice) 10,278 9,372 7,955 8,333 7,421
GTS (supplier/customer choice) 11 478 170 (790) (105)
GTS (firm supplier) 1,242 989 803 759 601
Total gas operating revenues $ 736.138 $ 675,154 $ 628,387  $749.268 $ 742,342

" Source: PGW’s records.

@ GCR=Gas Cost Rate.

@ Firm transportation (FT) program began in Fiscal Year 2007.

“ GTS=Gas Transportation System.

© Also see Table 11 in APPENDIX B — “INDEPENDENT CONSULTANT’S ENGINEERING REPORT - Financial
Feasibility for the Thirteenth Series Bonds — Projected Revenues — Historical and Projected Revenues.”

Gas Supply, Storage and Transportation

PGW uses models that project customer natural gas requirements for the coldest hour, day and year,
using its records since the mid-1970s. These projections form the basis for PGW’s decisions regarding
capacity commitments for pipeline supply, storage and transportation contracting. In order to deliver gas to its
customers, PGW must purchase gas and also arrange capacity on the gas pipelines that deliver gas from the
suppliers, many of which can be as far away as the Gulf of Mexico, to the City gates.

The cost of gas supply is a function of the price paid and the quantity purchased, both of which are
variable. While PGW can set the timing of gas purchases, the prices paid are largely determined in a very
competitive and sometimes volatile marketplace. However, PGW uses offsite storage facilities and LNG
storage to lower its supply costs.

PGW expects its supplies of natural gas and LNG to be adequate to meet its projected demand on the
coldest peak day, hour and year. See Table 2 and Table 3 of APPENDIX B - “INDEPENDENT
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CONSULTANT’S ENGINEERING REPORT — PGW Gas Supply — Supply and Demand Balance” for
PGW’s historical and projected peak day supply and demand and projected annual supply and demand.

Supply

To satisfy the projected natural gas requirements, PGW enters into winter-only and summer only
supply arrangements with approximately a dozen gas suppliers. These arrangements are base load supply that
PGW must purchase. The price of gas under these supply arrangements can be set in months prior to
scheduled delivery if PGW determines there is an advantage to doing so, or the price can be set at an index for
the month of delivery. For winter 2014-2015, PGW purchases under these winter supply arrangements
provided approximately 46% of PGW’s daily firm transportation entitlements. During that same period,
approximately 25% of PGW’s natural gas supply portfolio was purchased in the spot market on a one hundred
percent gas daily pricing basis that allowed for daily volumetric changes. The source of the remaining 29% of
the gas usage was gas in storage facilities, including from three servicers that store and can deliver natural gas
through their pipelines and from PGW’s LNG facilities, as an additional source of supply.

Transportation

All of PGW’s gas purchases are ultimately transported from the sources of supply to the City gates
through either Spectra pipelines or Transco-Williams pipelines. Injections and withdrawals of gas from off-
system storage also rely on these two pipelines. Spectra and Transco-Williams each account for
approximately half of PGW’s total contract pipeline capacity of 436,295 Mcf per day. The major contracts for
Spectra and Transco-Williams transportation services are being renewed automatically on a year-to-year basis.
See Table 1 of APPENDIX B — “INDEPENDENT CONSULTANT’S ENGINEERING REPORT — PGW Gas
Supply — Transportation and Storage Services” for a summary of PGW’s existing transportation and storage
agreements with Spectra and Transco-Williams.

Storage

Due to the highly seasonal nature of PGW’s load (demand), gas purchased and delivered through the
pipeline transportation service is supplemented by the use of storage services. The principal PGW natural gas
supply facilities include nine City gate stations owned in large part by Spectra and Transco-Williams as well as
two LNG plants owned by the City. PGW’s supply facilities also include a gas control center, a deactivated
propane/air plant, and one gas holder. During periods when PGW’s load is less than the contracted
transportation service, PGW may utilize the available capacity to purchase gas for delivery to off-system
storage facilities or to liquefy such gas for storage in its LNG facilities. To the extent that PGW is able to
withdraw gas from off-system storage and local LNG facilities its need to reserve capacity on pipelines to
serve higher seasonal loads. In addition, gas purchased during the lower cost non-winter period, if it can be
stored and redelivered from storage during the winter, will be less costly than gas purchased during the
generally higher cost winter period. Further, market area storage provides PGW with increased security that
gas will be available for customers when needed.

Of PGW’s total contract daily storage withdrawal capacity of 264,067 thousand cubic feet (“Mcf”) per
day, services provided using the Spectra facilities account for 89,274 Mcf per day, or 34%, and services
provided using the Transco-Williams facilities account for 174,793 Mcf per day, or 66%. Certain storage
contracts do not include bundled transportation and volumes from these storages must be transported using a
transportation contract from a different provider. In APPENDIX B — “INDEPENDENT CONSULTANT’S
ENGINEERING REPORT,” see “The PGW Gas System — Supply Facilities,” Table 1 in “ — PGW Gas
Supply — Transportation and Storage Services,” “— LNG Facilities” and Table 3 in “ — Supply and Demand
Balance.”
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Transportation and Storage Costs

During Fiscal Year 2015, transportation and storage capacity costs are estimated to account for
approximately 25 percent of the total gas supply expenses of $243.0 million. The prices paid for these services
are determined by long-term contracts and tariff rates regulated by the FERC. These components of the gas
supply cost represent the purchase of capacity, which generally remains relatively fixed, and is not expected to
vary directly with the volumes of gas purchased.

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS
General

PGW’s operations and facilities are subject to numerous laws and regulations, including permitting
and approval requirements, promulgated by federal agencies such as the US DOT, USEPA and the Federal
Emergency Management Agency, by state entities such as the Pennsylvania Department of Labor and Industry
and the PADEP, and by local entities such as the Philadelphia Water Department, the Philadelphia Department
of Public Health, Air Management Services, and the Philadelphia Office of Emergency Management. These
requirements are subject to change and additional or different requirements may be imposed upon PGW in the
future. PGW’s Technical Compliance Department routinely tracks and notifies relevant personnel regulatory
compliance requirements. See APPENDIX B — “INDEPENDENT CONSULTANT’S REPORT — The PGW
Gas System — PGW Technical Compliance Department.” No assurances can be given that PGW will be able
to fully comply with changes to existing laws or requirements, or that compliance with such changes in
requirements will not materially increase PGW’s capital or operating costs, or have a material adverse effect
on Gas Works Revenues.

PGW (and its predecessors) has been in operation for more than 175 years, and many of its current
facilities (the “Current Sites”) and other locations where PGW had previously operated facilities (“Legacy
Sites”) were built decades ago. As a result of preliminary internal environmental evaluations of its Current
Site, PGW believes that several Current Sites that had been used in gas manufacturing, contain contaminants
from those operations or from other sources. Additionally, certain equipment and fixtures that PGW removed
from service years ago may no longer comply with current environmental requirements. The Current Sites are
comprised of the Tioga facility (the “Tioga Facility”), the Belfield station (the “Belfield Facility”), the
Diamond meter shop (the “Diamond Facility”), the Richmond natural gas processing and distribution facility
(the “Richmond Facility”’) and the Passyunk natural gas processing and distribution facility (the “Passyunk
Facility”). In order to address these issues, PGW and the City voluntarily approached the Pennsylvania
Department of Environmental Protection (“PADEP”) and proposed to resolve these issues at the Current Sites
under PADEP’s Land Recycling and Environmental Remediation Standards Act (“Act 2”).

To determine the extent necessary to remediate environmental conditions impacting its Current Sites,
PGW commissioned environmental site assessment studies that were conducted by an environmental
consulting firm (the “Firm”) in 2002, 2003 and 2004. In 2004, PGW received a set of five remedial
investigation reports by the Firm that were based upon the findings of the environmental site assessment
studies. = These Remedial Investigation Reports (as such term is defined in Act 2) concerned the
characterization of site soil and/or groundwater contaminated with volatile organic compounds (“VOCs”) and
semi-VOCs at the Current Sites. In each case, the Remedial Investigation Reports documented site impacts
and recommend remediation at the applicable site to meet the site-specific standards permitted under Act 2.

Based on the Remedial Investigation Reports, at the end of 2004, PGW submitted to the PADEP
PGW’s Notice of Intent to Remediate (“NIR’’) with copies of the Remedial Investigation Reports for review.
The remediation actions anticipated by PGW at the time included, but were not limited to, additional site
characterizations, risk screenings, groundwater monitoring, soil vapor studies, underground storage tank
removals, above ground tank removal, removal of other above ground fixtures, impacted soil removal, and
product recovery.
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Beginning in 2005, PGW conducted a series of public meetings to inform the public of PGW’s
upcoming remediation projects at the Current Sites, and also to address any specific concerns raised by local
residents regarding PGW’s future remediation plans, as required by the Public Involvement Plan Process. As a
result of the public meetings, PGW developed a project schedule and budget to address and conduct any
necessary remedial work for the impacted Current Sites over the next five years. PGW expects that this will
provide PGW with allocated resources in a manner calculated to avoid any material adverse effect on PGW or
on PGW’s revenues. Nevertheless, until the project schedule work plans are finalized with the PADEDP, it is
not possible to determine what the costs of several remediation projects will be.

PGW has budgeted $10.5 million to address and conduct remedial work for impacted PGW properties
for Fiscal Year 2015 and Fiscal Years 2015 through 2020 to the extent such costs are not included in other
budget line items. PGW expects that this will provide PGW with required resources without causing a
material adverse effect on PGW or on PGW’s revenues. However, until the work plans are finalized with the
PADEP and other agencies with jurisdiction over PGW, and remediation activities are completed, costs of
several remediation projects cannot be determined.

Current Activities

Currently, an air sparge soil vapor extraction system is under construction at the Passyunk Facility and
similar engineering controls will be evaluated for other facilities. At this time, PGW does not plan to remove
source material from the Passyunk Facility, the Richmond Facility or the Tioga Facility. The Passyunk
Facility, Richmond Facility and Tioga Facility are being monitored on an ongoing basis for development of
remedial action work plans for future submittal to PADEP in connection with its Act 2 program. Pursuant to
the requirements of the Pennsylvania Storage Tank and Spill Prevention Act of 1989 (the “Spill Prevention
Act”), PGW is currently conducting monitored natural attenuation as a remedial approach with respect to
storage tanks at the Belfield Facility and the Diamond Facility with the goal of attaining site closure for past
storage tank issues at both facilities by Fiscal Year 2018. The Spill Prevention Act establishes requirements,
standards and procedures for removal and closure of storage tanks, to identify and contain existing
contamination and to prevent future releases from storage systems no longer in service.

Estimates for Financial Statement Purposes

The remediation activities described above at the Current Sites are estimated at a net present value of
$34.7 million (as of August 31, 2014) for the 30 year period beginning that date. See APPENDIX A -
“COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT FOR FISCAL YEARS ENDED AUGUST 31, 2014
AND 2013 OF THE PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS - Financial Section — Note 1(s)” attached hereto for a
description of PGW’s method for estimating remediation obligations.

Other Estimate of Environmental Remediation Costs

For purposes of insurance settlement negotiations (see Insurance Settlements below), PGW also
commissioned another study with different assumptions regarding the type and scope of necessary work and
estimate of remediation costs with respect to the Current Sites and Legacy Sites. The higher estimate reflects
what PGW considers could be needed at both Current Sites and Legacy Sites if source removal were
necessary.

$333 Million Insurance Settlement Estimate of Remediation Costs

A second estimate for environmental remediation costs dated as of 2003 and updated as of October
2012, is for $333 million for the 30 year period beginning October 2012. It was initially prepared in 2003 by a
consultant to PGW for insurance settlement purposes to be a “‘reasonable worst case’ or ‘plausible worst case’
scenario,” rather than an approach that estimates the environmental remediation costs of scenarios thought
most likely to occur or associated with a preferred remedy. It was updated in 2012 primarily to reflect current

45



remediation pricing. It generally includes all of the activities described under the lower cost estimate.
However, recognizing that older processing for producing gas and older storage methods make it possible that
contaminants exist at the Legacy Sites formerly associated with PGW or its predecessors and located
throughout the City and at some of the Current Sites, it expands the properties included in the remediation
costs estimate to both the Current Sites and the Legacy Sites. These more comprehensive and costly
remediations than assumed in the lower estimate would include, as appropriate, removal or stabilization of
contaminated soils, plus pumping and treating groundwater to remove contaminants and prevent migration,
excavation as off-site thermal treatment of contaminated soils and attention to ground water contamination.
PGW does not currently plan to undertake many of the activities detailed in this estimate.

Actual Costs May Differ Substantially from Estimates

Estimates of remediation costs may change substantially as additional information becomes available
regarding the level of contamination at specific sites, available remediation methods, and changes in price,
technology, proposed land use, or applicable regulations.

Other Environmental Activities
Clean Air Act

The Clean Air Act (as amended, the “Clean Air Act”) requires the County of Philadelphia (which is
coterminous with the City) to submit to the USEPA a State Implementation Plan (the “State Implementation
Plan”) revision demonstrating that the County has implemented all necessary Reasonably Available Control
Technology (as defined in the Clean Air Act) controls on all major stationary sources of VOC and oxides of
nitrogen. Based on reports submitted annually by PGW to the US DOT, PGW experienced an average of
2,645 main leaks per year from Fiscal Years 2010 through 2014. The Philadelphia Office of Sustainability
currently includes the methane released during PGW’s main leaks in the City’s carbon budget. As part of
PGW’s capital improvement program, PGW is replacing portions of its mains with plastic pipes. See “THE
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM” for information regarding PGW’s gas main replacement program.

On April 18, 2012, the USEPA finalized regulations under the federal Clean Air Act to reduce air
pollution from the oil and natural gas industry. The final rules are expected to, among other things, reduce air
toxics and emissions of methane, a potent greenhouse gas. Distribution lines such as PGW’s mains have not
been affected by the final rules.

Other Remediation Activities

PGW is conducting abatement of asbestos-containing materials, lead-based paint and mold at certain
of its facilities. PGW is replacing customer gas regulators with mercury-free regulators. PGW conducts other
remediation and abatement projects as needed in conjunction with construction and capital projects among
PGW locations and facilities to ensure health and safety during operations and to meet federal, State, and City
regulatory requirements. It is equally sharing the costs of remediation of a former storage facility with the
present owner.

Voluntary Activities

No contaminants related to the manufacture of natural gas and other gas works operations were found
at or above actionable levels in soil vapor tests conducted voluntarily by PGW at properties adjacent to the
Passyunk Facility. Although the tests revealed the presence of chloroform, PGW does not believe that the
chloroform was generated by PGW activities. Nonetheless, PGW voluntarily has been assisting USEPA’s
ongoing soil vapor studies of the affected properties.
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Regulatory Actions and Suits
Current Sites

With respect to the Current Sites, except with respect to underground storage tanks which are subject
to mandatory remediation, and minor fines included in “— Violations” below, PGW has not received any
orders for mandatory remediation measures or been fined or sanctioned by any environmental regulatory
agency, nor has it received any third-party claim for bodily harm or property damage based on environmental
issues at the Current Sites. PGW is not aware of any river sediment claim or other natural resource claims.

Legacy Sites

PGW has not made any on-site investigation or data analysis of the Legacy Sites nor has it assessed
the Legacy Sites for soil, ground water and soil vapor environmental impact. PGW has not conducted
environmental remediation or been asked to conduct environmental remediation at any Legacy Site, other than
a third-party claim which the claimant has not pursued. PGW is not aware of any river sediment claim or other
natural resource claims. It has not been fined or sanctioned for any Legacy Site, nor has it received any third-
party claim for bodily harm or property damage at the Legacy Sites.

Violations

From 2002, PGW has paid less than $175,000 in the aggregate in fines for notice of violations and
penalties associated with permit and regulatory violations from the US EPA, the Philadelphia Water
Department, and Air Management Services. The majority of such fines were incurred in connection with
USEPA requests for settlements under the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and
Liability Act resulting from issues at off-site disposal facilities.

Insurance Settlements

PGW does not currently carry first party environmental coverage which it could use for environmental
remediation costs. However, PGW’s pre-1986 excess liability policies included certain coverage for
environmental liability to third parties. In 2004, PGW began negotiating a buy-out of those policies with the
various carriers, agreeing to forgo any future recovery for third party claims in exchange for obtaining funds
for environmental remediation. Through January 2015, PGW has received $15.1 million in net negotiated
settlements from various carriers.

Recovery of Environmental Remediation Costs

The costs of environmental remediation are included in the category of items eligible for inclusion in
the Base Rate. See “GAS SERVICE TARIFF AND RATES — Rates — Base Rate.”

Uncertainty

Any analysis of the costs and requirements of environmental impacts is subject to certain variables,
including the possible future discovery of pre-existing unknown pollution conditions, assertions of claims by
government agencies or private litigants, changes in laws, administrative policies, or judicial rulings that create
new environmental liabilities or exacerbate existing ones. PGW reserves the right to all defenses of liability
with respect to environmental impacts, including, without limitation, seeking contribution from previous
operators and/or adjacent site owners.
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Gas Service Tariff

GAS SERVICE TARIFF AND RATES

PGW recovers the costs of providing natural gas, including the cost of owning and operating its
various facilities, funding its various programs, satisfying the Rate Covenant, and providing for amounts
sufficient to operate on a day-to-day basis, together with appropriate coverage, through the rates set forth in its
Gas Service Tariff approved by and on file with the PUC.

The following is a brief description of PGW’s rate requests to the PUC and the results of those

requests:
PGW RATE CHANGE REQUESTS TO PUC"
Type of
Relief (Base
Date of Rate or Amount of Relief Date Relief Amount of
Request Surcharge) Requested Purpose Granted Relief Granted
8/8/2000 Base Rate $52 million Interim Rate relief 11/22/2000 $11 million
1/5/2001 Base Rate $65 million Rate relief 10/12/2001 $22.6 million
2/25/2002 Base Rate $60 million Base rate relief 4/11/2002 $36 million
FY 2002 WNA Charge/(Credit) Weather 8/8/2002 Approved
Normalization
Adjustment
12/22/2006 Base Rate $100 million Rate relief 9/28/2007 $25 million
11/14/2008 Base Rate $60 million Extraordinary rate 12/18/2008 $60 million
relief
12/18/2009 Base Rate $60 million Maintain 7/29/2010 $60 million
extraordinary rate granted in 2008
relief made permanent
12/18/2009 Surcharge $42.5 million OPEB funding 7/29/2010 $16 million
annually annually through
2015
12/18/2009 Surcharge $58.3 million Syr. Demand Side 7/29/2010 Cost recovery
Management Phase
I (DSM)?
1/18/2013 Surcharge DSIC: 5% of non- Distribution system  5/9/2013 5% of non-gas
gas revenues repair, improvement revenues from
& replacement 2010 base year
estimated to
generate $22
million
December 2014 Surcharge Automatic DSM Phase I Hearing Under review
adjustment clause expected with the PUC
extension summer
2015
February 2015 Surcharge $16 million Continued OPEB Expected Under review
annually funding August 2015 with the PUC
04/10/2015 Surcharge $10.7 million DSM Phase I; 5/7/15 $10.7 million
extend DSM Phase I

™ Does not include GCR changes.
@ “DSM” is a PGW program offering services to assist its customers to get the best value for their energy expenses.

until Order is

rendered on Phase II

PGW?’s current Gas Service Tariff sets forth the rules and regulations and practices for gas service and
the rates PGW is allowed to charge for such service, including the Base Rate, the Gas Cost Rate (herein
defined) and various adjustments and surcharges. See APPENDIX B — “INDEPENDENT CONSULTANT’S
ENGINEERING REPORT - Rates and Tariffs — Existing Rates” and Table 7 within such section.
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PGW?’s rates are unbundled such that any customer may choose a commodity supplier that is different
from its distribution provider. As described under “PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS — Competition,” to date, there
has not been a third-party natural gas supplier available to residential customers. PGW’s rates generally
include a customer charge component, distribution charge component and Gas Cost Rate. Under the
unbundled rates, PGW’s margin from firm customers is not materially impacted by whether a customer
chooses a third party supplier or elects to continue taking the fully bundled service. A customer will continue
to pay the distribution, customer charges and surcharges even if the customer does not purchase gas service.

See Figure 3, “Components of PGW Gas Cost Rate” and Figure 4, “Components of PGW
Surcharges,” in APPENDIX B — “INDEPENDENT CONSULTANT’S ENGINEERING REPORT.”

Rates

The following types of rates are set forth in the Gas Service Tariff. Each is discussed below in more
detail.

e Base Rate (Customer Charge): the rate charged by PGW, using the cash flow method, to produce a
targeted amount of revenue for PGW based on various assumptions, including projected revenues and
expenses.

® GCR (Gas Cost Rate): the current cost of natural gas and all raw materials that are passed through to
customers. GCR consists of the purchased gas costs, transportation costs and off-system storage costs,
minus the cost directly paid by interruptible sales customers, all subject to various adjustments for
actual versus projected values and certain credits.

¢ Distribution Charge: a component of a customer’s rate regardless of whether a customer chooses to
purchase its gas from PGW or an alternate supplier.

e Surcharges: Several surcharges are imposed for specific purposes:

e Universal service and energy conservation (recovery of social program costs)

e Restructuring and consumer education (recovery of transition costs to customer choice)
e Efficiency cost recovery (recovery of energy efficiency programs)

e  Other post employment benefits (recovery of OPEB trust contribution costs)

¢ Distribution system improvements charge (DSIC — recovery of capital costs associated with a
portion of PGW’s main replacement program)

¢  Weather Normalization Adjustment (“WNA”). Since 2002, the delivery charge (not including
GCR or surcharges) has been subject to a WNA which mitigates the risk of a warmer than normal
winter season. The WNA adjusts the customer bills upward or downward to reflect differences
between actual Heating Degree Days (“HDD”) and normal HDDs. (For PGW, a HDD is a measure of
the deviation of daytime temperature from a predefined standard, which PGW has projected based on
a standard that translates to a design day average temperature of 0° F. A “design day” is a 24-hour
period of the greatest theoretical demand for gas.

Base Rate

The Base Rate is regulated by the PUC, which is obligated by the Gas Choice Act to use the cash flow
methodology to determine PGW’s “just and reasonable” rates. Pursuant to the PUC’s April 2010 Order and

49



Final Policy Statement’ (the “2010 PUC Policy Statement”) with respect to PGW, the determination of just
and reasonable rates includes satisfaction of the subsidiary obligation to provide revenue allowances from rates
adequate to cover its reasonable and prudent operating expenses, depreciation allowances and debt service, as
well as sufficient margins to meet bond coverage requirements and other internally generated funds over and
above its bond coverage requirements, as the PUC deems appropriate and in the public interest, for purposes
such as capital improvements, retirement of debt and working capital.

In determining just and reasonable rate levels for PGW, the PUC will consider, among other relevant
factors: (1) PGW’s test year-end and (as a check) projected future levels of non-borrowed year-end cash, (2)
available short term borrowing capacity and internal generation of funds to fund construction, (3) debt to
equity ratios and financial performance of similarly situated utility enterprises, (4) level of operating and other
expenses in comparison to similarly situated utility enterprises, (5) level of financial performance needed to
maintain or improve PGW’s bond rating thereby permitting PGW to access the capital markets at the lowest
reasonable costs to customers over time, (6) PGW’s management quality, efficiency and effectiveness, (7)
service quality and reliability and (8) the effect on universal service. See “GAS SERVICE TARIFF AND RATES —
Rates — Ratemaking Methodology to Account for Bond Covenants™.

To effect any increase to the Base Rate, PGW files a proposed revision to its existing Gas Service
Tariff with the PUC setting forth the proposed new rates and effective date, and detailing the data supporting
the necessity of the proposed change. In any proceeding upon the motion of the PUC involving any proposed
or existing PGW rate or in any proceedings involving any proposed increase in rates, PGW has the burden of
proof to show that the rate involved is just and reasonable. A requested rate increase is initially suspended for
60 days and may be suspended for up to seven additional months while the PUC investigates and determines
whether the increase is justified. Part of the investigation includes hearings in which interested parties can
participate. After the end of the suspension period required by the Public Utility Code, in its discretion, the
PUC may adjust PGW’s rate increase request on the basis of the data submitted and consistent with the
requirements of the Public Utility Code and, in particular, the Gas Choice Act. If the PUC approves the Base
Rate increase, it will determine how to allocate the increase among the different classes of customers.

Since coming under the PUC’s jurisdiction in 2000, PGW has filed six requests seeking increases in
the Base Rate totaling $337.0 million (which amount includes multiple requests for the same or similar costs)
and the PUC has granted PGW Base Rate increases totaling approximately $154.6 million. Such increases
have included requests to cover various financing costs incurred by PGW, including costs to improve its
financial position, enhance its ability to access the financial markets, maintain its bond rating and provide
liquidity and financial flexibility, and a portion of the costs of certain OPEB liabilities. See “PGW RATE
CHANGE REQUESTS TO PUC” above. Also see APPENDIX B — “INDEPENDENT CONSULTANT’S
ENGINEERING REPORT - Rates and Tariffs — Regulation” for a description of cases and orders relating to
PGW’s Base Rate since 2008, including the requests for continuation of the annual OPEB surcharge.

Gas Cost Rate

The current cost of natural gas and all raw materials are passed through to customers through the Gas
Cost Rate, which consists of the purchased gas costs, transportation costs and off-system storage costs, minus
the cost directly paid by interruptible sales customers, all subject to various adjustments for actual versus
projected values and certain credits. The Gas Cost Rate can change monthly and represents a substantial
portion of a typical heating bill. The Gas Cost Rate factor is evaluated quarterly to reflect the cost PGW
expects to pay its suppliers. Once actual gas supply costs are booked, any cost adjustments over or under are
factored into the Gas Cost Rate factor, resulting in no profit to PGW. By law, the Gas Cost Rate factor is

¥ In the 2010 PUC Policy Statement, the PUC states that “unlike a regulation, [the 2010 PUC Policy Statement] is not
enforceable and has no binding effect on [PUC], or on anyone else.” However, it further states that the purpose of the 2010
PUC Policy Statement “is to provide guidance to PGW and all interested parties as to the Commission’s view on the
statutorily-mandated ratemaking criteria for PGW and the information that should be considered in determining just and
reasonable rates” and, further, that the 2010 PUC Policy Statement “is grounded upon Pennsylvania case law.”
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passed on to customers without any profit or markup. See APPENDIX B - “INDEPENDENT
CONSULTANT’S ENGINEERING REPORT — Rates and Tariffs — Gas Cost Rate.”

Weather Normalization Adjustment

PGW’s approved commodity charges (exclusive of the cost of gas) is subject to the WNA pursuant to
which a customer’s bill is adjusted upwards or downwards to reflect differences between the customer’s actual
heating degree-days and the normal heating degree-days, as calculated from data collected at the Philadelphia
International Airport. The application of the WNA facilitates the stabilization of annual earnings and cash
flow during the winter heating season; it is revenue neutral to PGW. The WNA will remain in effect until
discontinued by the PUC. See APPENDIX B — “INDEPENDENT CONSULTANT’'S ENGINEERING
REPORT - Rates and Tariffs — Weather Normalization Adjustment.”

Surcharges

Several surcharges exist to fund various PGW programs and capital improvements. Depending on the
surcharge, not all PGW customer classes are affected by the surcharge.

o Restructuring and Consumer Education Surcharge. Revenues from this surcharge finance the
PUC approved costs incurred or to be incurred by PGW to meet requirements of the Gas Choice Act and
applicable PUC regulations, orders, and other regulatory requirements.

o Universal Service and Energy Conservation Surcharge. Revenues generated from the
application of this surcharge are used to finance discounts to customers in the CRP and the Senior Citizen
Discount Program, the costs of the CRP Home Comfort program (the current iteration of the CRP program)
and past due arrearages forgiven to certain CRP customers. The Universal Service and Energy Conservation
Surcharge is applicable to all PGW customers (excluding interruptible customers) who are delivered natural
gas through PGW’s distribution system. PGW automatically adjusts the surcharge quarterly in connection
with its Gas Cost Rate filing. PGW’s Demand Side Management program (“DSM”) is financed principally
from this surcharge.

o Efficiency Cost Recovery Surcharge. Revenues generated from the application of this
surcharge are used to fund the program costs and the administrative costs of the energy efficiency programs for
the firm customers.

. OPEB Surcharge. Revenues generated from the application of this surcharge are designated
for payment of PGW’s OPEB obligations. See “— Base Rate” above for a description of PGW’s filing for the
continuation of the $16.0 million annual OPEB surcharge.

. DSIC Surcharge. Revenues generated from the application of this charge, which at 5.0
percent is expected to generate approximately $22.0 million per year, will be used to supplement the
acceleration of the replacement of at-risk mains which is part of PGW’s Long Term Infrastructure
Improvement Plan. PGW expects that in August 2015 it will request an increase to its DSIC Surcharge from
5.0 percent of the customer’s bill to 7.5 percent, effective during Fiscal Year 2016. See “THE CAPITAL
IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM” and “PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS —Governmental Oversight — PUC April 2015
Report.”

Ratemaking Methodology to Account for Bond Covenants
PGW’s rates, as set forth in its Gas Service Tariff, are regulated by the PUC pursuant to Section
2212(b) of the Pennsylvania Public Utility Code. Pursuant to Section 2212(e), in determining PGW’s revenue

requirement and approving overall rates and charges, the PUC is required to follow the same ratemaking
methodology and requirements as set forth the Management Agreement and the City’s bond and note
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ordinances for PGW, and such obligation shall continue until the date on which all bonds, which are Approved
Bonds, issued thereunder have been retired, redeemed, advance refunded or otherwise defeased. Section
2212(e) also states that (i) the PUC shall permit the City to impose, charge or collect rates or charges as
necessary to permit the City to comply with its covenants to the holders of any Approved Bonds (herein
defined) and (ii) the PUC shall not require the City to take action, or omit taking any actions, pursuant to this
title if such action or omission would have the effect of causing the interest on tax-exempt bonds issued by the
City to be includable in the gross income of the holders of such bonds for federal income tax purposes.

“Approved Bonds” consist of (1) bonds issued by the City under The First Class City Revenue Bond
Act or The City of Philadelphia Municipal Utility Inventory and Receivables Financing Act that were issued
and outstanding as of July 1, 2000, (2) bonds issued on or after July 1, 2000 by the City, unless the City
Council declares otherwise in the authorizing ordinance, (3) bonds issued for the purpose of refunding,
redeeming, repaying or otherwise defeasing Approved Bonds and (4) bonds issued by a municipal authority for
PGW’s benefit for purposes other than refunding, redeeming, repaying or otherwise defeasing Approved
Bonds unless the PUC determines, at the time of the registration of a securities certificate, that the bonds
should not be Approved Bonds. The Bonds are Approved Bonds.

Further, Section 2212(f) permits PGW to impose, charge or collect rates and charges as necessary to
permit PGW to transfer or pay to the City, on an annual basis, such amount as may be specified from time to
time in the applicable ordinances of the City or agreements of the City approved by ordinances; provided that
if the amount specified exceeds 110% of the amount that was authorized for transfer or payment to the City at
the close of the Fiscal Year of the City ending June 30, 2000, such additional amount shall be subject to review
and approval of the PUC, which approval shall be given unless such additional amount would not be just and
reasonable. The amount currently specified is $18.0 million, which is the same amount as was authorized for
transfer at the close of the City’s Fiscal Year 2000. See “GAS SERVICE TARIFF AND RATES — Rates — Base
Rate” for a description of the 2010 PUC Policy Statement setting forth the factors to be considered in
determining PGW rates and revenue allowances. See also “PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS — Governmental
Oversight — PUC April 2015 Report.”

Assistance Programs and Grants

PGW participates in, or partially funds, several assistance programs to, among other things, increase
cash flow to PGW and decrease accounts receivables and write-offs. Pursuant to its Gas Service Tariff, PGW
recovers the costs of the discounts provided to customers pursuant to the Customer Responsibility Program
(the “CRP”) and the senior citizen discount program (the “Senior Citizen Discount Program”), arrearage
forgiveness provided to CRP customers and certain other costs through the Universal Service and Energy
Conservation Surcharge, which is applicable to all PGW customers (excluding interruptible customers) who
are delivered natural gas through PGW’s distribution system.

Customer Responsibility Program

The CRP is a customer assistance program for low-income residential customers who are at or below
150% of the federal poverty level. PGW will forgive 1/36 of the customer’s original pre-CRP debt each month
for each bill paid on time and in full. Participants in the CRP are also required to apply for the Low-Income
Home Energy Assistance Program (as further described below, “LIHEAP”), if eligible, and designate PGW as
the grant recipient. Approximately 61,300 customers were enrolled in the CRP as of December 2014. PGW
projects that the number of CRP participants will increase to approximately 69,500 by the end of calendar year
2016. The table below sets forth the approximate aggregate discount and approximate amount of debt
forgiveness granted by PGW to CRP participants in Fiscal Years 2010-2014.
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Table 8
PGW DISCOUNTS AND
DEBT FORGIVENESS GRANTED TO CRP PARTICIPANTS
(THOUSANDS OF U.S. DOLLARS)

Fiscal Year Discounts to Participants Debt Forgiveness
2014 $65,100 $ 6,200
2013 70,600 6,900
2012 63,200 8,300
2011 88,700 10,000
2010 78,900 9,600

Source: PGW’s records.

Pursuant to PGW’s Universal Service and Energy Conservation Plan 2014-2016, the CRP will be
modified during the term of the Plan (i.e., 2014-2016) to include, among other things, (1) a stay-out provision
pursuant to which PGW will not permit re-enrollment of a customer into the CRP for a one-year period, unless
otherwise specified, if the customer commits two or more incidents of unauthorized usage, submits fraudulent
enrollment or recertification information and certain other actions, (2) application of PGW’s unauthorized
usage policy to participants in the CRP, (3) the provision of conservation incentive credits and (4) modified
arrearage forgiveness.

Senior Citizen Discount Program

The Senior Citizen Discount Program has been closed to new participants since September 1, 2003.
The Senior Citizen Discount Program provides qualifying residential senior citizens with a discounted General
Service Rate approximately equal to a 20% reduction in the participant’s total gas bill each month. The
number of participants in the Senior Citizen Discount Program decreased from approximately 70,000 in 2004
to 19,600 as of May 2015. PGW projects that the average monthly enrollment will decrease to approximately
17,000 by 2016, resulting in less supplemental revenue being required to fund the program over time.
Discounts to participants in the Senior Citizen Discount Program are recovered through the Universal Service
and Energy Conservation Surcharge. See APPENDIX B - “INDEPENDENT CONSULTANT’S
ENGINEERING REPORT - Rates and Tariffs — Senior Citizen Discount Program’ attached hereto.

Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program

LIHEAP is a federally funded program that provides funds to households to ensure continued utility
service available. Federal LIHEAP funds are allocated to individual states, which in turn allocate the amount
to qualifying residents. PGW’s share of LIHEAP funds allocated by the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania has
ranged from approximately 12% to 17% since 2005. Funds received from LIHEAP are paid directly to PGW
for a credit to the customer’s account. Since 2005, LIHEAP funding has ranged from a low of $19.5 million in
2008 to a high of $41.5 million in 2010.

Additional Programs and Grants

See APPENDIX B — “INDEPENDENT CONSULTANT’S ENGINEERING REPORT — Rates and
Tariffs — Other Programs and Grants” and “— Five-Year Gas Demand-Side Management Plan,” for a
description of hardship funds that are financed by customer contributions, the Utility Emergency Services
Fund, PGW matching grants, available payment programs and PGW’s portfolio of conservation programs.
Also see “GAS SERVICE RATES AND TARIFFS — Collections.”
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Collections

PGW utilizes various programs designed to improve collections, including a landlord cooperation
program, a commercial lien notification program and a risk-based collections strategy (see APPENDIX B —
“INDEPENDENT CONSULTANT’S ENGINEERING REPORT - Rates and Tariffs — Billings and
Collections”), in accordance with all applicable regulations with respect to collections, including Pennsylvania
Act 201, entitled the “Responsible Utility Customer Protection Act” and codified in the Pennsylvania Public
Utility Code under Title 66, Chapter 14, as amended (“Chapter 14”). See “PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS —
Litigation” for a description of the Landlord Liens Suit.

Chapter 14 specifies, among other things, the circumstances pursuant to which natural gas service may
be terminated. Pursuant to Section 1406 of Chapter 14, (i) utility service may be terminated subsequent to the
giving of a written notice (which notice will be given at least ten days prior to the date of the proposed
termination and remain effective for 60 days) for nonpayment of an undisputed delinquent account, failure to
comply with the material terms of a payment arrangement, failure to complete payment of a deposit, provide a
guarantee of payment or establish credit or failure to permit access to meters, service connections or other
property of the public utility for the purpose of replacement, maintenance, repair or meter reading, and
(i) service may be immediately terminated, without notice, for customer actions such as the unauthorized use
of the service delivered on or about the affected dwelling, fraud or material misrepresentation of the
customer’s identity for the purpose of obtaining service or tampering with meters or other public utility’s
equipment.

In addition, Chapter 14 specifies that during the winter, (a) after November 30 and before April 1, gas
service may be terminated to customers with household incomes exceeding 250% of the federal poverty level,
and (b) from January 1 and before April 1 service may be terminated to a customer whose household income
exceeds 150% of the federal poverty level but does not exceed 250% of the federal poverty level, who has not
paid at least 50% of his charges for each of the prior two months; provided however that termination may not
occur if the customer has proven in accordance with the PUC rules that there is someone age 65 or over or 12
or younger in the household, if the customer has obtained a medical certificate in accordance with the PUC
rules, or if the customer has paid to PGW at least 15% of the customer’s monthly household income for each
of the last 2 months. Chapter 14 provisions are scheduled to expire on December 31, 2024.

For additional information about PGW’s collections see “PGW BUDGETS AND FINANCES — Accounts

Receivable” and “MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL
CONDITION FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED MAY 31, 2015 AND 2014 (UNAUDITED).”
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THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

Through its annual capital planning process, PGW identifies potential capital improvements based
upon certain operating and economic assumptions, evaluates these requirements, and establishes priorities
considering available financial resources. It considers these factors when developing its capital budget for a
Fiscal Year. PGW then develops a Capital Improvement Program for a six-year period based upon the
approved capital budget for that Fiscal Year and a forecast for the next five Fiscal Years.

The safety of PGW’s operations and reliability of service are PGW’s major concerns when
establishing the priorities of need for capital resources. Also of major importance to PGW is ensuring funding
to provide facilities to support new load opportunities. The highest two priorities are capital projects related to
expenditures required for maintaining the safety and reliability of PGW’s infrastructure. Priority 3
expenditures relate to enforced main relocations that are based on City, Commonwealth and Federal mandated
underground infrastructure projects. Priority 4 expenditures relate to projects that will result in additional
revenues from load growth opportunities, while Priority 5 are for those expenditures associated with business
improvements that increase operational efficiencies and/or productivity.

PGW can make only those capital improvements that have been included in a PGW capital budget
approved by the City Council.

PGW has been financing and expects to continue to finance its Capital Improvement Program through
a combination of net proceeds of revenue bond and note sales (other than sales of refunding bonds), investment
income, internally generated funds and DSIC surcharges. Internally generated funds consist of Gas Works
Revenues available after payment of PGW Net Operating Expenses, principal and interest on bonds and notes
issued by the City for PGW purposes, amounts due to Credit Facility issuers and under Qualified Swaps and
Exchange Agreements, and City Charges. A decline in net revenues reduces internally generated funds and
requires that the shortfall be funded from the issuance of bonds or other indebtedness or the incurrence of
capital leases.

A significant part of the Capital Improvement Program is the replacement of PGW’s cast iron mains,
some of which date back to the 1890s, with more state-of-the-art plastic pipe at an estimated replacement cost
of $1.0 million per mile for smaller diameter pipe, with cost increasing for larger diameter pipe. At the end of
Fiscal Year 2014, PGW’s balance of cast iron mains was 1,472 miles, with a further reduction of 27.6 miles
forecasted during Fiscal Year 2015. PGW estimates, based on the current replacement rate, that full
replacement will be completed by 2102. That replacement rate would accelerate if the DSIC is increased from
its current 5.0% and continues to increase to reflect increased costs and inflation over time. PGW’s optimal
replacement strategy is to enhance the safety and performance of underground distribution structures. Also see
“PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS — Governmental Oversight — PUC April 2015 Report.”

For further discussion of the Capital Improvement Program, see “PGW BUDGETS AND FINANCES —
Budget Approval,” “GAS SERVICE TARIFF AND RATES — Rates — Surcharges e DSIC Surcharge,”
APPENDIX B — “INDEPENDENT CONSULTANT’S ENGINEERING REPORT - Capital Improvement
Program,” “— Financial Feasibility for the Thirteenth Series Bonds — Capital Improvement Program
Financing” and “— Assumptions and Opinions — Capital Improvement Program (2015-2020)”.

The following Table 9 represents information regarding actual net capital expenditures for each of the

five Fiscal Years 2010-2014 as well as unaudited information for the periods September 1 through May 31 for
Fiscal Years 2014 through 2015, respectively:
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Table 9
PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS CAPITAL EXPENDITURES®
(THOUSANDS OF U.S. DOLLARS)

PERIOD
SEPTEMBER 1
THROUGH
MAY 31
(UNAUDITED) FISCAL YEARS ENDED AUGUST 31
2015 2014 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Gas Processing $1,381 $ 1,769 $ 5350 $ 3,095 $ 3,675 $ 4,077 $ 7,905
Distribution 43,478 37,118 61,768 57,394 44,751 44,736 41,554
Field Services 5,052 4,034 5,393 3,727 3,441 2,364 3,695
Fleet 2,059 1,660 2,233 1,111 1,552 2,670 2,290
Facilities 2,045 1,786 7,646 2,440 1,675 3,418 1,802
Information Services 181 149 683 4,093 864 962 724
Other Departments _ 552 _ 27 258 515 1,174 599 989
Total” $54.748  $46,543 | $83331  $72375  $57.132  $58.826  $58.959
Capital Fund
Drawdowns - 22,135 33,294 45,018 34,044 38,737 41,000
Restricted Fund 10,000 - - - - - -
DSIC 13,146 17,672 13,914 681 - - -
Internal Funds 31,602 6.736 36,123 26.676 23,088 20,089 17.959
Other Funding
Sources for Capital
Expenditures $54,748  $46.543 $83.,331 $72.375 $57.132 $58.826 $58.959

*  Source: PGW’s records.
M Net of reimbursements, contributions and salvage.

POTENTIAL LNG FACILITIES EXPANSION

PGW is studying the feasibility of expanding the liquefaction capacity of its Richmond plant. PGW
contacted potential LNG customers seeking non-binding expressions of interest in purchasing LNG, if
available. Since the solicitation was non-binding, the responses of the surveyed potential customers may not
reflect their future actual purchases. However, the solicitation identified a potential market for LNG gas that
PGW could serve by expanding PGW’s liquefaction capacity at its Richmond plant. The expansion would
also provide redundancy for PGW’s existing facilities and additional capacity.

The Independent Consultant’s Engineering Report states the Independent Consultant’s opinion, based
on a number of assumptions including the assumption that PGW will have adequate incremental LNG sales to
recover the operating and financing costs of LNG expansion, that any excess revenues associated with the new
LNG facility would be used to lower the $40.0 million Base Rate increase that PGW intends to request for
2018, and any shortfall associated with the LNG expansion would be recovered through additional Base Rate
increases. The Independent Consultant concluded, based on the costs and potential additional sales provided
by PGW associated with the new LNG facility, the incremental benefit (up to $10.0 million annually) or
incremental cost (up to $5.0 million annually) associated with the new LNG facility would have a relatively
minor impact on Base Rates. Any increases in Base Rate are subject to approval by the PUC. See “GAS
SERVICE TARIFF AND RATES — Rates — Base Rate.”

Before PGW can proceed with the construction and financing of such LNG expansion (or any capital
project), several reviews and approvals must occur, the principal of which are:
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(1) PGW must prepare a capital budget reflecting the construction and financing of such LNG expansion
and submit it to the PEFMC Board for its approval;

2) The PFMC Board must determine whether to approve the capital budget and authorize its submission
to the Gas Commission for its review;

3) Upon receipt, the Gas Commission must review the capital budget, including conducting hearings in
which interested parties participate, and determine whether to recommend adoption of the capital
budget to the City Council. During this process there may be discussions between PGW and the Gas
Commission regarding the capital budget;

@) Upon receipt of the Gas Commission’s recommendation to adopt the capital budget, the City Council
must decide whether to adopt an ordinance approving the capital budget; and

5) Proceeds of bonds and notes cannot be used to finance the LNG expansion unless the expansion is
included in a capital budget approved by the City Council.

See APPENDIX B for additional information.
PGW BUDGETS AND FINANCES

PGW revenues used to pay debt service on its indebtedness and to fund its operations are derived
primarily from the sale of gas distribution and related services to its customers. Rate and tariff charges for the
sale of gas services are proposed by PGW based on, among other factors, anticipated revenues and expenses,
required working capital, required debt service coverage and need for funds for capital expenditures.

Budget Approval

The Management Agreement requires PGW to prepare an annual operating budget and an operating
forecast for the three years following the budget year. The operating budget and forecast are subject to the
approval of the Gas Commission. PGW also prepares annually a proposed capital budget and a forecast for the
five years following the budget year. The Gas Commission and the Director of Finance of the City review the
capital budget and forecast and forward it, together with their recommendations, to the City Council for its
approval by ordinance.

The Gas Commission holds public hearings on the budgets at which PGW and other interested parties
are permitted to present evidence to support their positions. Community Legal Services of Philadelphia, Inc.
has been appointed by the Gas Commission to serve as Public Advocate and represents residential customers
in budget proceedings. The Gas Commission considers a number of factors before determining whether to
accept, modify or reject the budgets proposed by PGW. Based on its findings, the Gas Commission issues an
order regarding the operating budget. The Gas Commission order regarding the operating budget and the City
Council ordinance regarding the capital budget may direct PGW to reduce expenses in certain areas or increase
spending on certain items or to undertake specific projects. This process remains unchanged since passage of
the Gas Choice Act which provides that the City continues to determine PGW’s budget function.

Operating Budget

The Fiscal Year 2015 Operating Budget and Five-Year Forecast Fiscal Years 2016 through 2020,
dated August 19, 2014, presented actual information for the Fiscal Year ending August 31, 2013 and budgeted
information for the Fiscal Years 2014 and 2015 and forecasted information for Fiscal Years 2016-2020. The
budget includes a statement of income with itemizations of the different categories of PGW operating
revenues, expenses and interest income. It also includes a cash flow statement showing both sources and uses
of expenditures, a debt service coverage analysis and a balance sheet reflecting assets and equity and liabilities.
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It also describes the principal business assumptions that PGW made when preparing the budget and forecast.
These assumptions included certain rate increases, weather—related costs projections, costs of certain
commodities and personnel, increased LNG sales and capital improvement expenditures.

On May 22, 2015, PGW submitted its “Fiscal 2015-2016 Operating Budget” to the Gas Commission
for its review and approval.

Capital Budget

PGW’s Amended Fiscal 2016 Capital Budget has been approved by the City. It sets out budgeted and
forecasted amounts for the capital expenditures that PGW expected to make in its classes of operations, a
detailed breakdown of uses within each class of operations and identification of the expected sources of
payment for the described capital expenditures. The capital budget reflected net total capital expenditures in
Fiscal Year 2016 of approximately $110.8 million. The capital funding sources in 2016 included notes and
commercial paper of approximately $48.6 million, DSIC receipts of approximately $27.1 million and
internally generated funds of approximately $35.0 million.

The following is excerpted from PGW’s Amended Fiscal 2016 Capital Budget.

Table 10
CAPITAL BUDGET
FISCAL YEAR 2016 AND FORECAST 2017 THROUGH 2021""
(THOUSANDS OF U.S. DOLLARS)

2016 2017 - 2021
CAPITAL BUDGET FORECAST TOTAL 6 YEARS

GAS PROCESSING

Additions $ 324 $ 3,233 $ 3,557

Replacements 5.582 20,571 26.153

TOTAL $ 5,906 $ 23,804 $ 29.710
DISTRIBUTION

Additions $ 10,300 $ 54,378 $ 64,678

Replacements 80.420 411,436 491,856

GROSS TOTAL $ 90,720 $ 465,814 $ 556.534
FIELD SERVICES

Additions $ 1,745 $ 9,378 $ 11,123

Replacements 4,960 26,305 31,265

GROSS TOTAL $ 6,705 $ 35,683 $ 42.388
FLEET OPERATIONS

Additions $ 750 - $ 750

Replacements 7,412 $ 16,268 23,680

GROSS TOTAL $ 8,162 $ 16,268 $ 24430
OTHER DEPARTMENTS

Additions $ 4,733 $ 1,910 $ 6,643

Replacements 6,885 14,221 21.106

TOTAL $ 11,618 $ 16,131 $ 27.749
TorAL

Additions $ 17,852 $ 68,889 $ 86,751

Replacements 105,259 488.801 594.060

GROSS TOTAL $123.111 557,700 $ 680.811

" Reimbursement to PGW for relocating structures and equipment and/or load growth are not included in this Table 10.
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Accounts Receivable

At the end of Fiscal Year 2014, net accounts receivable were $101.5 million, an increase of $3.7
million or 3.8% from Fiscal Year 2013 due to higher gas revenues and an increase in the collection rate
(94.97%) as compared to Fiscal Year 2013 (91.88%). The accumulated provision for uncollectible
accounts, totaling $107.3 million increased by $1.8 million at the end of Fiscal Year 2014 as additional
accounts uncollectible were added to those uncollectible in Fiscal Year 2013. The reserve for bad debt is for
accounts that have not yet been written off. When a receivable is written-off, the bad debt reserve will be
reduced by the same amount.

Table 11
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, RESERVE FOR BAD DEBT EXPENSE, NET
WRITE-OFF EXPENSES, COLLECTION FACTORS AND REVENUE STATISTICS
(THOUSANDS OF U.S. DOLLARS) "

FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31

Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Billed Gas Revenues™ $ 729,741 $ 687,005 $ 629,911 $ 741,287 $ 721,235
Accounts Receivable 208,806 203,326 179,754 198,857 195,773
Less: Reserve for Bad Debt (107,349) (105,577) (97,757) (99.932) (103,600)
Net Accounts Receivable $ 101,457 $ 97,749 $ 81,997 $ 98,925 $ 92,173
Bad Debt Reserve/Accounts
Receivable 51.4% 51.9% 54.4% 50.3% 52.9%
Net Write-Offs $ 37,056 $ 29,028 $ 38,401 $ 39,765 $ 54,990
Receivable/Billed Gas Revenues 28.6% 29.6% 28.5% 26.8% 27.1%
Bad Debt 38,848 39,971 36,702 36,027 35,000
Bad Debt/Billed Gas Revenues 5.3% 5.8% 5.8% 4.9% 4.9%
Bad Debt/Accounts Receivable 18.6% 19.7% 20.4% 18.1% 17.9%
Total Customer Receipts $ 724,662 $ 657,125 $ 633,497 $ 731,622 $ 740,756
Total Customer Billings $ 763,077 $ 715,196 $ 655,711 $ 769,504 $ 750,263
Collection Factor 94.97% 91.88% 96.61% 95.08% 98.73%
Five-Year Average Collection Factor
(2010-2014) 95.45%

M Source: PGW’s records.

@ This is calculated based on information in APPENDIX B — INDEPENDENT CONSULTANT’S ENGINEERING REPORT:
Adjusted Total Gas Revenues (Table 11, Line 38) less Prior Year’s Gas Cost Recovery (Table 11, Lines 26 and 15).
Accounts receivable is partly driven by sales revenue. Higher sales revenue pushes higher accounts receivable balances.
During the five year period between Fiscal Year 2010 and Fiscal Year 2014, the year-end net accounts receivable balance
averaged 13.5% of billed revenue, with a low of 12.8% in Fiscal Year 2010 and the high of 14.2% in Fiscal Year 2013.
Fiscal Year 2014 net accounts receivable was 13.9% of billed revenue. Along with billed revenue, accounts receivable is
influenced by the collection rate. PGW calculates the collection rate by dividing the total gas receipts collected in a Fiscal
Year by the total gas billings that were applied to PGW customers’ accounts during the same time period. During the five-
year period between Fiscal Year 2010 and Fiscal Year 2014 PGW averaged a 95.4% collection rate, with a high of 98.7% in
Fiscal Year 2010 and the low of 91.9% in Fiscal Year 2013. The collection rate in Fiscal Year 2014 (94.9%) returned to
normal historic levels.

PGW calculates the provision for uncollectible accounts based on a financial analysis and a
collectability study performed as of the each Fiscal Year-end. The same methodology was used for all Fiscal
Years between Fiscal Year 2010 and Fiscal Year 2014. This analysis is used to determine the adequacy of the
accumulated provision for uncollected accounts. For each Fiscal Year during the stated period, management
has provided an accumulated provision for uncollectible accounts in excess of the collectability study results

59



based on its analysis of historical aging data. The actual results of the PGW’s collection efforts could differ
significantly from PGW’s estimate. Net write-offs are less than the reserve for bad debt each year due to the
effects of the assistance programs and grants described under “GAS SERVICE TARIFF AND RATES — Assistance

Programs and Grants.”

Also see “GAS SERVICE RATES AND TARIFFS — Collections.”

Selected Operating Data Regarding Customers and Gas Sales

The following table sets forth certain information regarding PGW customers, gas sales by

classification and demand for gas.

Table 12
SELECTED OPERATING DATA
REGARDING CUSTOMERS AND GAS SALES®

PERIOD
SEPTEMBER 1
THROUGH MAY 31 FISCAL YEARS ENDED AUGUST 31
2015 2014 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Summary of Customers At End
Of Period
Residential 485,669 475,156 471,706 472,066 471,272 471,821 476,575
Industrial and Commercial:
Firm 25,799 25,958 21,652 21,957 24,745 24,907 25,683
Interruptible 2 7 7 12 38 121 120
Municipal and PHA 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Total Customers 511,472 504,759 493,367 494,037 496,057 496,851 502,380
Gas Sales by Classification (Mmcf)
Residential:
Heating 36,299 36,367 38,635 35,193 29,476 37,384 34,646
Non-Heating 435 457 529 559 585 627 663
Industrial and Commercial:
Firm 8,620 8,555 9,370 8,994 8,284 10,004 9,482
Interruptible 512 866 1,096 890 192 1,004 1,049
Other (FT) 3,840 3,670 4,087 3,427 2,483 2,668 2,305
Total Gas Sales & Transport 49,706 49,915 53,717 49,063 41,020 51,687 48,145
Average Monthly Usage of
Residential Customers (Mcf):
Heating 9.0 9.1 7.3 6.7 5.6 7.1 6.8
Non-Heating 2.1 2.1 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7
Average Monthly Bill of
Residential Customers:
Heating $ $131.94 $139.06 | $ 11499 $ 10997 $ 9992 §$ 119.19 §$ 118.77
Non-Heating $ $41.15 $4091 | $ 3837 $ 3736 $ 3566 $ 3794 $ 38.61
Degree Days 4,431 4,405 4,405 3,889 3,037 4,005 3,730
Normal Degree Days 4,256 4,268 4,268 4,332 4,360 4,392 4,412
104% 103% 103% 90% 70% 91% 85%
Maximum 24-Hour Sendout
(Mcf) 645,370 607,062 607,062 542,095 466,478 549,808 543,834
Peak-day Avg. Temperature
(Degrees) 11 13 13 21 24 22 20

M Source: PGW’s records.
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Summary of Statements of Revenue and Expenses

Information for each of the past five Fiscal Years should be read in conjunction with and was derived
from the audited financial statements and notes thereto. As discussed in “PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS —
Pension Plans and Other Postemployment Benefits,” GASB 68 is effective for PGW’s Fiscal Year beginning
September 1, 2014. The interim financial information presented below is prepared on a consistent basis with
the audited basic financial statements in APPENDIX A. However, the interim financial information presented
below is not intended to be a presentation in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
because it does not incorporate the impact of GASB 68.
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Table 13
SUMMARY OF STATEMENTS OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES
(THOUSANDS OF U.S. DOLLARS)

PERIOD
SEPTEMBER 1
THROUGH
MAY 31
(UNAUDITED) FISCAL YEARS ENDED AUGUST 31%
2015 2014 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Operating revenues:
Gas revenues:
Nonheating $ 26,702 $ 30,795 | $ 39,610 $ 35,262 $ 37,054 $ 51,437 $ 51,343
Gas transport service 34,390 38,034 41,217 37,078 29,324 28,700 26,860
Heating 550,854 584,490 655,311 602,814 562,009 669,131 664,139
Total gas revenues 611,946 653,319 736,138 675,154 628,387 749,268 742,342
Appliance and other revenues 6,238 5,967 8,317 8,333 8,240 8,400 8,959
Other operating revenues 10,402 11,404 14,681 9,984 8,356 8,611 7,931
Total operating revenues 628,586 670,690 | 759,136 693,471 644,983 766,279 759,232
Operating expenses:
Natural gas 242,685 291,261 304,051 255,501 233,713 330,932 354,004
Gas processing 13,091 14,776 19,637 17,592 15,640 16,097 14,952
Field services 27,818 27,819 37,577 34,926 33,883 33,950 34,026
Distribution 28,842 26,414 36,929 30,259 27,750 27,990 23,426
Collection and account management 8,272 7,919 11,273 11,297 11,491 11,765 15,266
Provision for uncollectible accounts 35,345 33,103 38,848 39,971 36,702 36,027 35,000
Customer services 9,163 8,376 11,187 11,102 11,946 12,532 13,030
Marketing 5,202 5,717 7,783 6,789 6,664 4,378 3,900
Administrative and general 68,086 63,331 85,872 78,206 81,161 76,850 71,620
Pensions 20,701 19,047 24,521 23,614 23,972 22,597 24,633
Other post employment benefits 7,681 12,024 11,228 16,492 20,119 22,472 27,269
Taxes 6,005 5,862 7,687 7,220 7,122 7.135 6.990
Total operating expenses before
depreciation 472,891 515,649 596,593 532,969 510,163 602,725 624,116
Depreciation 35,586 34,611 47,428 45,912 45,045 43,629 43,168
Less depreciation expense included in
operating expenses above 4,328 4,328 5,771 4,870 4,870 4,714 4,690
Net depreciation 31,258 30,283 41,657 41,042 40,175 38,915 38,478
Total operating expenses 504,149 545932 | 638,250 574,011 550,338 641,640 662,594
Operating income 124,437 124,758 120,886 119,460 94,645 124,639 96,638
Interest and other income 2,870 2,524 3,597 1,147 4,659 4,348 5.301
Income before interest expense 127,307 127,282 124,483 120,607 99,304 128,987 101,939
Interest expense:
Long-term debt 33,830 36,403 48,261 49,655 53,012 57,225 52,527
Other 7,050 6,898 9,380 10,740 16,824 18,884 18,986
Allowance for funds used during
construction (526) (356) (506) (430) (292) 427) (390)
Total interest expense 40,354 42,945 57,135 59,965 69,544 75,682 71,123
Excess of revenues over (under) 86,953 84,337 67,348 60,642 29,760 53,305 30,816
expenses prior to City Payment
Distribution to the City of Philadelphia (13,500) (13,500) | (18,000) (18,000) (18,000)  (18,000) (18,000)
Excess of revenues over expenses 73,453 70,837 49,348 42,642 11,760 35,305 30,816
Net position, beginning of the year 407,935 358,587 358,587 315,945 304,185 274,435 243,619
Net position, end of the year $481,388 $429.424 | $407.935 $358.587 $315,945 $309.740 $274.435

" During FY 2013, PGW implemented GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, that amends or
supersedes the accounting and financial reporting guidance for certain items previously required to be reported as assets or liabilities.
The objective is to either properly classify certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities as deferred outflows of
resources or deferred inflows of resources or recognize certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities as outflows
of resources (expenses) or inflows of resources (revenues). This change was retroactive to FY 2012.
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Debt Service Coverage Ratio

The annual operating budgets approved by the Gas Commission have estimated the level of revenues
required to reach at least the minimum debt service coverage ratio mandated by the 1975 General Ordinance
and the 1998 General Ordinance. The following table presents the historical revenues and debt service
coverage calculated under the 1975 General Ordinance and the 1998 General Ordinance for the last five Fiscal
Years. Payment of City Charges is subordinate to the payment of debt service on bonds issued under either the
1975 General Ordinance or the 1998 General Ordinance. Following the issuance of the Bonds, however, no
bonds will remain outstanding under the 1975 General Ordinance.

Table 14
DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE""
(THOUSANDS OF U.S. DOLLARS)

FISCAL YEARS ENDED AUGUST 31

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
FUNDS PROVIDED
Total Gas Revenues $736,138 $675,154 $628,387  $749,268 $742,342
Other Operating Revenues 22,998 18,317 16,596 17,011 16,890
Total Operating Revenues 759,136 693,471 644,983 766,279 759,232
Other Income Incr. / (Decr.) Restricted Funds 4,079 196 8,311 13,175 3,660
City Grant - - - - 18,000
AFUDC (Interest) 506 430 292 427 390
TOTAL FUNDS PROVIDED 763,721 694,097 653,586 779,881 781,282
FUNDS APPLIED
Fuel Costs 304,051 255,501 233,713 330,932 354,004
Other Operating Costs 334,199 318,510 316,625 310,708 308,590
Total Operating Expenses 638,250 574,011 550,338 641,640 662,594
Less: Non-Cash Expenses 50,346 48,103 47,619 47,854 70,404
TOTAL FUNDS APPLIED 587,904 525,908 502,719 593,786 592,190
Funds Available to Cover Debt Service $175,817 $168,188 $150,867  $186,095 $189,092
1975 Ordinance Bonds Debt Service $ 28,592 $ 30,163 $ 31,754 $ 30,601 $ 30,101
Debt Service Coverage 1975 Ordinance Bonds 6.15 5.58 4.75 6.06 6.28
Net Available after Prior Debt Service $147,225 $138,026 $119,113  $155,404 $158,991
Equipment Leasing Debt Service - - - - -
Net Available after Prior Capital Leases $147,225 $138,026 $119,113  $155,404 $158,991
Senior 1998 Ordinance Bonds Debt Service $ 69,749 $ 47,668 $ 67,874 $ 72,274 $ 65,095
Debt Service Coverage Senior 1998 Ordinance Bonds 2.11 2.90 1.75 2.15 2.44
Net Available after Senior 1998 Ordinance Debt Service $ 77,476 $ 90,358 $ 51,239 $ 83,130 $ 93,896
Subordinate 1998 Ordinance Bond Debt Service - - - % 1,988 $ 1,986
Debt Service Coverage Subordinate 1998 Ordinance
Bonds - - - 41.82 47.28
Aggregate Debt Service” $ 98341 $ 77,831 $ 99,628  $104,953 $ 97,182
Debt Service Coverage (Combined liens)®’ 1.79 2.16 1.51 1.77 1.95
Debt Service Coverage (Combined liens with $18.0M City 1.60 1.93 1.33 1.60 1.76
Fee)(4)

" Source: Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for Fiscal Years Ended August 31, 2014 and 2013 of the Philadelphia Gas Works
(attached as APPENDIX A) and PGW’s records.

@ Aggregate Debt Service = (Debt Service Coverage 1975 Ordinance Bonds + Debt Service Coverage 1998 Ordinance Bonds + Debt
Service Coverage 1998 Subordinate Bonds)

© Debt Service Coverage (Combine liens) = Funds Available to Cover Debt Service / Aggregate Debt Service

@ Debt Service Coverage (Combine liens with $18.0M City Fee) = Funds Available to Cover Debt Service - $18.0M / Aggregate Debt
Service
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND
FINANCIAL CONDITION FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED MAY 31, 2015 AND 2014
(UNAUDITED)

The narrative overview and analysis of the financial statements of PGW for the nine months ended
May 31, 2015 and 2014 have been prepared by PGW’s management. The information presented below is
unaudited and should be read in conjunction with additional information contained in PGW’s audited financial
statements as of and for the years ended August 31, 2014 and 2013 included in the attached APPENDIX A.

As discussed in “PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS — Pension Plans and Other Postemployment Benefits,”
GASB 68 is effective for PGW’s Fiscal Year beginning September 1, 2014. The interim financial information
presented below is prepared on a consistent basis with the audited basic financial statements in APPENDIX A.
However, the interim financial information presented below is not intended to be a presentation in conformity
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles because it does not incorporate the impact of GASB 68.

Financial Highlights

The nine month period ended May 31, 2015 was 4.1% cooler than normal (PGW’s 30-year
average temperature during the same period to date) and 0.6% cooler than the nine month period ended
May 31, 2014. During these comparative periods, firm gas sales remained relatively constant. In
addition, the WNA, which was in effect from October 2014 through May 2015, resulted in heating
customers receiving credits totaling $11.6 million due to the colder than normal temperatures
experienced during the period. The nine month period ended May 31, 2014 was 3.2% colder than
normal and 13.3% colder than the same period the prior year. As a result, firm gas sales increased by 3.9
Bcf as compared to the nine months ended May 31, 2013. In addition, the WNA, which was in effect
from October 2013 through May 2014, resulted in heating customers receiving credits totaling $13.4
million as a result of the colder than normal temperatures experienced during the period. The nine month
period ended May 31, 2013 was 8.9% warmer than normal and customers were billed $8.3 million in
WNA charges for the period.

PGW achieved a collection rate of 98.3% during the rolling twelve months ended May 31, 2015,
as compared to 91.7% for the comparable period ended May 31, 2014. The collection rate of 98.3% is
calculated by dividing the total gas receipts collected in a rolling 12-month period by the total gas
billings that were applied to PGW customers’ accounts during the same period. PGW achieved a
collection rate of 93.3% for the rolling twelve month period ended May 31, 2013. The same
methodology was utilized for all comparative periods.
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Table 15
UNAUDITED
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES
(THOUSANDS OF U.S. DOLLARS)

NINE MONTHS ENDED MAY 31

2015 2014 2013
Total gas revenues $ 618,184 $ 659,286 $ 596,710
Other revenues 10,402 11,404 7,183
Total operating revenues 628,586 670,690 603,893
Fuel expense 242,685 291,261 238,025
All other operating expenses 261,464 254,671 240,492
Total operating expenses 504,149 545,932 478,517
Operating income 124,437 124,758 125,376
Interest and other income 2,870 2,524 (1,300)
Total interest expense (40,354) (42,945) (45,455)
Distribution to the City of Philadelphia (13,500) (13,500) (13,500)
Excess of revenues over expenses $ 73453 $ 70,837 $ 65,121

Operating Revenues

Operating revenues for the nine month period ended May 31, 2015 were $628.6 million, a
decrease of $42.1 million or 6.3% compared to the same period ended May 31, 2014, primarily due to
lower commodity natural gas prices. Operating revenues for the nine month period ended May 31,
2014 were $670.7 million, an increase of $66.8 million or 11.1% from the same period ended May 31,
2013, primarily due to colder weather. Operating revenues for the nine month period ended May 31,
2013 were $603.9 million.

Total sales volumes, including gas transportation deliveries, for the nine month period
ended May 31, 2015 increased by 1.5 Bcef to 73.2 Bef or 2.1% from the same period ended May 31,
2014. For the nine month period ended May 31, 2014 total sales volumes, including gas transportation
deliveries, increased by 6.7 Bcef to 72.5 Bef or 10.3% from the same period ended May 31, 2013.

The number of customers served by PGW as of May 31, 2015, May 31, 2014 and May 31, 2013
was approximately 511,000, 505,000 and 501,000, respectively. All three periods had approximately
25,000 commercial accounts and 700 industrial accounts. Residential customers as of May 31, 2015,
May 31, 2014 and May 31, 2013 were 485,300, 479,300, and 475,300, respectively.

Operating Expenses

Total operating and maintenance expenses, including fuel costs, for the nine month period ended
May 31, 2015 were $504.1 million, a decrease of $41.8 million or 7.7% from the same period ended
May 31, 2014, primarily due to lower natural gas commodity prices. Total expenses increased by $67.4
million or 14.1% for the nine month period ended May 31, 2014 compared to the same period
ended May 31, 2013, reflecting higher commodity prices and increased utilization. Total operating and
maintenance expenses, including fuel costs, for the nine month period ended May 31, 2013 were $478.5
million.

Cost of Fuel

The cost of natural gas decreased by $48.6 million or 16.7% to $242.7 million for the nine month
period ended May 31, 2015 compared to $291.3 million in the same period ended May 31, 2014. The
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average commodity price per Mcf decreased by $0.71 or $34.4 million, the volume of natural gas utilized
decreased by 2.2 Bcf, 4.3% or $10.0 million and demand charges decreased by $6.0 million. The nine
month period ended May 31, 2014 included a refund of $1.8 million.

The cost of natural gas utilized increased by $53.3 million or 22.4% to $291.3 million for the
nine month period ended May 31, 2014, compared to $238.0 million for the same period ended May 31,
2013. The average commodity price per Mcf increased by $0.83 or $42.3 million, the volume of gas
utilized increased by 3.5 Bcf, or $13.2 million and demand charges decreased by $0.5 million. Refunds
were $1.8 million during the nine month period ended May 31, 2014. Variations in the cost of purchased
gas are passed through to customers under the GCR provision of PGW’s rate schedules. Over
recoveries or under recoveries of purchased gas costs are subtracted from or added to gas revenues
and are included in current assets or current liabilities, thereby eliminating the effect that recovery of
gas costs would otherwise have on net income.

The average natural gas commodity prices for utilized gas for the nine month periods ended
May 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 were $3.90, $4.60 and $5.04 per Mcf, respectively.

All Other Operating Expenses

Expenditures for street operations, infrastructure improvements, and plant operations for the
nine month period ended May 31, 2015 totaled $69.7 million compared to $69.0 million for the same
period ended May 31, 2014 mainly a result of higher labor costs. In addition, the cost for customer
services, collections, account management, marketing, health insurance and the administrative areas
increased by $4.9 million or 5.0% in the nine month period ended May 31, 2015 primarily due to costs
associated with higher health insurance premiums, higher corporate consulting fees, and higher property
insurance premiums. Expenditures for street operations, infrastructure improvements, and plant
operations for the nine month period ended May 31, 2014 totaled $69.0 million compared to $59.8
million for the same period ended May 31, 2013. This increase is mainly as a result of higher costs
associated with gas distribution and additional use of LNG. In addition, the cost for customer services,
collections, account management, marketing, health insurance and the administrative areas increased by
$6.8 million or 7.4% in the nine month period ended May 31, 2014.

Pension costs increased $1.7 million for the nine month period ended May 31, 2015 as compared to
the period ended May 31, 2014. Pension costs decreased $0.9 million for the nine month period ended
May 31, 2014 as compared to the period ended May 31, 2013. Pension costs for all years referenced are based
on changes in applicable payroll and pension expense as a percentage of payroll which are based on an
actuarial studies performed at the end of each fiscal year.

Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) costs decreased $4.3 million for the nine month period
ended May 31, 2015 when compared to the same period ended May 31, 2014. OPEB costs decreased
$3.0 million for the nine month period ended May 31, 2014 when compared to the same period ended
May 31, 2013. OPEB costs decreased in both periods due to higher OPEB Trust investment income and
lower unfunded liabilities, which are amortized over a 30-year period. These factors combined to lower
OPEB costs over both periods referenced.

Provision for Uncollectible Accounts

Based on the most recent accounts receivable collectability evaluation, the provision for uncollectible
accounts for the nine month period ended May 31, 2015 totaled $35.3 million, an increase of $2.2 million or
6.6% compared to the same period ended May 31, 2014, which totaled $33.1 million. The accumulated
provision for uncollectible accounts at May 31, 2015 reflects a balance of $114.3 million, compared to the
$113.0 million balance as of May 31, 2014. The provision for uncollectible accounts for the nine month
period ended May 31, 2014 totaled $33.1 million an increase of $1.3 million or 4.1% compared to the same
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period ended May 31, 2013, which totaled $31.8 million. The accumulated provision for uncollectible
accounts at May 31, 2014 reflects a balance of $113.0 million compared to the $106.0 million balance as of
May 31, 2013.

Net Depreciation Expense

Net depreciation expense increased by $1.0 million for the nine month period ended May 31, 2015 as
compared to the same period ended May 31, 2014. Net depreciation expense increased $0.4 million for the
nine month period ended May 31, 2014 as compared to the same period ended May 31, 2013. The change
between periods is caused by increased utility plant balances.

Interest and Other Income

Interest and other income for the nine month period ended May 31, 2015 was $0.4 million higher than
the same period ended May 31, 2014, primarily due to credits associated with PGW’s interstate pipeline
capacity release program. Interest and other income for the nine month period ended May 31, 2014 was $3.8
million higher than the same period ended May 31, 2013. This loss was primarily associated with the
termination of the Guaranteed Investment Contract related to the 1998 General Ordinance bonds.

Total Interest Expense

Total interest expense was $40.4 million for the nine month period ended May 31, 2015 a decrease of
$2.5 million when compared to the same period ended May 31, 2014. Interest expense was lower for the nine
month period ended May 31, 2015, primarily due to lower principal debt balances. Total interest expense was
$42.9 million for the nine month period ended May 31, 2014, a decrease of $2.5 million when compared to the
same period ended May 31, 2013. Interest expense was lower for the nine month period ended May 31, 2014,
primarily due to lower principal debt balances.
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Table 16
UNAUDITED
CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS
(THOUSANDS OF U.S. DOLLARS)

NINE MONTHS ENDED MAY 31

Assets 2015 2014 2013
Current assets:
Accounts receivable (net of accumulated

provision for uncollectible accounts of

$114,274, $112,975 and $105,973 for 2015,

2014 and 2013, respectively $ 127,550 $ 152,828 $ 134,694
Restricted investment funds 5,820 27,730 67,761
Other current assets and

cash and cash equivalents, gas

inventories, materials, and supplies 205,861 220,720 209,111

Total current assets 339,231 401,278 411,566
Non-current Assets:
Utility plant, net 1,214,473 1,168,463 1,138,317
Unamortized bond insurance costs 12,996 14,528 15,646
Sinking fund, revenue bonds 106,268 105,501 105,475
Other assets 36,882 33,364 29,671
Total non-current assets 1,370,619 1,321,856 1,289,109
Total assets 1,709,850 1,723,134 1,700,675
Deferred outflows of resources
Accumulated fair value of hedging derivatives 19,944 13,125 35,777
Unamortized losses on reacquired debt bonds 31,489 38,970 46,934
Total assets and deferred
outflows of resources $ 1,761,283 $ 1,775,229 $ 1,783,386
Net Position and Liabilities
Net position $ 481,388 $ 429424 $ 381,066
Total long-term debt 968,026 1,028,267 1,077,704
Current liabilities:
Current portion of long-term debt 57,091 49,318 37,103
Other current liabilities 81,704 92,640 202,332
Total current
Liabilities 138,795 141,958 122,284
Other liabilities 173,074 175,580 202,332
Total net position and
liabilities $ 1,761,283 $ 1,775,229 $ 1,783,386
Assets
Utility Plant

Utility plant, net of depreciation, totaled $1,214.5 million as of May 31, 2015, an increase of
$46.0 million or 3.9% compared with the May 31, 2014 balance of $1,168.5 million. Capital expenditures for
construction of distribution facilities, purchase of equipment, information technology enhancements, and other
general improvements were $54.7 million for the nine month period ended May 31, 2015, compared to $46.5
million for the same period ended May 31, 2014. PGW funded capital expenditures through drawdowns from
the Capital Improvement Fund in the amounts of $0 and $22.1 million for the nine month periods ended
May 31, 2015 and May 31, 2014, respectively. Utility plant, net of depreciation, totaled $1,168.5 million
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as of May 31, 2014, an increase of $30.2 million or 2.7% compared with the May 31, 2013 balance of
$1,138.3 million. Capital expenditures were $46.5 million for the nine month period ended May 31, 2014
compared to $44.2 million for the same period ended May 31, 2013. The major capital expenditures in both
nine month periods were associated with PGW’s distribution infrastructure, namely, gas mains and customer
service lines.

Accounts Receivable

At May 31, 2015, accounts receivable (net) totaled $127.6 million, a decrease of $25.2 million or
16.5% from the May 31, 2014 total of (net) $152.8 million. The accumulated provision for uncollectible
accounts totaling $114.3 million increased by $1.3 million for May 31, 2015 compared to May 31, 2014. The
decrease in accounts receivable (net) was caused by lower revenues for the nine month period ended May 31,
2015 as compared to the same period ended May 31, 2014. The May 31, 2014 accounts receivable (net) total
of $152.8 million was $18.1 million higher than the May 31, 2013 balance. This increase was caused
primarily by an 11.1% increase in total operating revenues during the nine month period ended May 31, 2014
as compared to the same period ended May 31, 2013. The accumulated provision for uncollectible accounts
totaled $113.0 million and $106.0 million on May 31, 2014 and May 31, 2013, respectively.

Other Current Assets, Cash and Cash Equivalents, Gas Inventories, Materials, and Supplies

As of May 31, 2015, cash and cash equivalents were $159.6 million, an increase of $1.8 million from
May 31, 2014. As of May 31, 2015, the value of natural gas in storage decreased by $9.0 million or 24.0%
compared to May 31, 2014. The decrease in gas inventory reflects a 1.7% increase in the volume of natural
gas in storage as well as a $1.24 drop in commodity cost per Mcf of natural gas. Materials and supplies of
$38.8 million, which principally include gas inventory, maintenance spare parts, and material decreased by
$8.5 million compared to May 31, 2014. Other current assets totaled $7.5 million as of May 31, 2015, down
$8.1 million from the same period the prior year, primarily due to a decrease in the deferred GCR recorded as
an asset. As of May 31, 2014, cash and cash equivalents were $157.8 million, an increase of $25.2 million
from May 31, 2013. As of May 31, 2014, the value of natural gas in storage decreased by $12.0 million or
24.3% compared to May 31, 2013. The primary cause of this change was a 25.1% decrease in the volume of
natural gas in storage as of May 31, 2014 as compared to May 31, 2013. Storage volume was used during the
nine month period ended May 31, 2014 to meet operational requirements. Other current assets totaled $15.6
million as of May 31, 2014, down $2.5 million from the same period the prior year, primarily due to a decrease
in the receivable from the pension fund.

Other Non-Current Assets

As of May 31, 2015, other non-current assets included primarily unamortized bond insurance costs,
the Sinking Fund, and a regulatory asset for environmental expenses totaled, $156.1 million, representing an
increase of $2.7 million from May 31, 2014, mainly due to an increase in the underbilled GCR. As of May 31,
2014, other non-current assets including unamortized bond insurance costs, the Sinking Fund, and a regulatory
asset for environmental expenses totaled, $153.4 million, representing an increase of $2.6 million from
May 31, 2013.

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Deferred outflows of resources, which represent outflows of resources related to future periods,
consist of an amount offsetting PGW’s interest rate swap liability related to certain of its variable rate debt, and
the unamortized loss on reacquired bonds, and decreased $0.7 million from $52.1 million at May 31, 2014 to
$51.4 million at May 31, 2015 due to amortization of the loss on reacquired debt offset by an increase in the
fair value of the interest rate swap liability. The May 31, 2014 balance of $52.1 million was $30.6 million
less than the May 31, 2013 balance. This was primarily due to changes in the fair value of the interest rate
swap liability.
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Liabilities
Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt, including the current portion and unamortized discount and premium, totaled
$1,025.1 million for the period ended May 31, 2015, $52.5 million less than the same period ended May 31,
2014. Long-term debt, including the current portion and unamortized discount and premium, totaled $1,077.6
million for the nine month period ended May 31, 2014, $37.2 million less than the same period ended May 31,
2013. The decrease in both periods is primarily the result of the scheduled amortization of bond principal.

Accounts Payable

In the period ended May 31, 2015 accounts payable totaling $38.4 million decreased $5.4 million or
12.3% compared with the same period ended May 31, 2014. The decrease between fiscal years is due to lower
natural gas payables balances. In the period ended May 31, 2014, accounts payable totaling $43.8 million
decreased $0.3 million or 0.7% compared with the same period ended May 31, 2013.

Other Current Liabilities

In the period ended May 31, 2015 other current liabilities totaling $24.8 million decreased $4.9
million or 16.5% compared with the period ended May 31, 2014. The decrease is due to lower liabilities for
sales tax and seasonal demand. In the period ended May 31, 2014, other current liabilities totaling $29.7
million increased $8.9 million or 42.8% compared with the same period ended May 31, 2013. The increase
was caused by an escrow deposit from a third party supplier and advanced receipts for an infrastructure
project.

Other Liabilities

As of May 31, 2015 other liabilities totaling $173.1 million decreased $2.5 million compared to
May 31, 2014 due primarily to a decrease in the OPEB liability. As of May 31, 2014 other liabilities totaling
$175.6 million decreased $26.7 million compared to May 31, 2013 primarily due to a decrease in the liability
recorded for the interest rate swap.

Liquidity/Cash Flow

PGW had no commercial paper outstanding as of May 31, 2015. As a result PGW had the ability to
issue up to $120.0 million of commercial paper. The unrestricted cash balance as of May 31, 2015 was $159.6
million.

PGW Payment to City

PGW made a payment of $18.0 million to the City in each of the City’s Fiscal Years 2015, 2014 and
2013. The City has the right to obtain such payment from PGW in any lawful manner, including set off
against payments the City would otherwise make to PGW. The obligation of PGW to make the payment to
the City is subject and subordinate to the pledge and application of Gas Works Revenues and Project
Revenues, as such terms are defined in the 1998 General Ordinance, see “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF
PAYMENT FOR THE 1998 ORDINANCE BONDS — Order of Application of Revenues” herein.

Short-Term Debt
Due to the highly seasonal nature of PGW’s business, short-term debt may be utilized to meet working

capital requirements. Pursuant to the provisions of the Note Ordinance, the City, may sell Gas Works Notes in
a principal amount, which together with interest, may not exceed $150.0 million outstanding at any one time.
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No short-term notes are presently outstanding. Payment of principal of and interest on short-term notes are
secured by two letters of credit. Under no circumstances will the City issue notes, together with interest
thereon, in excess of $120.0 million, unless the stated amount of the respective letter of credit is increased by
the applicable bank.

THE CAFR

The “COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT FOR FISCAL YEARS ENDED
AUGUST 31, 2014 AND 2013 OF THE PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS,” (the “CAFR”) is attached as
APPENDIX A. The CAFR includes audited Financial Statements (as defined below), required supplemental
information and unaudited Introductory and Statistical Section as reflected in the Table of Contents in
APPENDIX A. PGW is owned by the City, and is accounted for in the City’s audited financial statements as a
component unit of the City. See APPENDIX C — “THE CITY OF PHILADELPHIA GOVERNMENT AND
FINANCIAL INFORMATION.”

Independent Auditors

The basic financial statements of the Philadelphia Gas Works as of and for the years ended August 31,
2014 and August 31, 2013, included in APPENDIX A to this Official Statement (the “Financial Statements™),
have been audited by KPMG LLP, as stated in their report appearing therein, dated December 23, 2014, except
for note 15, as to which the date is February 23, 2015 and note 8 (a), as to which the date is July 20, 2015.
Any financial information other than in the Financial Statements has not been audited by any firm of
independent auditors and no opinion on such information is expressed in this Official Statement.

Unaudited Statistical Section

PGW prepared the Statistical Section of the CAFR to present comparative information to assist
readers to better understand the Financial Statements, note disclosure and required supplementary information
that appear elsewhere in the CAFR and to more fully comprehend PGW’s overall financial health. The
information in the Statistical Section is presented for the past ten Fiscal Years.

The Statistical Section contains information regarding PGW’s financial trends, revenue capacity, debt
capacity, certain demographic and economic information and operating information.

As discussed in “PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS — Pension Plans and Other Postemployment
Benefits,” GASB 68 is effective for PGW’s Fiscal Year beginning September 1, 2014. The provisions of
GASB 68 are expected to be retrospectively applied, which may result in changes to the basic financial
statements in APPENDIX A when they are presented for comparative purposes alongside PGW’s audited
financial statements as of and for the year ended August 31, 2015.

TAX MATTERS
Federal
Exclusion of Interest from Gross Income

In the opinion of Co-Bond Counsel, under existing statutes, regulations, rulings and court decisions,
interest on the Bonds will not be includible in the gross income of the holders thereof for federal income tax
purposes, assuming continuing compliance by the City with the requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986, as amended (the “Code”). Interest on the Bonds will not be a specific preference item for purposes of
computing the federal alternative minimum tax (“AMT”); however, interest on the Bonds held by corporations
is included in the computation of “adjusted current earnings,” a portion of which is taken into account in
determining the AMT imposed on corporations.
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In rendering its opinion, Co-Bond Counsel have assumed compliance by the City with the covenants
contained in the 1998 Ordinance and the Tax Compliance Agreement that are intended to comply with the
provisions of the Code relating to actions to be taken by the City in respect of the Bonds after issuance thereof
to the extent necessary to effect or maintain the exclusion from federal gross income of the interest on the
Bonds. These covenants relate to, inter alia, the use of and investment of proceeds of the Bonds and the rebate
to the United States Treasury of specified arbitrage earnings, if any. Failure to comply with such covenants
could result in interest on the Bonds becoming includible in gross income for federal income tax purposes
from the date of issuance of the Bonds.

Other Federal Tax Matters

Ownership or disposition of the Bonds may result in other federal tax consequences to certain
taxpayers, including, without limitation, certain S corporations, foreign corporations with branches in the
United States, property and casualty insurance companies, taxpayers who have an initial basis in the Bonds
greater or less than the principal amount thereof, individual recipients of Social Security or Railroad
Retirement benefits, and taxpayers, including banks, thrift institutions and other financial institutions subject to
Section 265 of the Code, who may be deemed to have incurred or continued indebtedness to purchase or to
carry the Bonds.

Co-Bond Counsel are not rendering any opinion as to any federal tax matters other than those
described under the caption “Exclusion of Interest from Gross Income’ and expressly stated in the form
of the opinions of Co-Bond Counsel included as APPENDIX H hereto. Prospective purchasers of the
Bonds should consult their independent tax advisors with regard to all federal tax matters.

Pennsylvania

In the opinion of Co-Bond Counsel, under the laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania as
presently enacted and construed, interest on the Bonds is exempt from Pennsylvania personal income tax and
Pennsylvania corporate net income tax and the Bonds are exempt from personal property taxes in
Pennsylvania; however, under the laws of the Commonwealth, as enacted and construed on the date hereof,
any profits, gains or income derived from the sale, exchange or other disposition of the Bonds will be subject
to Pennsylvania taxes and local taxes within the Commonwealth.

Other

The Bonds and interest thereon may be subject to state and local taxes in jurisdictions other than the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania under applicable state or local tax laws.

Purchasers of the Bonds should consult their independent tax advisors with regard to all state and local
tax matters.

Changes in Federal and Pennsylvania Tax Law

From time to time, there are legislative proposals in the Congress and in state legislatures that, if
enacted, could alter or amend the treatment of the Bonds for federal and state tax purposes or adversely affect
the market value or marketability of the Bonds. It cannot be predicted whether or in what form any such
proposal might be enacted or whether, if enacted, it would apply to bonds issued prior to enactment. In
addition, from time to time regulatory actions are announced or proposed, and litigation is threatened or
commenced, which, if implemented or concluded in a particular manner, could adversely affect the market
value or marketability of the Bonds. It cannot be predicted whether any such regulatory action will be
implemented, whether any particular litigation or judicial action will be commenced or, if commenced, how it
will be resolved, or whether the Bonds or the market value or marketability thereof would be affected thereby.
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General

The foregoing is only a general summary of certain provisions of the Code and Pennsylvania law was
enacted and in effect on the date of this Official Statement and does not purport to be complete. Holders of the
Bonds, especially those subject to special rules, should consult their own tax advisors as to the effects, if any,
of the Code and state and local tax matters, including any pending or proposed legislation, regulatory
initiatives or litigation.

The opinions expressed by Co-Bond Counsel are based upon existing legislation and regulations as
interpreted by relevant judicial and regulatory authorities as of the date of delivery of the Bonds, and Co-Bond
Counsel will express no opinion as of any date subsequent thereto or with respect to any pending legislation,
regulatory initiatives or litigation.

RATINGS

Moody’s, S&P and Fitch have assigned the Bonds ratings of “Baal,” stable outlook,” “A-,” positive
outlook, and “BBB+,” stable outlook, respectively.

A rating, including any related outlook with respect to potential changes in such rating, reflects only
the view of the rating agency giving such rating and is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold the Bonds.
An explanation of the procedure and methodology used by each rating agency and the significance of the
rating it assigns to the Bonds may be obtained only from the rating agency furnishing the rating.

Ratings may be changed at any time, and no assurance can be given that they will not be revised
downward or withdrawn entirely by any rating agency. Any such downward revision or withdrawal of a rating
may have an adverse effect on the market price of the Bonds.

None of the City, PGW and the Underwriters has undertaken any responsibility to assure the
maintenance of any particular rating on the Bonds and shall have no liability if a rating is lowered, withdrawn
or suspended.

The City has agreed, in the Continuing Disclosure Agreement, to report actual rating changes on the
Bonds. See “CONTINUING DISCLOSURE” herein.

NO LITIGATION

To the knowledge of the City of Philadelphia Law Department and, solely with respect to (E) below,
based upon certain representations from PGW’s General Counsel, after customary inquiry, no litigation is
pending against the City before any court, public board or agency, or threatened in writing against the City (A)
to restrain or enjoin the issuance, sale, execution or delivery of the Bonds, (B) which contests the validity or
enforceability of the Bonds or any proceedings of the City taken with respect to the issuance, sale, execution or
delivery thereof, (C) which contests the pledge or application of any moneys or security provided for the
payment of the Bonds, (D) challenges the existence or powers of the City or (E) other than the Landlord Lien
Suit (see “PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS —Litigation”) in which a final adverse determination, singly or in the
aggregate, would have a material and adverse effect on PGW’s operations or financial condition.

CERTAIN LEGAL MATTERS

All legal matters incident to the authorization, issuance and sale of the Bonds are subject to approval
of the legality of the issuance of the Bonds by Eckert Seamans Cherin & Mellott, LLC and Andre C. Dasent,
P.C., both of Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, Co-Bond Counsel. The proposed forms of such opinions are
included herein as APPENDIX H. Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the Underwriters by Ballard
Spahr LLP of Philadelphia, Pennsylvania and Gonzalez Saggio & Harlan LLP of New York, New York, Co-
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Counsel to the Underwriters. Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the City by the City Solicitor.
Certain legal matters will be passed upon for PGW by the Office of General Counsel of Philadelphia Gas
Works and Eckert Seamans Cherin & Mellott, LLC of Harrisburg, Pennsylvania. Hawkins Delafield & Wood
LLP, as Disclosure Counsel to the City, will deliver an opinion to the City and the Underwriters regarding
certain matters.

The various legal opinions to be delivered concurrently with the delivery of the Bonds express the
professional judgment of the law firms rendering the opinions as to the legal issues explicitly addressed
therein. In rendering a legal opinion, the law firm does not become an insurer or guarantor of that expression
of professional judgment, of the transaction opined upon, or of the future performance of parties to the
transaction. Nor does the rendering of an opinion guarantee the outcome of any legal dispute that may arise
out of the transaction. These legal opinions, generally, are based on existing law and fact and each law firm
expressly disclaims any obligation to update its opinions if there are changes in law or facts subsequent to the
date of such opinions.

CO-FINANCIAL ADVISORS

Public Financial Management, Inc. and Phoenix Capital Partners, LLP both of Philadelphia,
Pennsylvania, have served as financial advisors (the “Financial Advisors”) to the City in respect of the
issuance of the Bonds. The Financial Advisors assisted in the preparation of this Official Statement and in
other matters relating to the planning, structuring and issuance of the Bonds.

The Financial Advisors have received and reviewed but have not independently verified information
in this Official Statement for accuracy or completeness (except, as to each Financial Advisor, the information
in this section). Investors should not draw any conclusions as to the suitability of the Bonds from, or base any
investment decisions upon, the fact that the Financial Advisors have advised the City with respect to the
Bonds. The Financial Advisors’ fees for this issue are contingent upon the sale and issuance of the Bonds.

The Financial Advisors are financial advisory and consulting organizations and are registered
municipal advisors and are not engaged in the business of the underwriting, marketing or trading of municipal
securities or any other negotiable instruments.

CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS

Public Financial Management, Inc., financial advisor to the City, acts as a consultant to PGW on
certain management and labor relations issues and has provided testimony before the PUC on several PGW
rate cases. Eckert Seamans Cherin & Mellott, LLC and Andre C. Dasent, P.C. each provides certain legal
services to the City and to PGW. Ballard Spahr LLP provides certain legal services to the City and to PGW.
Black & Veatch Corporation provides certain professional services (unrelated to the Independent Consultant’s
Engineering Report) to PGW.

UNDERWRITING

The underwriters listed on the cover page to this Official Statement (the “Underwriters”) have agreed
to purchase the Bonds from the City, subject to the terms and conditions of the Bond Purchase Agreement
between the City and Underwriters, at a purchase price of $ (which is equal to the par amount of
$ , plus original issue premium of $ , less the underwriters’ discount of $ ).

The Underwriters may offer and sell the Bonds to certain dealers and others (including sales for
deposit into investment trusts, certain of which may be sponsored or managed by one or more of the
underwriters) at prices lower than the public offering prices stated on the inside cover page hereof. The Bonds
may be offered and sold to certain dealers (including the Underwriters and other dealers depositing Bonds into
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investment trusts) at prices lower than such offering prices, and such public offering prices may be changed
from time to time by the Underwriters without prior notice.

This paragraph has been supplied by Wells Fargo Bank, National Association. Wells Fargo
Securities is the trade name for certain securities-related capital markets and investment banking services of
Wells Fargo & Company and its subsidiaries, including Wells Fargo Bank, National Association. Wells Fargo
Bank, National Association (“WFBNA”), the senior Underwriter of the Bonds, has entered into an agreement
(the “Distribution Agreement”) with its affiliate, Wells Fargo Advisors, LLC (“WFA?”), for the distribution of
certain municipal securities offerings, including the Bonds. Pursuant to the Distribution Agreement, WFBNA
will share a portion of its underwriting compensation with respect to the Bonds with WFA. WFBNA also
utilizes the distribution capabilities of its affiliate Wells Fargo Securities, LLC (“WFSLLC”), for the
distribution of municipal securities offerings, including the Bonds. In connection with utilizing the distribution
capabilities of WFSLLC, WFBNA pays a portion of WFSLLC’s expenses based on its municipal securities
transactions. WFBNA, WESLLC, and WFA are each wholly-owned subsidiaries of Wells Fargo & Company.

This paragraph has been supplied by Citigroup Global Markets Inc. Citigroup Global Markets Inc.,
an underwriter of the Bonds, has entered into a retail distribution agreement with each of TMC Bonds L.L.C.
(“TMC”) and UBS Financial Services Inc. (“UBSFS”). Under these distribution agreements, Citigroup
Global Markets Inc. may distribute municipal securities to retail investors through the financial advisor
network of UBSFS and the electronic primary offering platform of TMC. As part of this arrangement,
Citigroup Global Markets Inc. may compensate TMC (and TMC may compensate its electronic platform
member firms) and UBSFS for their selling efforts with respect to the Bonds.

The following paragraph has been supplied by J.P Morgan Securities LLC. J.P. Morgan Securities
LLC (“JPMS”), one of the Underwriters of the Bonds, has entered into negotiated dealer agreements (each, a
“Dealer Agreement”) with each of Charles Schwab & Co., Inc. (“CS&Co.”) and LPL Financial LLC (“LPL”)
for the retail distribution of certain securities offerings at the original issue prices. Pursuant to each Dealer
Agreement, each of CS&Co. and LPL may purchase Bonds from JPMS at the original issue price less a
negotiated portion of the selling concession applicable to any Bonds that such firm sells.”

The paragraph has been supplied by Loop Capital Markets LLC. Loop Capital Markets LLC (“Loop
Capital Markets”), one of the Underwriters of the Bonds, has entered into distribution agreements (each a
“Distribution Agreement”) with each of Deutsche Bank Securities Inc. (“DBS”) and Credit Suisse Securities
USA LLC (“CS”) for the retail distribution of certain securities offerings at the original issue prices. Pursuant
to each Distribution Agreement, each of DBS and CS will purchase Bonds from Loop Capital Markets at the
original issue prices less a negotiated portion of the selling concession applicable to any Bonds that such firm
sells.

The Underwriters and their respective affiliates are full service financial institutions engaged in
various activities, which may include securities trading, commercial and investment banking, advisory,
investment management, principal investment, hedging, financing and brokerage activities. Certain of the
Underwriters and their respective affiliates have, from time to time, performed and may in the future perform,
various investment banking services for the City for which they received or will receive customary fees and
expenses.

In the ordinary course of their various business activities, the Underwriters and their respective
affiliates may make or hold a broad array of investments and actively trade debt and equity securities (or
related derivative securities) and financial instruments (which may include bank loans and/or credit default
swaps) for their own account and for the accounts of their customers and may at any time hold long and short
positions in such securities and instruments. Such investment and securities activities may involve securities
and instruments of the City and PGW.
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE

In order to assist the Underwriters in complying with the requirements of Rule 15¢2-12 promulgated
by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the City
will enter into a Continuing Disclosure Agreement with Digital Assurance Certification, L.L.C., as
dissemination agent for the benefit of the Registered Owners (as defined in such agreement) of the Bonds, to
be dated the date of delivery of the Bonds, the form of which is attached hereto as APPENDIX F.

During the previous five years, the City has failed on occasion to timely file event notices related to
certain changes to ratings assigned to bonds issued by or on behalf of the City including: (i) certain enhanced
rating changes (related to changes to the credit quality of bond insurers and of banks providing credit and
liquidity support for certain variable rate bonds); and (ii) certain underlying credit rating changes. In other
instances, the City timely filed such notices but did not associate the notices with all specific relevant
outstanding obligations or filed the notice through incorporation by reference of information in an offering
document. The foregoing description of instances of non-compliance by the City with its continuing
disclosure undertakings should not be construed as an acknowledgement by the City that any such instance
was material. As of the date hereof, the City is currently in compliance in all material respects with its
previous undertakings with regard to continuing disclosure for prior obligations issued. The City has reviewed
and updated its disclosure policies and procedures to ensure that the City remains in compliance with its
continuing disclosure undertakings in the future.

CERTAIN REFERENCES

All summaries of the provisions of the Bonds and the security therefor, the Act, the Gas Choice Act,
the Constitution and other laws of the Commonwealth, the 1998 General Ordinance, the Thirteenth
Supplemental Ordinance and the Bond Committee Determinations, set forth herein, including APPENDIX E
hereto, and all summaries and references to other materials not purported to be quoted in full, are only brief
outlines of certain provisions thereof and do not constitute complete statements of such documents or
provisions. Copies of the Act, the 1998 General Ordinance and the Thirteenth Supplemental Ordinance are
available from the Office of the Director of Finance, Municipal Services Building, 1401 John F. Kennedy
Boulevard, Suite 1330, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19102. Reference is made hereby to the complete
documents relating to such matters for the complete terms and provisions thereof. So far as statements are
made in this Official Statement involving matters of opinion, whether or not expressly so stated, they are made
merely as such and not as representations of fact.

MISCELLANEOUS

This Official Statement is made available only in connection with the sale of the Bonds and may not
be used in whole or in part for any other purpose. This Official Statement is not to be construed as a contract
or agreement between the City, PGW or the Underwriters and the purchasers or owners of any of the Bonds.
Any statements made in this Official Statement involving matters of opinion, whether or not expressly so
stated, are intended merely as opinions and not as representations of fact. No representation is made that any
opinions or estimates herein will be realized. The information and expressions of opinion herein are subject to
change without notice, and neither the delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale made hereunder shall,
under any circumstances, create any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of PGW or the
City since the date hereof. The City will provide financial and other information regarding PGW from time to
time to S&P, Moody’s and Fitch in connection with securities ratings assigned by those rating agencies to
obligations payable from Gas Works Revenues.
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The attached Appendices are an integral part of this Official Statement and should be read in their
entirety together with the foregoing statements.

This Official Statement has been duly executed and delivered by the following officer on behalf of the
City of Philadelphia.

CITY OF PHILADELPHIA, PENNSYLVANIA
By:

Rob Dubow
Director of Finance
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS

Joseph F. Golden, Jr. ¢ Executive Vice President and Acting Chief Financial Officer
800 West Montgomery Avenue ¢ Philadelphia, PA 19122

Phone: 215-684-6464 o Fax: 215-684-6564

Email: JGolden@pgworks.com

The Chairman and Members of the Philadelphia Facilities Management Corporation Philadelphia,
Pennsylvania:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the Philadelphia Gas Works (PGW or the Company)
for the years ended August 31, 2014 and 2013 is hereby submitted. The financial statements were prepared in
accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP).
Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including
all disclosures, rests with PGW management.

The financial statements were audited by KPMG, a firm of licensed certified public accountants. The annual
audit was conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that KPMG plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, no such opinion was expressed. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The audit provides a
reasonable basis for KPMG’s opinion.

In KPMG’s opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
PGW as of August 31, 2014 and 2013, and the changes in its financial position and its cash flows for the years
then ended, in conformity with U.S. GAAP. Accordingly, an unmodified opinion was rendered. This
independent auditor’s report is presented as the first component of the financial section of this report.

Management has provided a narrative to accompany the basic financial statements. This narrative is known
as Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the
MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it.

PROFILE OF PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS

PGW began providing gas service to the City of Philadelphia (the City) in 1836, when the City’s first gas lights
were turned on along Second Street, between Vine and South Streets. In 1841, PGW came under City
ownership. In 1897, the City contracted for PGW to be managed by UGI Corporation (then United Gas
Improvement Company). Effective January 1, 1973 the City contracted with Philadelphia Facilities
Management Corporation to operate and manage PGW.

www.pgworks.com


mailto:JGolden@pgworks.com

2|Page

Prior to July 1, 2000, PGW was under the regulatory jurisdiction of the Philadelphia Gas Commission (PGC).
The PGC had the authority to set PGW’s rates and tariffs. The PGC also approved PGW’s annual Operating
Budget and reviewed PGW’s Capital Budget prior to approval by the City Council of Philadelphia (City
Council).

Effective July 1, 2000, and pursuant to the passage of the Pennsylvania Natural Gas Choice and Competition
Act (the Act), PGW came under the regulatory jurisdiction of the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission
(PUC). Under the PUC’s jurisdiction, PGW filed a restructuring plan on July 1, 2002, which among other
things, provided for an unbundled tariff permitting customer choice of the commodity supplier by September 1,
2003. Under the Act, the PUC is required to follow the “same ratemaking methodology and requirements”
that were previously applicable to the PGC when determining PGW’s revenue requirements and approving
overall rates and charges. The PGC continues to approve PGW’s Operating Budget and review its Capital
Budget. PGW’s Capital Budget must be approved by City Council.

PGW, as of September 1, 2003, is operating under its Restructuring Compliance Tariff. The Restructuring
Compliance Tariff Rates are designed to maintain revenue neutrality and the Tariff Rules and Regulations are
designed to comport with the Pennsylvania Public Utility Code.

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls designed to protect the assets of
PGW from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the
preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP. The internal controls are subject to periodic
evaluation by management in order to determine their adequacy. The concept of reasonable assurance
recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits to be derived; and (2) the valuation of
costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

FACTORS AFFECTING FINANCIAL CONDITION

The information presented in this report is best understood in the context of the environment in which PGW
operates. A more comprehensive analysis of these factors is available in PGW’s Operating Budget and Five
Year Forecast and Capital Budget and Five Year Forecast. These documents can be obtained online at
www.pgworks.com.

The local economy is showing progress on several fronts despite continued fiscal challenges that arise from
the demographic and economic changes that have occurred in recent Philadelphia history. PGW recognizes
the challenges faced by our customers and has taken responsible action to assist our customers in need. PGW
provides a discount on gas rates for senior citizens. There are approximately 21,000 customers receiving this
discount on their current gas bills. PGW also provides a discounted payment plan with a possible forgiveness
of arrearages over a three year time period. This program is offered to low income customers. There were
approximately 62,000 customers enrolled in this program at the end of Fiscal Year (FY) 2014.

The single greatest operating expense is the cost of natural gas. The rate charged to PGW’s customers to
recover these costs is called the Gas Cost Rate (GCR). The GCR reflects the increases or decreases in natural
gas costs and other costs. This GCR mechanism provides the flexibility to rapidly reflect current conditions
without the time delay inherent in full base rate alteration. The intent is to achieve an annual balance between
the costs incurred for fuel and their pass through to customers. In FY 2014, the average commodity price of

www.pgworks.com
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natural gas was $4.63 per thousand cubic feet (Mcf). This marks an increase in price from prior fiscal years
and is reflected in a higher monthly bill passed through to customers.

The temperature and other weather conditions greatly affect the gas usage of heating customers of PGW.
Colder than normal weather conditions results in a greater demand for natural gas and warmer than normal
weather conditions results in a lower demand for natural gas. In FY 2014, the temperature in Philadelphia was
slightly colder than normal resulting in an increased demand for natural gas. This increased demand for natural
gas resulted in higher operating margins.

PGW has recognized the need to stabilize and normalize revenue due to variations in weather from one fiscal
year to another fiscal year. PGW requested a Weather Normalization Adjustment Clause (WNA) to address
fluctuating revenue due to weather conditions. The WNA was approved by the PUC in 2002. The purpose of
the WNA is to neutralize the impact of weather on PGW’s revenues. This allows PGW to achieve the recovery
of appropriate costs as authorized by the PUC. The WNA results in neither a rate increase nor a rate decrease,
but acts as a billing adjustment. The main benefits of the WNA are the stabilization of cash flow and the
reduction of the need for short-term borrowing from year to year. The WNA is applied to customer invoices
rendered during the period October 1 through May 31 of each year for each billing cycle.

At the end of FY 2014, PGW reported a net income of $49 million, 15.7% greater than net income reported in
FY 2013. PGW also saw further reductions to long-term debt, and a 31.9 % decrease in Other Postemployment
Benefits expense (OPEB), primarily due to continued funding of the OPEB trust. The challenge going forward
is reducing the dependency on heating degree days, while continuing to increase revenue and positive cash
flow. PGW intends to drive demand for natural gas in new markets, and capitalize on new revenue streams.

CAPITAL PROGRAM

PGW’s annual capital program primarily supports an infrastructure investment plan to replace existing plant
and facilities to ensure that PGW continues to operate the company’s assets at a high standard of safety and
reliability. The budget also supports PGW’s efforts to provide for new load additions that offer economic
advantages. This helps to spread PGW’s fixed costs over a larger volume of customer usage, thereby positively
impacting customer rates. Lastly, funds are requested for investment in systems and technology to improve
customer service and the efficiency of its delivery.

The vast majority of PGW’s capital program is dedicated to maintaining the integrity of underground
distribution facilities. To this end, PGW implemented an annual program to reduce the inventory of cast iron
main by 18 miles a year. On February 14, 2012, Act 11 was signed into law, providing Pennsylvania utility
companies with a supplemental recovery mechanism (a Distribution System Improvement Charge, or DSIC)
for costs related to incremental/accelerated distribution system repair, improvement and replacement. Act 11
permits gas utilities to recover 5.0% of their non-gas revenues via the recovery mechanism, approximately $22
million for PGW. In order for a utility company to establish such a recovery mechanism, it must submit, along
with other requirements, a Long-Term Infrastructure Improvement Plan (LTIIP) and a DSIC petition to the
PUC for review and approval. Accordingly, PGW submitted its LTIIP on December 3, 2012, and filed its
DSIC petition on January 18, 2013. The PUC approved PGW’s DSIC petition with an effective date of
June 1, 2013 and PGW implemented the DSIC surcharge on July 1, 2013. This mechanism allows PGW to
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its main replacement program by approximately $22 million without being dependent on long term debt to
finance the entire amount.

MARKETING EFFORTS

PGW’s Marketing department is focused on natural gas market growth and retention in the City of
Philadelphia. Natural gas is Philadelphia’s clean energy solution and Marketing is dedicated to promoting
natural gas as the best value in today’s competitive energy market. PGW supports and promotes viable
solutions to the energy needs of all our customers.

Large commercial and industrial sales are managed by the Major Accounts sales group, responsible for 1.6 Bef
of new natural gas load in FY 2014. Major Accounts is focused on pursuing and developing new business and
dedicated to developing energy solutions with operational and economic advantages. Major Accounts’
management of a project for a leading manufacturer of petroleum and petrochemical products added
approximately 0.5 Bef of new load and was a significant highlight in FY 2014.

Small commercial and residential sales are managed by the Residential & Commercial sales group and are
responsible for approximately 325,000 Mcf of new load in FY 2014. A highpoint for FY 2014 was the
Residential & Commercial group’s management of a new residential high rise project which added 27,000 Mcf
of new load. The project consists of 98 luxury apartments containing natural gas heaters, ranges, grills, and a
heated pool.

The Marketing department is also responsible for the advertising and sales of the Parts & Labor Plan (PLP)
and residential conversion incentives. PLP serves to protect customers from parts and labor costs associated
with repair or replacement of defective or worn parts as a result of normal usage of covered equipment. The
program generated $6 million in revenue with over 44,000 plans sold in FY 2014. The residential conversion
program incentivizes customers to convert their home heaters from an alternative fuel to natural gas. The
program accounted for approximately 20,000 Mcf in new load for FY 2014.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

PGW was awarded the prestigious Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting by the
Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) for its FY 2013 CAFR.
This was the second straight year that PGW received this prestigious award. This report for FY 2014 is PGW’s
third submission to the program. The preparation of the CAFR on a timely basis was made possible by the
dedicated service of the entire staff of the Finance organization as well as various other departments within the
Company. Each has my sincere appreciation for their valuable contributions.

Respectfully submitted,

Joseph F. Golden, Jr.
Executive Vice President and Acting Chief Financial Officer
February 23, 2015
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&.
!IL!!LL KPMG LLP

1601 Market Street
Philadelphia, PA 19103-2499

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Controller of the City of Philadelphia and
Chairman and Members of the Philadelphia
Facilities Management Corporation

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Philadelphia Gas Works (the Company), a
component unit of the City of Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, as of and for the years ended August 31, 2014 and
2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Company’s basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted
our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Philadelphia Gas Works as of August 31, 2014 and 2013, and the changes in its financial position,
and its cash flows for the years then ended, in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

KPMG LLP is a Delaware limited liability partnership,
the U.S. member firm of KPMG International Cooperative
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity.
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Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

U.S. generally accepted accounting principles require that the management’s discussion and analysis on
pages 3-14 and the schedules of pension funding progress and other postemployment benefits funding
progress on pages 57 and 58 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements
in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to
the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries,
the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audits of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audits of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on them.

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
December 23, 2014, except for note 15, as to which the date is February 23, 2015 and note 8 (a), as to
which the date is July 20, 2015



PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
August 31, 2014 and 2013

The narrative overview and analysis of the financial statements of Philadelphia Gas Works (the Company or PGW)
for the years ended August 31, 2014 and 2013 have been prepared by PGW’s management. The information
presented here is unaudited and should be read in conjunction with additional information contained in PGW’s
financial statements.

Financial Highlights

The Fiscal Year (FY) 2014 reflected a 3.2% colder than normal winter. The FY 2014 period was 13.3%
colder than the prior year and firm gas sales increased by 3.8 billion Cubic Feet (Bcf). In addition, the
Weather Normalization Adjustment (WNA), which was in effect from October 2013 through May 2014,
resulted in heating customers receiving credits totaling $12.3 million as a result of the temperatures
experienced during the period. FY 2013 was 10.2% warmer than normal. However, the FY 2013 period was
28.1% colder than the prior year and firm gas sales increased by 6.4 Bcf. In addition, the WNA, which was
in effect from October 2012 through May 2013, resulted in heating customers receiving charges totaling
$8.4 million as a result of the temperatures experienced during the period.

PGW achieved a collection rate of 94.9% in the current period, 91.9% in FY 2013, and 96.6% in FY 2012.
The increase in the collection rate of 3.0% between FY 2014 and FY 2013 was a return to normal historic
levels after a brief dip in FY 2013. The collection rate is calculated by dividing the total gas receipts collected
in FY 2014 by the total gas billings that were applied to PGW customers’ accounts from September 1, 2013
through August 31, 2014. The same methodology was utilized in FY 2013 and FY 2012.

PGW continues to have various business initiatives that pertain to improving collections, productivity, and
operational efficiencies throughout the Company. PGW, at the end of FY 2014 and FY 2013, had no
tax-exempt commercial paper outstanding and a cash balance of $105.7 million and $100.9 million,
respectively. This reflects overall increases of $4.8 million and $25.1 million at the end of FY 2014 and FY
2013, respectively. PGW had a cash balance of $75.8 million at the end of FY 2012.

Liquidity/Cash Flow — At December 19, 2014, $120.0 million was available from the commercial paper
program. The cash balance at December 19, 2014 was $80.6 million.

The Company’s FY 2015 Capital Budget was approved by the City Council of the City of Philadelphia and
funding was provided to continue the implementation of an 18-mile Cast Iron Main Replacement Program.
Main replacement cost for this program in FY 2015 is expected to be $21.4 million. The total six-year cost
of the Cast Iron Main Replacement Program is forecasted to be $136.4 million.

The Company’s recent debt activity is as follows:

. On August 28, 2012, the Company accelerated payment of $20.2 million of principal for bonds issued
under the 1998 General Ordinance with internally generated funds. The defeased bonds were for these
respective series and amounts: Fourth Series — $3.1 million, Fifth Series — $2.9 million, Seventh Series
— $6.1 million, Eighth Series A — $5.3 million, and Ninth Series — $2.8 million.

. On September 28, 2011, the City of Philadelphia (the City) issued:

- Gas Works Revenue Bonds, Twentieth Series (1975 General Ordinance) in the amount of
$16.2 million for the purpose of refunding the entire Sixteenth Series Bond (1975 General

3 (Continued)



PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
August 31, 2014 and 2013

Ordinance), and paying the costs of issuing the bonds. The Twentieth Series Bonds, with fixed
interest rates that range from 2.0% to 5.0%, have maturity dates through 2015.

- Gas Works Revenue Bonds, Tenth Series (1998 General Ordinance) in the amount of
$72.6 million for the purpose of refunding the entire First Series A, First Series C, Second
Series, and Third Series Bonds (1998 General Ordinance), and paying the costs of issuing the
bonds. The Tenth Series Bonds, with fixed interest rates that range from 3.0% to 5.0%, have
maturity dates through 2026.

. On September 1, 2011, the City defeased $29.5 million of the Eighth Series variable rate Bonds
utilizing internally generated funds. As a result of this defeasance, a portion of the related interest rate
swap agreement was terminated. The termination payment was approximately $7.0 million.
Concurrently, the letters of credit for the Eighth Series B, C, and D Bonds were extended and the
Series E letter of credit was replaced. The remaining Eighth Series Bonds in the amount of
$225.5 million were then remarketed, with the remaining aggregate principal being reallocated among
the Eighth Series B Bonds ($50.3 million), the Eighth Series C Bonds ($50.0 million), the Eighth
Series D Bonds ($75.0 million), and Eighth Series E Bonds ($50.2 million). The related swap
agreement was amended to reflect these new notional amounts for each of the issuances.

The Company’s only derivative instruments within the scope of GASB Statement No. 53, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments, (GASB 53) are four interest rate swaps entered into to hedge
the interest payments on its variable rate debt. These swaps originate from an interest rate swap used as a
hedge of the Sixth Series Bonds. Because the hedges were effective at August 31, 2014, the change in the
fair value of the swaps decreased $5.4 million for FY 2014 and has been recorded as an increase in the
interest rate swap liability and the related deferred outflow of resources. The balance of the interest rate swap
liability at August 31, 2014 is $38.8 million, and the related deferred outflow of resources balance is
$18.9 million. The difference between the balances is due to the impact of refunding the Sixth Series Bonds,
which the original swap previously hedged, during FY 2009, and establishing a hedging relationship between
the portion of the original swap remaining after the refunding (divided into four swaps) and the refunding
Eighth Series Bonds. Because the hedges were determined effective for both periods presented, there was
no impact on the Statements of Revenues and Expenses and Changes in Net Position for either year other
than swap settlement payments.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction and overview of PGW’s basic financial
statements. PGW’s financial statements comprise the following:

Financial statements provide both long-term and short-term information about PGW’s overall financial condition,
results of operations, and cash flows.

The notes to financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data
presented in PGW’s financial statements. The notes can be found immediately following the basic financial
statements.

4 (Continued)



PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
August 31, 2014 and 2013

The financial statements report information about PGW as a whole using accounting methods similar to those used
by private sector business. The three statements presented are as follows:

The statements of revenues and expenses and changes in net position present revenues and expenses and their
effects on the change in net position during the fiscal year. These changes in net position are recorded as soon as
the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of when cash is received or paid.

The balance sheets include all of PGW’s assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net
position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position are indicators of whether PGW’s financial position is
improving or deteriorating.

The statements of cash flows provide relevant information about the cash receipts and cash payments of an
enterprise during a period and the impact on PGW’s financial position.

Condensed Statements of Revenues and Expenses

(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Years ended August 31
2014 2013 2012

Total gas revenues $ 736,138 675,154 628,387
Other revenues 22,998 18,317 16,596

Total operating revenues 759,136 693,471 644,983
Fuel expense 304,051 255,501 233,713
All other operating expenses 334,199 318,510 316,625

Total operating expenses 638,250 574,011 550,338

Operating income 120,886 119,460 94,645
Interest and other income 3,597 1,147 4,659
Total interest expense (57,135) (59,965) (69,544)
Distribution to the City of Philadelphia (18,000) (18,000) (18,000)

Excess of revenues over

expenses $ 49,348 42,642 11,760

Operating Revenues

Operating revenues in FY 2014 were $759.1 million, an increase of $65.6 million or 9.5% from FY 2013. The
increase in FY 2014 was mainly due to increased heating demand and increased revenues associated with gas
transportation service. Operating revenues in FY 2013 were $693.5 million, an increase of $48.5 million or 7.5%

5 (Continued)



PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
August 31, 2014 and 2013

from FY 2012. The increase in FY 2013 was due to increased heating demand. Please see the discussion of the
cost of fuel in the Operating Expenses Section below.

Total sales volumes, including gas transportation deliveries, in FY 2014 increased by 6.9 Bef to 79.1 Bef or 9.6%
from FY 2013 sales volumes of 72.2 Bef. In FY 2013, total sales volumes, including gas transportation deliveries,
increased by 9.9 Bef to 72.2 Bef or 15.9% from FY 2012 sales volumes of 62.3 Bef. In FY 2014, firm gas sales of
48.5 Bcef were 3.8 Bef or 8.5% higher than FY 2013 firm gas sales of 44.7 Bcf, which were 6.4 Bcf, or 16.7%
higher than FY 2012. Interruptible customer sales increased by 0.2 Bef compared to FY 2013, which increased by
0.7 Bef compared to FY 2012. Gas transportation sales in FY 2014 increased by 2.9 Bcef to 29.4 Bef from the 26.5
Bceflevel experienced in FY 2013. In FY 2013, the volume of gas transportation sales increased by 2.1 Befto 26.5
Bef from the 24.4 Bef level experienced in FY 2012.

In FY 2014, the number of customers served by PGW decreased from the previous year and was approximately
500,000 customers. The number of customers served by PGW at the end of FY 2013 and FY 2012 was
approximately 501,000 and 503,000, respectively. Commercial accounts were approximately 25,000 customers,
reflecting no change from the previous two fiscal years. Industrial accounts were unchanged, from the previous
two fiscal years at 700 customers. The number of residential accounts in FY 2014 decreased to approximately
474,300 customers, a decrease of 1,000 customers from the FY 2013 level and 3,000 customers from the 2012
level.

Operating Expenses

Total operating expenses, including fuel costs, in FY 2014 were $638.3 million, an increase of $64.3 million or
11.2% from FY 2013. The increase for FY 2014 reflects higher natural gas demand and higher costs associated
with the gas processing, field services, and distribution departments. Total operating expenses, including fuel costs,
in FY 2013 were $574.0 million, an increase of $23.7 million or 4.3% from FY 2012. The increase for FY 2013
reflects higher natural gas demand.

Cost of Fuel — The cost of natural gas utilized increased by $48.6 million or 19.0% to $304.1 million in FY 2014
compared with $255.5 million in FY 2013. The average commodity price per Thousand Cubic Feet (Mcf) increased
by $0.83 or $44.3 million, while the volume of gas utilized increased by 2.8 Bcf, 5.6% or $10.6 million. In addition,
pipeline supplier refunds in FY 2014 increased by $4.4 million while demand charges decreased by $1.9 million,
compared to FY 2013. Cost of fuel includes all commodity charges and demand charges net of pipeline refunds.

The cost of natural gas utilized increased by $21.8 million or 9.3% to $255.5 million in FY 2013 compared with
$233.7 million in FY 2012. The average commodity price per Mcf decreased by $0.13 or $6.6 million, while the
volume of gas utilized increased by 7.2 Bef, 16.6%, or $28.1 million. In addition, pipeline supplier refunds in FY
2013 increased by $0.1 million while demand charges increased by $0.4 million, compared to FY 2012.

Variations in the cost of purchased gas are passed through to customers under the Gas Cost Rate (GCR) provision
of PGW’s rate schedules. Over-recoveries or under-recoveries of purchased gas costs are subtracted from or added
to gas revenues and are included in other current assets or other current liabilities, thereby eliminating the effect
that recovery of gas costs would otherwise have on net income.
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The average natural gas commodity prices for utilized gas for FY 2014, FY 2013, and FY 2012 were $4.63, $3.80,
and $3.91 per Mcf, respectively.

Other Operating Expenses — Expenditures for street operations, infrastructure improvements, and plant operations
in FY 2014 were $94.1 million, an $11.3 million or 13.6% increase from the FY 2013 total of $82.8 million. The
increase in FY 2014 was caused by higher labor costs for distribution, field services, and higher costs associated
with running the liquefied natural gas plants. The FY 2013 total of $82.8 million was $5.5 million higher than the
FY 2012 total of $77.3 million as a result of higher labor costs for distribution and higher costs associated with
running the liquefied natural gas plants.

Additionally, expenses of $116.1 million related to collection and account management, customer services,
marketing, and the administrative area increased by $8.8 million or 8.2% in FY 2014 primarily due to higher
healthcare expenses and an increase in insurance costs. This category decreased by $3.9 million or 3.5% in FY
2013 compared to FY 2012 primarily due to lower healthcare expenses and an increase in the credit to operating
expenses associated with capital spending.

Pension costs increased in FY 2014 due to an increase in the factor utilized as a percentage of covered payroll to
calculate pension expense. Additionally, the covered payroll reflected a decrease of $1.9 million from the FY 2013
level of $106.0 million. The new payroll factor is based on a new actuarial study applicable to FY 2014. Pension
costs increased by $0.9 million or 3.8% to $24.5 million in FY 2014 as compared to FY 2013. Pension costs
decreased $0.4 million to $23.6 million in FY 2013 as compared to FY 2012.

Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) costs decreased $3.1 million to $37.1 million in FY 2014 when compared
to FY 2013. OPEB costs decreased $3.6 million to $40.2 million in FY 2013 when compared to FY 2012. OPEB
costs decreased in both fiscal years due to lower normal cost, lower unfunded liabilities, which are amortized over
a 30-year period, and lower interest on the net OPEB obligation. For FY 2014, the Company utilized a discount
rate of 7.95%. For FY 2013, the Company utilized a discount rate of 8.0% which are both driven by higher balances
in the OPEB Trust Fund (the Trust). The higher Trust balances created higher investment income and lower
unfunded liabilities, which are amortized over a 30-year period. These factors lowered OPEB costs.

The annual OPEB cost is recorded in the Statements of Revenue and Expenses and Changes in Net Position. For
the year ended August 31, 2014, approximately $11.2 million was recorded to other postemployment benefits
expense and $25.9 million was recorded to administrative and general expense. For the year ended August 31,
2013, approximately $16.5 million was recorded to other postemployment benefits expense and $23.7 million was
recorded to administrative and general expense.

The net OPEB obligation was $101.8 million for the fiscal year ended August 31, 2014, a $7.3 million decrease
from the $109.1 million obligation at August 31, 2013. This decrease was caused by a decrease in the annual OPEB
cost and an increase of contributions made during the year. The net OPEB obligation for the fiscal year ended
August 31, 2012 was $111.1, which was $2.0 higher than the August 31, 2013 net OPEB obligation.

Provision for Uncollectible Accounts — The provision for uncollectible accounts in FY 2014 totaled $38.8 million,
a decrease of $1.2 million or 3.0% lower than FY 2013. The decrease in the provision for uncollectible accounts
is mainly due to higher collection rates achieved in FY 2014. The provision for uncollectible accounts in FY 2013
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totaled $40.0 million, an increase of $3.3 million or 9.0% higher than FY 2012. The accumulated provision for
uncollectible accounts at August 31, 2014 reflects a balance of $107.3 million, compared to the $105.6 million
balance in FY 2013 and $97.8 million in FY 2012. PGW is committed to continuing its collection efforts in an
attempt to reduce outstanding delinquent account balances and to provide assistance to those customers who qualify
for low-income grants and payment programs to help those customers maintain their gas service.

Net Depreciation Expense — Net depreciation expense increased by $0.7 million in FY 2014 compared with FY
2013. Net depreciation expense increased by $0.9 million in FY 2013 compared with FY 2012. The effective
composite depreciation rates for FY 2014, FY 2013, and FY 2012 were 2.2%, 2.2%, and 2.3%, respectively. Cost
of removal is charged to expense as incurred.

Interest and Other Income — Interest and other income in FY 2014 was $2.5 million higher than FY 2013, primarily
due to the loss in FY 2013 as a result of the termination of the Guaranteed Investment Contract related to the 1998
General Ordinance Bonds. Interest and other income in FY 2013 was $3.6 million lower than FY 2012 due to the
termination of the Guaranteed Investment Contract related to the 1998 General Ordinance Bonds.

Interest Expense — Total interest expense was $57.1 million in FY 2014 a decrease of $2.9 million or 4.8% when
compared with FY 2013. Interest expense was lower in FY 2014 primarily due to lower principal debt balances.
Total interest expense was $60.0 million in FY 2013 a decrease of $9.5 million or 13.7% when compared with FY
2012. In FY 2013, interest expense was lower primarily due to a swap termination payment made in FY 2012.
Other interest costs decreased in FY 2014 by $1.3 million or 12.1%, primarily due to the reduction of expenses for
losses on reacquired debt and other variable bond fees. Other interest costs decreased in FY 2013 by $6.1 million
or 36.3% due to the swap termination payments made in FY 2012.
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Excess of Revenues over Expenses — In FY 2014, the Company’s excess of revenues over expenses was
$49.3 million, an increase of $6.7 million from FY 2013. The Company had an excess of revenues over expenses
of $42.6 million in FY 2013, an increase of $30.8 million from FY 2012.

Condensed Balance Sheets
(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Years ended August 31
Assets 2014 2013 2012
Current assets:
Accounts receivable (net of accumulated
provision for uncollectible accounts
of $107,349, $105,577, and $97,758
for 2014, 2013, and 2012, respectively) $ 101,457 97,749 81,997
Restricted investment funds 5,820 49,875 94,657
Other current assets and deferred
debits, cash and cash equivalents,
cash designated for capital expenditures,
gas inventories, materials, and supplies 204,944 197,363 183,851
Total current assets 312,221 344,987 360,505
Noncurrent assets:
Utility plant, net 1,193,552 1,154,987 1,125,650
Unamortized bond insurance costs 14,136 15,736 17,417
Sinking fund, revenue bonds 105,909 105,280 105,312
Other assets 37,528 33,097 30,996
Total noncurrent assets 1,351,125 1,309,100 1,279,375
Total assets 1,663,346 1,654,087 1,639,880
Deferred outflows of resources
Accumulated fair value of hedging derivatives 18,879 12,059 34,712
Unamortized losses on reacquired debt 37,051 44,868 53,241
Total assets and deferred outflows
of resources $ 1,719,276 1,711,014 1,727,833
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Condensed Balance Sheets

(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Years ended August 31
Net Position and Liabilities 2014 2013 2012

Net position $ 407,935 358,587 315,945
Total long-term debt 980,749 1,033,976 1,086,502

Current liabilities:
Current portion of long-term debt 53,227 52,406 30,545
Other current liabilities 98,100 88,614 88,396
Total current liabilities 151,327 141,020 118,941
Other noncurrent liabilities 179,265 177,431 206,445
Total net position and liabilities $ 1,719,276 1,711,014 1,727,833

Assets

Accounts Receivable — In FY 2014, accounts receivable (net) of $101.5 million increased by $3.8 million or 3.9%,
from FY 2013 due to higher gas billings during FY 2014, which resulted from a robust winter heating season. In
FY 2013, accounts receivable (net) of $97.7 million increased by $15.7 million or 19.1%, from FY 2012 due to
higher gas billings during FY 2013, which resulted from colder winter heating conditions. The accumulated
provision for uncollectible accounts, totaling $107.3 million increased by $1.7 million in FY 2014 and totaled
$105.6 million in FY 2013 and $97.8 million in FY 2012.

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Cash Designated for Capital Expenditures, Gas Inventories, Materials, and Supplies,
and Other Current Assets — In FY 2014, cash and cash equivalents totaled $105.7 million, an increase of
$4.8 million from the FY 2013 total of $100.9 million and totaled $75.8 million in FY 2012. In FY 2014, gas
inventories, materials, and supplies totaled $70.0 million, a decrease of $10.2 million from the FY 2013 total of
$80.2 million. Gas inventories, materials, and supplies totaled $81.1 million in FY 2012. In FY 2014, gas storage
decreased by $10.6 million or 14.9% when compared to FY 2013. The decrease in gas inventory reflects a decrease
in the volume of gas in storage and a decrease in the cost per Mcf. In FY 2013, gas storage decreased by $2.4 million
or 3.3% compared to FY 2012. The decrease in gas inventory for FY 2013 reflects a decrease in the volume of gas
in storage. Other current assets totaled $19.2 million in FY 2014, an increase of $3.0 million from FY 2013,
primarily as a result of an increase in the deferred GCR. In FY 2013, other current assets totaled $16.2 million, a
decrease of $10.7 from FY 2012, primarily as a result of a decrease in the deferred GCR.

Cash designated for capital expenditures was created in FY 2014 by designating $10.0 million of cash for capital
spending only.
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Capital Improvement Fund, Workers’ Compensation Escrow Fund, and Health Insurance Escrow Fund — The
Capital Improvement Fund decreased by $44.1 million in FY 2014 due to proceeds being drawn from the Capital
Improvement Fund to fund capital expenditures. A drawdown of the accrued interest in the Capital Improvement
Fund in the amount of $0.8 million was utilized for working capital purposes in FY 2014. Interest income on all
funds, to the extent not drawn, is reflected as an increase of $0.4 million in FY 2014, $0.4 million in FY 2013, and
$0.6 million in FY 2012. Pursuant to the Pennsylvania Department of Labor and Industry Bureau of Workers’
Compensation Self Insurance policy, the Company has established and maintained a restricted trust account. As of
August 31, 2014 and 2013, the trust account balances were $2.6 million. PGW is self-insured for the healthcare of
active employees and retirees under the age of 65. Retirees over the age of 65 are insured on an experience rated
basis. Per the terms of the self-insured program, PGW established a Health Insurance Escrow Fund that at
August 31, 2014 was funded in the amount of $3.2 million.

Utility Plant, Non-Current Assets and Deferred Outflow of Resources — In FY 2014, noncurrent assets including
utility plant, net, unamortized bond insurance costs, unamortized losses on reacquired debt and accumulated fair
value of hedging derivatives totaled $1,407.1 million, an increase of $41.0 million from FY 2013. In FY 2013,
noncurrent assets, including utility plant, net, unamortized bond insurance costs, unamortized losses on reacquired
debt, and accumulated fair value of hedging derivatives totaled $1,366.1 million. Utility plant, net, totaled
$1,193.6 million in FY 2014, an increase of $38.6 million or 3.3% compared with the FY 2013 balance of
$1,155.0 million. The FY 2013 balance increased by $29.3 million or 2.6% compared with the FY 2012 balance
of $1,125.7 million. Capital expenditures for construction of distribution facilities, purchase of equipment,
information technology enhancements, and other general improvements were $80.2 million in FY 2014 compared
to $70.4 million in FY 2013 and $54.7 million in FY 2012. PGW funded capital expenditures through drawdowns
from the Capital Improvement Fund in the amounts of $34.1 million, $44.8 million, and $33.5 million in FY 2014,
FY 2013, and FY 2012, respectively. The major capital expenditures are associated with PGW’s gas supply
infrastructure, namely, gas mains, and customer service lines, including capital expenditures for the Long-Term
Infrastructure Improvement Plan for which PGW will request recovery through a Distribution System
Improvement Charge (DSIC).

In early 2012, Act 11 was enacted by the Pennsylvania Legislature, which permitted public utilities to file a request
with the PUC for the implementation of a DSIC. A DSIC permits natural gas distribution companies to recover the
costs related to main and service replacement not already recovered in base rates. This legislation provides utility
companies with a supplemental recovery mechanism for costs related to incremental/accelerated distribution
system repair, improvement, and replacement. Act 11 permits gas utilities to recover 5.0% of their nongas revenues
via the recovery mechanism and permits greater percentage increases if the PUC so permits. The Company started
billing customers a DSIC surcharge as of July 1, 2013. In FY 2014, the Company billed customers $19.4 million
for the DSIC surcharge. In FY 2013, the Company billed customers $0.7 million for the DSIC surcharge. The
DSIC surcharge is fully reconcilable on a calendar year basis and at the fiscal year-end the over-billed or
under-billed amount is recorded as an adjustment to revenue. For additional information, see note 1(h) Revenue
Recognition of the Financial Statements.

Liabilities

Long-Term Debt — Long-term debt, including the current portion and unamortized discount and premium, totaled
$1,034.0 million in FY 2014. This was $52.4 million less than the previous year primarily as a result of normal
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debt principal payments. This represents 71.7% of total capitalization in FY 2014. Long-term debt, including the
current portion and unamortized discount and premium, totaled $1,086.4 million in FY 2013, $30.6 million less
than the previous year primarily as a result of normal debt principal payments. Long-term debt, including the
current portion and unamortized discount and premium, totaled $1,117.0 million in FY 2012. Long-term debt
represented 75.2% of total capitalization in FY 2013 and 77.7% of total capitalization in FY 2012. For additional
information see note 8, Long-Term Debt and Other Liabilities of the Financial Statements.

Debt Service Coverage Ratio and Ratings — PGW has a mandatory debt service coverage ratio of 1.50 times debt
service on both the 1975 and 1998 Ordinance Bonds. In FY 2014, the debt service coverage was at 6.15 times debt
service on the outstanding 1975 Ordinance Bonds and at 2.11 times debt service on the Senior 1998 Ordinance
Bonds compared to debt service coverage ratios of 5.58 and 2.90 times, respectively, in FY 2013, and 4.75 and
1.75 times, respectively, in FY 2012. PGW’s current bond ratings are “Baa2” from Moody’s Investors Service
(Moody’s), and “A-“from Standard & Poor’s Rating Service (S&P).

Short-Term Debt — Pursuant to the provisions of the City of Philadelphia Note Ordinances, PGW may sell
short-term notes to either support working capital requirements or pay the costs of certain capital projects and other
project costs. PGW may sell short-term notes in a principal amount, which, together with interest, may not exceed
$150.0 million outstanding to support working capital requirements. PGW may also sell additional short-term notes
in an aggregate principal amount, which may not exceed $120.0 million outstanding at any time to pay the costs
of certain capital projects and other project costs. All notes are supported by two irrevocable letters of credit and a
security interest in PGW’s revenues. The letters of credit supporting PGW’s combined commercial paper programs
fixed the maximum level of outstanding notes plus interest at $120.0 million in FY 2014. In FY 2013 and FY 2012,
the letters of credit supporting PGW’s working capital commercial paper program fixed the maximum level of
outstanding notes plus interest at $60.0 million. There were no outstanding notes payable at August 31, 2014, 2013,
and 2012.

Other Current Liabilities — In FY 2014, other current liabilities totaled $19.3 million, an increase of $10.2 million
from FY 2013, mainly due to deposits from a third-party supplier and receipts for a project that will be paid for in
FY 2015. In FY 2013, the total was $9.1 million, a decrease of $1.2 million from FY 2012.

Accounts Payable — In FY 2014, accounts payable totaled $58.9 million, a decrease of $0.5 million or 0.8%
compared with FY 2013 primarily due to a decrease in natural gas payables of $4.5 million, which was offset by
an increase in trade payables of $4.0 million. In FY 2013, accounts payable totaled $59.4 million, an increase of
$2.3 million or 4.0% compared with FY 2012 primarily due to an increase in natural gas payables of $3.1 million,
which was partially offset by a decrease in trade payables of $0.8 million.

Other Non-Current Liabilities — In FY 2014, other noncurrent liabilities totaling $179.3 million, an increase of
$1.9 million compared to FY 2013. The increase in FY 2014 is primarily due to the change in the value of the
swap. In FY 2013, other noncurrent liabilities totaling $177.4 million decreased $29.0 million compared to FY
2012. The decrease in FY 2013 is primarily due to the favorable change in the value of the swap.
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Other Financial Factors

On March 2, 2014, following a competitive bidding process, the City entered into an agreement to sell PGW to
UIL Holdings Corporation, subject to authorization by City Council and the Public Utility Commission. On
December 4, 2014, UIL exercised its option to withdraw from the agreement after no authorizing ordinance was
introduced in City Council.

Recent Rate Filings

On December 18,2009, PGW submitted a base rate filing with the PUC (1) to maintain the $60.0 million base rate
increase that the PUC granted in 2008; and (2) to fund PGW’s OPEB liability in the amount of $42.5 million. PGW
also moved to consolidate the Company’s Demand Side Management Program, an energy efficiency and
conservation plan, into the base rate filing. On May 19, 2010, PGW, along with all active parties to the proceeding,
submitted a Petition for Proposed Settlement of the proceeding (the Settlement) and the PUC approved the
Settlement on July 29, 2010. Under the Settlement, PGW will be permitted to maintain virtually all of the
extraordinary base rate relief, will receive an incremental rate increase of $16.0 million annually, and will be
required to fund $18.5 million of the OPEB liability in each of the years 2011 through 2015. The Settlement also
permitted the implementation of the Demand Side Management Program.

Defeasance and Remarketing of Debt

On August 28, 2012, the Company defeased $20.2 million of principal for bonds issued under the 1998 General
Ordinance with internally generated funds. The defeased bonds were for these respective series and amounts:
Fourth Series — $3.1 million, Fifth Series — $2.9 million, Seventh Series — $6.1 million, Eighth Series A —
$5.3 million, and Ninth Series — $2.8 million.

On September 1, 2011, the City defeased $29.5 million of the Eighth Series variable rate Bonds utilizing internally
generated funds. As a result of this defeasance, a portion of the related interest rate swap agreement was terminated.
The termination payment was approximately $7.0 million. Concurrently, the letters of credit for the Eighth
Series B, C, and D Bonds were extended and the Series E letter of credit was replaced. The remaining Eighth
Series Bonds in the amount of $225.5 million were then remarketed, with the remaining aggregate principal being
reallocated among the Eighth Series B Bonds ($50.3 million), the Eighth Series C Bonds ($50.0 million), the Eighth
Series D Bonds ($75.0 million), and Eighth Series E Bonds ($50.2 million). The related swap agreement was
amended to reflect these new notional amounts for each of the issuances.

Refunding of Bonds

On September 28, 2011, the City issued Gas Works Revenue Bonds, Twentieth Series (1975 General Ordinance)
in the amount of $16.2 million for the purpose of refunding the entire Sixteenth Series Bond (1975 General
Ordinance), and paying the costs of issuing the bonds. The Twentieth Series Bonds, with fixed interest rates that
range from 2.0% to 5.0%, have maturity dates through 2015.

On September 28, 2011, the City issued Gas Works Revenue Bonds, Tenth Series (1998 General Ordinance) in the
amount of $72.6 million for the purpose of refunding the entire First Series A, First Series C, Second Series, and
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Third Series Bonds (1998 General Ordinance), and paying the costs of issuing the bonds. The Tenth Series Bonds,
with fixed interest rates that range from 3.0% to 5.0%, have maturity dates through 2026.

Impact of New Accounting Pronouncement

As discussed in note 10 to the financial statements, the Company currently does not reflect a net pension obligation
on its balance sheet because the annual required contribution has been made each year. GASB No. 68, Accounting
and Financial Reporting for Pensions — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27, is effective for the Company’s
fiscal year ending August 31, 2015. The primary objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial
reporting by state and local governments for pensions. This Statement will result in the Company’s net pension
liability being reflected on the balance sheet, measured as the portion of the present value of projected benefit
payments to be provided to current and inactive employees that is attributed to those employees’ past periods of
service (total pension liability), less the amount of the pension plan’s fiduciary net position. Under this new
pronouncement, the unfunded actuarial liability for the plan is approximately $205.2 million at August 31, 2014.

Contacting the Company’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide the citizens of Philadelphia, customers, investors, and creditors with a
general overview of PGW’s finances and to demonstrate PGW’s accountability for the money it receives. If you
have questions pertaining to this report or need additional financial information, please contact Philadelphia Gas
Works, 800 W. Montgomery Avenue, Philadelphia, PA 19122 or on the Web at www.pgworks.com.
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August 31, 2014 and 2013
(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Assets 2014 2013
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 105,734 100,933
Cash designated for capital expenditures 10,000 —
Accounts receivable (net of provision for uncollectible accounts
of $107,349 and $105,577 for 2014 and 2013, respectively) 101,457 97,749
Gas inventories, materials, and supplies 69,989 80,234
Capital improvement fund — 44,055
Workers’ compensation escrow fund 2,597 2,597
Health insurance escrow fund 3,223 3,223
Other current assets 19,221 16,196
Total current assets 312,221 344,987
Noncurrent assets:
Utility plant, at original cost:
In service 2,018,234 1,951,546
Under construction 57,206 44,409
Total 2,075,440 1,995,955
Less accumulated depreciation 881,888 840,968
Utility plant, net 1,193,552 1,154,987
Unamortized bond insurance costs 14,136 15,736
Sinking fund, revenue bonds 105,909 105,280
Other noncurrent assets 37,528 33,097
Total noncurrent assets 1,351,125 1,309,100
Total assets 1,663,346 1,654,087
Deferred outflows of resources
Accumulated fair value of hedging derivatives 18,879 12,059
Unamortized losses on reacquired debt 37,051 44,868
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources $ 1,719,276 1,711,014
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(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Liabilities and Net Position

Current liabilities:
Current portion of revenue bonds $
Accounts payable
Customer deposits
Other current liabilities
Accrued accounts:
Interest, taxes, and wages
Distribution to the City

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Long-term revenue bonds
Other noncurrent liabilities

Total noncurrent liabilities

Net position:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted (debt service)
Unrestricted

Total net position

Total liabilities and net position $

2014 2013
53,227 52,406
58,888 59,379

2,245 2,305
19,321 9,107
14,646 14,823

3,000 3,000

151,327 141,020
980,749 1,033,976
179,265 177,431
1,160,014 1,211,407
159,576 112,660
111,729 111,100
136,630 134,827
407,935 358,587
1,719,276 1,711,014

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Years ended August 31, 2014 and 2013
(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

2014 2013
Operating revenues:
Gas revenues:
Nonheating $ 39,610 35,262
Gas transport service 41,217 37,078
Heating 655,311 602,814
Total gas revenues 736,138 675,154
Appliance and other revenues 8,317 8,333
Other operating revenues 14,681 9,984
Total operating revenues 759,136 693,471
Operating expenses:
Natural gas 304,051 255,501
Gas processing 19,637 17,592
Field services 37,577 34,926
Distribution 36,929 30,259
Collection and account management 11,273 11,297
Provision for uncollectible accounts 38,848 39,971
Customer services 11,187 11,102
Marketing 7,783 6,789
Administrative and general 85,872 78,206
Pensions 24,521 23,614
Other postemployment benefits 11,228 16,492
Taxes 7,687 7,220
Total operating expenses before depreciation 596,593 532,969
Depreciation 47,428 45,912
Less depreciation expense included in operating expenses above 5,771 4,870
Net depreciation 41,657 41,042
Total operating expenses 638,250 574,011
Operating income 120,886 119,460
Interest and other income 3,597 1,147
Income before interest expense 124,483 120,607
Interest expense:
Long-term debt 48,261 49,655
Other 9,380 10,740
Allowance for funds used during construction (506) (430)
Total interest expense 57,135 59,965
Distribution to the City of Philadelphia (18,000) (18,000)
Excess of revenues over expenses 49,348 42,642
Net position, beginning of year 358,587 315,945
Net position, end of year $ 407,935 358,587

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended August 31,2014 and 2013
(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

2014 2013
Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers $ 724,500 657,900
Payments to suppliers (458,344) (406,932)
Payments to employees (114,366) (109,260)
Claims paid (2,965) (3,307)
Other receipts 17,300 9,700
Net cash provided by operating activities 166,125 148,101
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Interest and fees 1,049 (2,084)
Distribution to the City of Philadelphia (18,000) (18,000)
Net cash used in noncapital financing activities (16,951) (20,084)
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Purchases of capital assets (80,222) (70,380)
Principal paid on long-term debt (49,800) (27,720)
Interest paid on long-term debt (48,540) (50,111)
Drawdowns on capital improvement fund 34,055 44,783
Interest income (loss) on capital improvement fund (23) 132
Interest income (loss) on sinking fund (349) (44)
Other investment income 506 430
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (144,373) (102,910)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 4,801 25,107
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 100,933 75,826
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year $ 105,734 100,933

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Operating income $ 120,886 119,460
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by
operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization expense 41,658 41,042
Provision for uncollectible accounts 38,848 39,971
Change in assets and liabilities:
Receivables, net (42,556) (55,723)
Gas inventories, materials, and supplies 10,245 852
Other current assets (3,026) 10,744
Other assets (11,250) 20,552
Accounts payable (491) 2,253
Customer deposits (60) (144)
Other current liabilities 10,214 (1,159)
Accrued accounts (177) (732)
Other liabilities 1,834 (29,015)
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 166,125 148,101

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
August 31, 2014 and 2013

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting methods employed by the Philadelphia Gas Works (the Company or PGW) are in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (U.S. GAAP) and are in conformity with City of
Philadelphia (the City) reporting requirements.

As described in note 2, the Company is a component unit of the City, and consequently follows accounting
principles promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) as they apply to
proprietary fund-type activities. Under the Regulated Operations guidance within GASB Statement No. 62,
Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989
FASB and AICPA Pronouncements (GASB 62), assets or liabilities may be created by certain actions of
regulatory bodies.

The principal accounting policies within this framework are described as follows:

(@)

(b)

Regulation

Prior to July 1, 2000, the Company was under the regulatory jurisdiction of the Philadelphia Gas
Commission (PGC). The PGC had the authority to set the Company’s rates and tariffs. The PGC also
approved the Company’s annual Operating Budget and reviewed the Company’s Capital Budget prior
to approval by the City Council of the City (City Council).

Effective July 1, 2000, and pursuant to the passage of the Pennsylvania Natural Gas Choice and
Competition Act (the Act), the Company came under the regulatory jurisdiction of the Pennsylvania
Public Utility Commission (PUC). Under the PUC’s jurisdiction, the Company filed a restructuring
plan on July 1, 2002, which among other things, provided for an unbundled tariff permitting customer
choice of the commodity supplier by September 1, 2003. Under the Act, the PUC is required to follow
the “same ratemaking methodology and requirements” that were previously applicable to the PGC
when determining the Company’s revenue requirements and approving overall rates and charges. The
PGC continues to approve the Company’s Operating Budget and review its Capital Budget. The
Company’s Capital Budget must be approved by City Council.

The Company, as of September 1, 2003, is operating under its Restructuring Compliance Tariff. The
Restructuring Compliance Tariff Rates are designed to maintain revenue neutrality and the Tariff
Rules and Regulations are designed to comport with the Pennsylvania Public Utility Code.

Operating Budget

On May 23, 2014, PGW filed a proposed Fiscal Year (FY) 2015 Operating Budget with the PGC. The
PGC Hearing Examiners conducted Informal Discovery (ID) sessions beginning on June 9, 2014 and
an additional ID meeting took place on June 24,2014. On July 23, 2014, a public hearing was convened
by the Hearing Examiners to address PGW’s Operating Budget. On August 19, 2014, a recommended
decision was rendered by the Hearing Examiners, which proposed adjustments to the Operating Budget
as filed. At the PGC meeting held on September 23, 2014, the PGC approved, with adjustments,
PGW’s FY 2015 Operating Budget. PGW filed a Compliance Budget with the PGC on October 3,
2014.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements
August 31, 2014 and 2013

On May 24,2013, PGW filed a proposed FY 2014 Operating Budget. After appropriate discovery and
hearings, the PGC approved the FY 2014 Operating Budget on September 17, 2013.

On May 24, 2012, PGW filed a proposed FY 2013 Operating Budget. After appropriate discovery and
hearings, the PGC approved the FY 2013 Operating Budget on January 16, 2013.

Capital Budget

On January 2, 2014, PGW filed with the PGC its proposed FY 2015 Capital Budget in the amount of
$89.2 million. The PGC’s review culminated in deliberations taken at a public meeting held on April 8,
2014 whereby the PGC endorsed a FY 2015 Capital Budget in an amount not to exceed $89.5 million.
The endorsed budget was approved by City Council on June 12, 2014. The Bill was signed by the
Mayor on June 19, 2014.

On January 2, 2013, PGW filed with the PGC its proposed FY 2014 Capital Budget in the amount of
$110.5 million. The PGC’s review culminated in deliberations taken at a public meeting held on
April 15, 2013 whereby the PGC endorsed a proposed FY 2014 Capital Budget in an amount not to
exceed $102.5 million. The endorsed budget was approved by City Council on June 6, 2013. The
ordinance was signed by the Mayor on June 17, 2013.

Subsequent to City Council’s approval, the PGC endorsed a FY 2014 Capital Budget amendment in
the amount of $0.4 million to support the purchase of 24 Compressed Natural Gas (CNG) sedans and
a CNG refueling station. This amendment to the FY 2014 Capital Budget was approved by City
Council on October 17, 2013. The Mayor signed the ordinance on October 30, 2013.

On January 6, 2014, PGW filed with the PGC a request to further amend the FY 2014 Capital Budget
by $3.4 million to provide for the incremental replacement of approximately three additional miles of
small diameter cast iron main. The PGC endorsed an amendment to the FY 2014 Capital Budget that
inserted a new line item, Long-Term Infrastructure Plan — Accelerated Cast Iron Main for $3.4 million,
and concurrently reduced two other line items that resulted in no increase in the FY 2014 Capital
Budget. This second amendment was approved by City Council on June 12, 2014 and signed by the
Mayor on June 19, 2014.

On January 3, 2012, PGW filed with the PGC a proposed FY 2013 Capital Budget of $93.3 million.
At a public meeting held on April 19, 2012, the PGC endorsed a FY 2013 Capital Budget in the amount
of $90.9 million. City Council approved PGW’s FY 2013 Capital Budget on June 21, 2012. The Mayor
signed the ordinance on June 27, 2012.

Base Rates

On December 18, 2009, PGW submitted a base rate filing with the PUC (1) to maintain the
$60.0 million base rate increase that the PUC granted in 2008 and (2) to fund PGW’s Other
Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) liability in the amount of $42.5 million. PGW also moved to
consolidate the Company’s Demand Side Management Program, an energy efficiency and
conservation plan, into the base rate filing. On May 19, 2010, PGW, along with all active parties to
the proceeding, submitted a Petition for Proposed Settlement of the proceeding (the Settlement) and
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the PUC approved the Settlement on July 29, 2010. Under the Settlement, PGW will be permitted to
maintain virtually all of the extraordinary base rate relief, will receive an incremental rate increase of
$16.0 million annually, and will be required to fund $18.5 million of the OPEB liability in each of the
fiscal years 2011 through 2015. The new rates were effective September 1, 2010. The Settlement also
permitted the implementation of the Demand Side Management Program.

Weather Normalization Adjustment Clause

The Weather Normalization Adjustment Clause (WNA) was approved by PUC Order dated August 8,
2002. The purpose of the WNA is to neutralize the impact of weather on the Company’s revenues.
This allows the Company to achieve the recovery of appropriate costs as authorized by the PUC. The
WNA results in neither a rate increase nor a rate decrease, but acts as a billing adjustment. The main
benefits of the WNA are the stabilization of cash flow and the reduction of the need for short-term
borrowing from year to year. The WNA is applied to customer invoices rendered during the period of
October 1st through May 31st of each year for each billing cycle. The adjustment for the year ended
August 31, 2014 was a decrease in billings of $12.3 million. The WNA resulted in an increase in
billings of $8.4 million for the year ended August 31, 2013.

Gas Cost Rate

The Company’s single greatest operating expense is the cost of natural gas. The rate charged to the
Company’s customers to recover these costs is called the Gas Cost Rate (GCR). The GCR reflects the
increases or decreases in natural gas costs and other costs. This GCR mechanism provides the
flexibility to rapidly reflect current conditions without the time delay inherent in full base rate
alteration. The intent is to achieve an annual balance between the costs incurred for fuel and their pass
through to customers.
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At the end of the fiscal year, costs recovered through the GCR and surcharges adjustment are compared
to the actual cost of fuel and other specific costs. Customers are then credited or charged for the
over-recovery or under-recovery of costs. The GCR and surcharges charge/credit may be updated
quarterly or in the subsequent fiscal year to reflect the under-recovery or over-recovery. Changes in
the GCR impact the reported amounts of gas revenues but do not affect operating income or net income
because they are passed through to the customer without markup. At August 31, 2014, approximately
$15.2 million was recorded in other current assets for the GCR and surcharges under-recovery. At
August 31, 2013, approximately $8.8 million was recorded in other current assets for the GCR and
surcharges under-recovery. The GCR is comprised of the purchased gas costs plus the gas adjustment
charge minus the interruptible revenue credit.

GCR effective dates and rates
(Amounts in U.S. dollars)

GCR rate
Effective date per Mcf* Change
December 1, 2014 $ 5.9976 0.1306
September 1, 2014 5.8670 (0.6972)
June 1, 2014 6.5642 0.5626
March 1, 2014 6.0016 0.5543
December 1, 2013 5.4473 0.0214
September 1, 2013 5.4259 (0.6450)
June 1, 2013 6.0709 (0.3282)
March 1, 2013 6.3991 0.6668
December 1, 2012 5.7323 0.5076
September 1, 2012 5.2247 0.5118

* Mecf — thousand cubic feet

Utility Plant

Utility plant is stated at original cost. The cost of additions, replacements, and betterments of units of
property is capitalized and included in the utility plant accounts. The cost of property sold or retired is
removed from the utility plant accounts and charged to accumulated depreciation. Normal repairs,
maintenance, the cost of minor property items, and expenses associated with retirements are charged
to operating expenses as incurred.
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In a previous rate order, the PGC disallowed the accrual of the net negative salvage component in
depreciation. Cost of removal in the amounts of $2.7 million and $2.9 million was charged to expense
as incurred in FY 2014 and FY 2013, respectively, and is included in depreciation expense in the
statements of revenues and expenses and changes in net position. Depreciation is calculated on an
asset-by-asset basis on the estimated useful lives of plant and equipment on a straight-line method.
The composite rate for FY 2014 and FY 2013 was 2.2%. The composite rates are supported by a
depreciation study of utility plant as of August 2009. The effective composite depreciation rates, as a
percentage of cost, for FY 2014 were as follows:

Production plant 2.19%
Transmission, distribution, and storage 2.05
General plant 3.33

The next depreciation study is scheduled to be completed in FY 2015 for the plant activity subsequent
to the last depreciation study and through FY 2014.

Allowance for Funds Used During Construction (AFUDC) is an estimate of the cost of funds used for
construction purposes. The AFUDC, as calculated on borrowed funds, reduces interest expense. The
AFUDC rate applied to construction work in progress was 4.93% and 5.16% in FY 2014 and FY 2013,
respectively.

The following is a summary of utility plant activity for the fiscal years ended August 31, 2014 and
2013 (thousands of U.S. dollars):

August 31, 2014
Beginning Additions Retirements Ending
balance and transfers and transfers balance
Land $ 5,595 — — 5,595
Distribution and collection
systems 1,481,218 61,971 (3,965) 1,539,224
Buildings and equipment 464,733 8,682 — 473,415
Total utility plant,
at historical cost 1,951,546 70,653 (3,965) 2,018,234
Under construction 44,409 83,449 (70,652) 57,206
Less accumulated
depreciation for:
Distribution and
collection systems (701,621) (32,274)* 3,847 (730,048)
Buildings and equipment (139,347) (12,493)* (151,840)
Utility plant, net $ 1,154,987 109,335 (70,770) 1,193,552
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*  Cost of removal of approximately $2.7 million was charged to expense as incurred in FY 2014
and is not included in accumulated depreciation.

August 31, 2013
Beginning Additions Retirements Ending
balance and transfers and transfers balance
Land $ 5,595 — — 5,595
Distribution and collection
systems 1,435,353 67,419 (21,554) 1,481,218
Buildings and equipment 453,181 14,438 (2,886) 464,733
Total utility plant,
at historical cost 1,894,129 81,857 (24,440) 1,951,546
Under construction 53,851 72,416 (81,858) 44,409
Less accumulated depreciation
for:
Distribution and
collection systems (691,151) (31,018)* 20,548 (701,621)
Buildings and equipment (131,179) (12,019)* 3,851 (139,347)
Utility plant, net $ 1,125,650 111,236 (81,899) 1,154,987

*  Cost of removal of approximately $2.9 million was charged to expense as incurred in FY 2013
and is not included in accumulated depreciation.

Revenue Recognition

The Company is primarily a natural gas distribution company. Operating revenues include revenues
from the sale of natural gas to residential, commercial, and industrial heating and nonheating
customers. The Company also provides natural gas transportation service. Appliance and other
revenues primarily consist of revenue from the Company’s parts and labor repair program. Revenue
from this program is recognized on a monthly basis for the life of the individual parts and labor plans.
Additional revenue is generated from collection fees, reconnection charges, and bulk Liquefied Natural
Gas (LNG) sales contracts. Other operating revenues primarily consist of finance charges assessed on
delinquent accounts.

In early 2012, Act 11 was enacted by the Pennsylvania Legislature, which permitted public utilities to
file a request with the PUC for the implementation of a Distribution System Improvement Charge
(DSIC). A DSIC permits natural gas distribution companies to recover the costs related to main and
service replacement not already recovered in base rates. This legislation provides utility companies
with a supplemental recovery mechanism for costs related to incremental/accelerated distribution
system repair, improvement, and replacement. Act 11 permits gas utilities to recover 5.0% of their
nongas revenues via the recovery mechanism and permits greater percentage increases if the PUC so
permits. The Company started billing customers a DSIC surcharge as of July 1, 2013. In FY 2014, the
Company billed customers $19.4 million for the DSIC surcharge. In FY 2013, the Company billed
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customers $0.7 million for the DSIC surcharge. The DSIC surcharge is fully reconcilable on a calendar
year basis and at the fiscal year-end, the over-billed or under-billed amount is recorded as an
adjustment to revenue.

The Company bills customers for the cost of natural gas and the related costs incurred through the
processing, distribution, and delivery of natural gas to residential, commercial, and industrial heating
and nonheating customers.

Revenue includes amounts related to gas that has been used by customers but has not yet been billed.
Revenues are recognized as gas is distributed. Estimated revenues from gas distributed and unbilled,
less estimated uncollectible amounts, are accrued and included in operating revenues and were
$7.3 million for the years ended August 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Operating Expenses

The Company recognizes costs incurred as part of the Company’s regular business activities on the
statements of revenue and expenses and changes in net position as operating expenses. These costs
include distribution, marketing, gas processing, and other similar costs.

Costs incurred that do not involve normal business operations are recognized as nonoperating
expenses.

Provision for Uncollectible Accounts

The Company estimates its accumulated provision for uncollectible accounts based on a financial
analysis and a collectibility study performed as of the fiscal year-end. The methodology used in
performing the collectibility study has been reviewed by the PGC. For FY 2014 and FY 2013,
management has provided an accumulated provision for uncollectible accounts in excess of the
collectibility study results based on its analysis of historical aging data. The actual results of the
Company’s collection efforts could differ significantly from the Company’s estimate.

Due to the seasonal nature of the business, the Company carries credit balances in accounts receivable
primarily as a result of prepayment by budget customers. Credit balances of $16.5 million and
$17.0 million for FY 2014 and FY 2013, respectively, have been reclassified to accounts payable.

Gas Inventories, Materials, and Supplies

Gas inventories, materials, and supplies, consisting primarily of fuel stock, gases stored to meet peak
demand requirements, and spare parts, are stated at average cost at August 31, 2014 and 2013, as
follows (thousands of U.S. dollars):

2014 2013
Gas inventory $ 60,089 70,638
Material and supplies 9,900 9,596
Total $ 69,989 80,234

25 (Continued)



]

(m)

()

PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
August 31, 2014 and 2013

Unamortized Bond Insurance Costs, Debt Discount, and Premium

Discounts or premiums and bond insurance costs arising from the sale of revenue bonds are amortized
using the interest method over the term of the related bond issue. Other costs of bond issuance are
expensed as incurred.

Unamortized Losses on Reacquired Debt

Losses on reacquired debt are recorded as deferred outflows of resources and amortized, using the
interest method, to interest expense over the shorter of the life of the refunding bond issue or the
remaining original amortization period.

Pensions and Postemployment Benefits

The City sponsors a single employer defined-benefit pension plan, the Philadelphia Gas Works
Pension Plan (the Pension Plan) to provide pension benefits for all of PGW’s employees. In
December 2011, the Pension Plan was amended by Ordinance and a new deferred compensation plan
was authorized by Ordinance as well. Newly hired employees have an irrevocable option to join either
a new deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 401 or
the existing defined benefit plan. The defined-contribution plan provides for an employer contribution
equal to 5.5% of applicable wages. The defined benefit plan provides for a newly hired employee
contribution equal to 6.0% of applicable wages. The Ordinance did not affect the retirement benefits
of active employees, current retirees and beneficiaries, or terminated employees entitled to benefits
but not yet receiving them. The Pension Plan covers all employees and provides for retirement
payments for vested employees at age 65 or earlier under various options, which includes a disability
pension provision, a preretirement spouse or domestic partner’s death benefit, a reduced pension for
early retirement, various reduced pension payments for the election of a survivor option, and a
provision for retirement after 30 years of service without penalty for reduced age. In accordance with
Resolutions of the PGC, Ordinances of City Council, and as prescribed by the City’s Director of
Finance, the Pension Plan is being funded with contributions by the Company to the Sinking Fund
Commission of the City. Management believes that the Pension Plan is in compliance with all
applicable laws.

The Company sponsors a single employer defined benefit healthcare plan and provides
postemployment healthcare and life insurance benefits in accordance with their retiree medical
program to 2,053 and 2,044 retirees, their beneficiaries, and dependents for FY 2014 and FY 2013,
respectively. The Company also offers such benefits to 1,631 and 1,636 active employees and their
dependents for FY 2014 and FY 2013, respectively, by charging the annual insurance premiums to
expense.

The difference between the annual OPEB cost (AOC) and the Company’s contributions results in an
increase or decrease to the net OPEB obligation, which is recorded in other noncurrent liabilities and
expensed.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of reporting cash and cash equivalents, all highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less are considered cash equivalents, except those held for long-term
purposes in the Sinking Fund, Capital Improvement Fund, Workers’ Compensation Escrow Fund, and
Health Insurance Escrow Fund as described in note 3.

Cash designated for capital expenditures consisted of cash held by the Company, which was segregated
into separate accounts that are not contractually restricted but, based on the Company’s intention, are
not available for the payment of general corporate obligations. These amounts will be utilized by the
Company in the future for capital expenditures.

Reserve for Injuries and Damages

The Company is principally insured through insurance carriers. However, the Company is required to
cover settlement of claims, which are excluded under the provisions of such insurance policies. An
estimated liability has been established, in accordance with PGC regulations, for settlements to be paid
by the Company in the next fiscal year.

Estimated losses from claims for occurrences not covered by insurance, which will not be paid in the
next fiscal year, have been accrued. Such liabilities have been established based upon Company history
and consultation with counsel. Such expenses are expected to be recovered through future rates.
Reductions to the reserve are made as claims are settled.

Segment Information

All of the Company’s assets and operations are employed in only one segment, local transportation
and distribution of natural gas in the City.

Estimates

In preparing the financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP, management uses estimates. The
Company has disclosed in the financial statements all estimates where it is reasonably possible that
the estimate will change in the near term and the effect of the change could be material to the financial
statements.

Pollution Remediation

Under Pennsylvania Act 2, Land Recycling and Environmental Remediation Standards Act of 1995
(Act 2), the Notice of Intent to Remediate (NIR) process was conducted by the Company in
October 2004 and a total of four Public Involvement Plan meetings were conducted at multiple City
Recreation Centers throughout Philadelphia during February and March 2005. In March 2005 (after
the public meetings were conducted), the Company submitted a series of five Remedial Investigation
Reports (RIRs) to the Act 2 for review. In July 2005, the Act 2 program approved all five RIRs
submitted in March 2005.

The Company estimates its pollution remediation obligations using the effective cash flow method, in
which measurement is based on the outlays expected to be incurred as a sum of probability-weighted
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amounts in a range of possible estimated amounts. The Company’s liability is based on a combination
of internal and external cost estimates for the specific remediation activities agreed to as part of Act 2
and Pennsylvania Act 32, Storage Tank and Spill Prevention Act of 1989 (Act 32).

Estimated site liabilities are determined based upon existing remediation laws and technologies,
specific site consultants’ engineering studies, or by extrapolating experience with environmental issues
at comparable sites. Estimates may change substantially as additional information becomes available
regarding the level of contamination at specific sites, available remediation methods, and changes in
price, technology, proposed land use, or applicable regulations.

The Company recorded an additional liability for pollution remediation obligations of $4.0 million and
$0.5 million for FY 2014 and FY 2013, respectively. The pollution remediation liability is reflected in
other noncurrent liabilities and in other current liabilities. In accordance with U.S. GAAP for regulated
entities, the Company has also recognized the long-term portion of its environmental remediation
liability as a regulatory asset because based on available evidence it is probable that the previously
incurred costs will be recovered through rates.

(¥  Reclassifications

Certain prior-year amounts have been reclassified for comparative purposes. Specifically, the annual
distribution to the City has been reclassified from an equity reduction to a nonoperating expense.

(w) New Accounting Pronouncements

As discussed in note 10, the Company currently does not reflect a net pension obligation on its balance
sheet because the annual required contribution has been made each year. GASB No. 68, Accounting
and Financial Reporting for Pensions — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27, is effective for the
Company’s fiscal year ending August 31, 2015. The primary objective of this Statement is to improve
accounting and financial reporting by state and local governments for pensions. This Statement will
result in the Company’s net pension liability being reflected on the balance sheet, measured as the
portion of the present value of projected benefit payments to be provided to current and inactive
employees that is attributed to those employees’ past periods of service (total pension liability), less
the amount of the pension plan’s fiduciary net position. Under this new pronouncement, the unfunded
actuarial liability for the plan is approximately $205.2 million at August 31, 2014.

Ownership and Management and Related-Party Transactions and Balances

The Company is a component unit of the City. As of January 1, 1973, under the terms of a two-year
agreement automatically extended for successive two-year periods unless canceled upon 90 days notice by
the City, the Company is being managed by the Philadelphia Facilities Management Corporation (PFMC).
The agreement, as amended, provides for reimbursement to PEMC of actual costs incurred in managing the
Company, not to exceed a total of the prior fiscal year’s maximum amount adjusted to reflect the percentage
change in the Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers (CPI-U) All Items Index, Philadelphia,
Pennsylvania, United States Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics, as most recently published
and available to the Director of Finance of the City on March 1 of each such fiscal year. In FY 2014 and FY
2013, the applicable maximum amount was calculated to be $1.2 million. The agreement requires the
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Company to make annual payments of $18.0 million to the City. In FY 2014 and FY 2013, the Company
made the annual payment of $18.0 million to the City.

The Company engages in various other transactions with the City. The Company provides gas service to the
City. Operating revenues include $7.5 million and $7.3 million in FY 2014 and FY 2013, respectively,
relating to sales to the City. Net amounts receivable from the City were $0.2 million at August 31, 2014 and
2013. Water and sewer services and licenses are purchased from the City. Such purchases totaled $1.4 million
and $0.9 million in FY 2014 and FY 2013, respectively.

Certain activities of the PGC are paid for by the Company. Such payments totaled $0.8 million in both FY
2014 and FY 2013.

Cash and Cash Equivalents, and Investments

(@)

(b)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist primarily of bank deposits, money market accounts, and investments
purchased through various brokerage relationships. Bank balances of such deposits, accounts, and
investments at August 31, 2014 and 2013 were $105.3 million and $100.8 million, respectively. Book
balances of such deposits and accounts at August 31, 2014 and 2013 were $105.7 million and
$100.9 million, respectively. Federal depository insurance on these balances at August 31, 2014 and
2013 was $0.5 million. The remaining balances are not insured. Investments are primarily in money
market accounts, U.S. Treasury bills, U.S. government agencies and instrumentalities, and corporate
obligations (short-term investments).

The highest balance of short-term investments during FY 2014 and FY 2013 was $102.6 million and
$85.0 million, respectively. Short-term investments with a carrying amount (at fair value) of
$102.6 million and $84.2 million at August 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, are included in the
balances presented above.

PGW transferred $10.0 million from short-term investments to cash designated for capital
expenditures at the end of FY 2014. These unexpended funds were designated for the purchase of
utility plant. In FY 2014 and FY 2013, the Company utilized the Capital Improvement Fund to provide
liquidity for the additions to utility plant.

Sinking Fund, Capital Improvement Fund, Workers’ Compensation Escrow Fund, and Health
Insurance Escrow Fund

The investments in the Company’s Sinking Fund, Capital Improvement Fund, Workers’ Compensation
Escrow Fund, and Health Insurance Escrow Fund consist primarily of U.S. Treasury and government
agency obligations, corporate obligations, and money market accounts. These investments are
maintained by the City or in the Company’s name by its agent. The balance of the Capital Improvement
Fund at August 31, 2014 and 2013 was $0.0 million and $44.1 million, respectively.

Investments are recorded at fair value except for certain money market funds recorded at amortized
cost. The adjustment to market value for the Capital Improvement Fund resulted in no gain or loss in
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FY 2014 and a loss of $0.1 million in FY 2013. The adjustment to market value for the Sinking Fund
resulted in a gain of $0.3 million in FY 2014 and a loss of $0.2 million in FY 2013.

Pursuant to the Pennsylvania Department of Labor and Industry Bureau of Workers’ Compensation
Self-Insurance policy, the Company has established and maintained a restricted trust account. As of
August 31, 2014 and 2013, the trust account balances were $2.6 million.

PGW is self-insured for the healthcare for active employees and retirees under the age of 65. Retirees
over the age of 65 are insured on an experience rated basis. The self-insured model requires the
Company to establish and maintain a restricted escrow account.

The balance in the Health Insurance Escrow Fund was $3.2 million as of August 31, 2014 and 2013.
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The following is a schedule that details the Company’s investments in the Capital Improvement Fund
for FY 2013 (thousands of U.S. dollars). There was no balance at the end of FY 2014:

August 31, 2013
Weighted
average
maturity Credit Rating
Investment type Fair value (years) rating agency
U.S. government obligations:
U.S. Treasury notes $ 1,700 0.0333 AAA/AA+ Moody’s/S&P
U.S. government agencies and

instrumentalities:
Federal National Mortgage

Association medium

term notes 6,313 0.3000 AAA/AA+ Moody’s/S&P
Federal Home Loan Bank

bonds 8,962 0.1881 AAA/AA+ Moody’s/S&P
Federal Home Loan

Mortgage Corporation

medium term notes 6,629 0.3698 AAA/AA+ Moody’s/S&P
Federal Farm Credit Bank bonds 2,311 0.4917 AAA/AA+ Moody’s/S&P
Federal Home Loan Banks

discount notes 100 0.0889 Moody’s/S&P
Federal National Mortgage

Association discount notes 1,980 0.0285 AAA/AA+ Moody’s/S&P

Total

U.S. government
agencies and
instrumentalities 26,295
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August 31, 2013
Weighted
average
maturity Credit Rating
Investment type Fair value (years) rating agency
Corporate obligations:
New York Life Global Funding $ 924 0.2861 AAA/AA+ Moody’s/S&P
Berkshire Hathaway Financial 281 0.3203 AA2/AA+ Moody’s/S&P
Massmutual Global Funding 254 0.3203 AA2/AA+ Moody’s/S&P
XTO Energy Inc 913 0.2917 AAA/AAA Moody’s/S&P
Walmart Stores 283 0.3697 AA2/AA Moody’s/S&P
Microsoft 500 0.2917 AAA/AAA Moody’s/S&P
Total corporate
obligations 3,155
Foreign issues:
Shell International Financial 734 2.5623 AA1/AA Moody’s/S&P

Total fair value of
investments 31,884

Money market:
First American Prime
Obligations Class Z 12,010 *
Morgan Stanley Prime
Portfolio Institutional

Class 100 — *
Total money market 12,110
Other 61 — *
Total fair value of
investments,
including cash
deposits $ 44,055

Portfolio weighted modified
duration 0.2752

* The credit of this investment is unrated.
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The following is a schedule that details the Company’s investments in the Sinking Fund (thousands of
U.S. dollars):

August 31, 2014

Weighted
average
maturity Credit Rating
Investment type Fair value (years) rating agency
U.S. government obligations:
U.S. Treasury notes $ 26,837 7.1615 AAA/AA+ Moody’s/S&P

U.S. government agencies
and instrumentalities:

Federal National
Mortgage Association
medium term notes 9,390 0.6125 AAA/AA+ Moody’s/S&P

Federal Home
Loan Mortgage
Corporation medium

term notes 7,513 1.3230 AAA/AA+ Moody’s/S&P
Federal Home Loan Bank bonds 5,770 0.1889 AAA/AA+ Moody’s/S&P
Federal Home Loan Bank

discounted notes 915 0.1763 AAA/AA+ Moody’s/S&P
Federal Farm Credit Bank bonds 11,304 0.6389 AAA/AA+ Moody’s/S&P
Federal National Mortgage

Corporation Debt Securities 7,525 1.6167 AAA/AA+ Moody’s/S&P

Total

U.S. government
agencies and
instrumentalities 42,417

Total fair value of
investments 69,254

Corporate obligations:

Walmart Stores 1,269 2.5036 AA2/AA Moody’s/S&P
National Australia Bank NY 2,598 3.3868 AA2/AA Moody’s/S&P
General Electric Capital

Corporation 1,596 5.8879 Al/AA+ Moody’s/S&P
Berkshire Hathaway Financial 537 1.4311 AA2/AA Moody’s/S&P

Total corporate
obligations 6,000
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August 31, 2014
Weighted
average
maturity Credit Rating
Investment type Fair value (years) rating agency
Foreign issues:
Bank of Nova Scotia $ 2,961 1.9396 AA2+/A+ Moody’s/S&P
Total Capital S.A. 3,070 5.7167 AAl1+/AA- Moody’s/S&P
Westpac Banking Corporation 1,788 2.7128 AA2+/AA- Moody’s/S&P
Total foreign
issues 7,819
State Obligations:
Pennsylvania ST Second Ser 762 — AA3/AA Moody’s/S&P
Cash and cash equivalents:
Credit Agricole N A
commercial paper 2,250 — * *
BNP Paribus Finance Inc
commercial paper 2,074 — * *
Rabobank USA Financial
Corporation commercial
paper 2,124 — * *
UBS Finance Delaware
commercial paper 2,072 — * *
Toyota Motor Credit
Corporation commercial
paper 1,798 — * *
HSBC Americas Inc
commercial paper 3,225 — * *
JP Morgan Securities
commercial paper 2,748 — * *
Societe Generale NA C P 2,900 — * *
Deutsche Bank Financial LLC
commercial paper 2,574 — * *
Money market:
First American Government
Obligations Fund Class Z 131 — * *
Total cash and cash
equivalents 21,896
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August 31, 2014
Weighted
average
maturity Credit Rating
Investment type Fair value (years) rating agency
Other $ 177 _ * *
Total fair value of
investments,
including cash
deposits $ 105,908
Portfolio weighted modified
duration 0.7673

* The credit of this investment is unrated.

August 31, 2013

Weighted
average
maturity Credit Rating
Investment type Fair value (years) rating agency
U.S. government obligations:
U.S. Treasury notes $ 60,705 0.9007 AAA/AA+ Moody’s/S&P
U.S. government agencies
and instrumentalities:
Federal National
Mortgage Association
medium term notes 12,979 1.4567 AAA/AA+ Moody’s/S&P
Federal Home Loan Bank bonds 9,689 1.1265 AAA/AA+ Moody’s/S&P
Federal Farm Credit Bank bonds 4,005 1.5111 AAA/AA+ Moody’s/S&P

Total
U.S. government
agencies and
instrumentalities 26,673

Total fair value of
investments 87,378
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August 31, 2013
Weighted
average
maturity Credit Rating
Investment type Fair value (years) rating agency
Corporate obligations: Moody’s/S&P
Walmart Stores $ 2,302 0.1906 AA2/AA
Berkshire Hathaway Financial 550 0.1696 AA2/AA Moody’s/S&P
General Electric Capital
Corporation 1,840 0.1938 Al/AA+ Moody’s/S&P
Total corporate
obligations 4,692
State obligations:
Pennsylvania ST Second Ser 797 — AA2/AA Moody’s/S&P
Cash and cash equivalents:
Bank of Tokyo Mitsubishi
commercial paper 2,802 — * *
BNP Paribus Finance Inc
commercial paper 2,074 — * *
Rabobank USA Financial
Corporation commercial 2,818 — * *
paper
UBS Finance Delaware
commercial paper 2,072 — * *
Toyota Motor Credit
Corporation commercial
paper 1,199 — * *
General Electric Capital
Corporation commercial 1,275 — * *
paper
Money market:
First American Government
Obligations Fund Class Z 173 — * *
Total cash and cash
equivalents 12,413
Total fair value of
investments,
including cash
deposits $ 105,280
Portfolio weighted modified
duration 1.0442

* The credit of this investment is unrated.
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The following is a schedule that details the Company’s investments in the Workers’ Compensation
Escrow Fund (thousands of U.S. dollars):

August 31, 2014
Weighted
average
maturity Credit Rating
Investment type Fair value (years) rating agency
Money market:
Fidelity Governmental Fund $ 2,597 — * *
Total fair value of
investments,
including cash
deposits $ 2,597
* The credit of this investment is unrated.
August 31, 2013
Weighted
average
maturity Credit Rating
Investment type Fair value (years) rating agency
Money market:
Fidelity Governmental Fund $ 2,597 * *
Total fair value of
investments,
including cash
deposits $ 2,597

* The credit of this investment is unrated.
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The following is a schedule that details the Company’s investments in the Health Insurance Escrow
Fund (thousands of U.S. dollars):

August 31, 2014
Weighted
average
maturity Credit Rating
Investment type Fair value (years) rating agency
Money market:
Fidelity Governmental Fund $ 3,223 — * *
Total fair value of
investments,
including cash
deposits $ 3,223
* The credit of this investment is unrated.
August 31, 2013
Weighted
average
maturity Credit Rating
Investment type Fair value (years) rating agency
Money market:
Fidelity Governmental Fund $ 3,223 — * *
Total fair value of
investments,
including cash
deposits $ 3,223

* The credit of this investment is unrated.

Interest Rate Risk

It is the policy of the City to diversify its investment portfolios. Portfolio diversification is employed
as a way to control risk. Investments shall be diversified as to maturities, and as to kind of investments
to minimize the risk of loss, which might result from over concentration of assets in a specific maturity,
in a specific kind of a security, or from a specific issuer or industry.

Credit Risk

The City has adopted an investment policy relating to the investments of the Company. Per the
investment policy, the Company’s allowable investments are: (1) bonds or notes of the
U.S. government; (2) U.S. Treasury obligations, including separate trading of registered interest and
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principal securities (STRIPS); receipts indicating an undivided interest in such U.S. Treasury
obligations; and stripped coupons held under book-entry with the New York Federal Reserve Bank;
(3) obligations of the following U.S. government-sponsored agencies; Government National Mortgage
Association, Federal National Mortgage Association, Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation,
Federal Farm Credit System, Federal Home Loan Bank, Resolution Funding Corporation, and
Tennessee Valley Authority; (4) collateralized banker’s acceptances and certificate of deposit
denominated in U.S. dollars and issued by a city code authorized depository certificate of deposit must
be secured by acceptable collateral with a total market value equal to 102.0% of the deposit;
(5) commercial paper with a stated maturity of 270 days or less, which is rated P1 by Moody’s or A1+
by Standard & Poor’s (S&P). The senior long-term debt of the commercial paper issuer, or the entity
providing and explicit guarantee, must be rated not lower than A2 by Moody’s or A by S&P;
(6) asset-backed commercial paper (ABCP), which does not have a long-term rating, is an allowable
investment if it meets the short-term rating requirements but is only allowed up to the ABCP sublimit;
(7) general obligation bonds of corporations rated Aa2 or better by Moody’s or AA or better by S&P
with a final maturity of two years or less; (8) collateralized mortgage obligations and pass-through
securities directly issued by a federal agency or instrumentality of the United States, the underlying
security for which is guaranteed by an agency or instrumentality of the United States and with a final
maturity of two years or less, the rating must be no lower than Aa2 by Moody’s or AA by S&P;
(9) money market mutual funds, as defined by the Securities and Exchange Commission money
markets funds must have assets over $15 billion, have the highest rating from Moody’s, S&P, and
Fitch, and contain only government securities; (10) repurchase agreements that are fully collateralized
in bonds or notes of the U.S. government pledged to the City and held in the City’s name and deposited
at the time the investment is made with an entity or a third party selected and approved by the City the
market value of the collateral shall be at least 102.0% of the funds being disbursed; and (11) obligations
of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania (the Commonwealth) or any municipality or other political
subdivision of the Commonwealth with a final maturity of two years or less and a rating of at least AA
by Moody’s or S&P.

Authorized investments for Sinking Fund Portfolios are dictated by the First Class City Revenue Bond
Act of the General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, approved October 18, 1972. This
also includes any investment vehicle permitted for any Commonwealth state agency.
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The Company’s investment policy provides for the following percentage limitations of authorized
investments, valued at market:

Percent of
Percent of Percent of outstanding
portfolio portfolio securities
allowed per issuer per issuer
U.S. government 100% 100% N/A
U.S. Treasury 100 100 N/A
U.S. Agencies 100 33 N/A
Certificates of Deposit
Banker’s Acceptances, Eurodollar
Deposits, and Euro Certificates
of Deposit 15 3 —
Commercial Paper 25 3 3%
Corporate Bonds 25 3 3
Collateralized Mortgage Obligation
and Passthroughs 5 3 3
Money Market Mutual Funds 25 10 3
Repurchase Agreements 25 10 N/A

More than 47.2% of the Company’s investments as of August 31, 2014 are in the following: Federal
Home Loan Mortgage Corporation medium term notes (12.2%), Freddie Discounts (14.0%), and
Federal Home Loan Bank bonds (21.0%). These investments are in accordance with the City’s
investment policy.

(e)  Custodial Credit Risk

The Company has selected, as custodial bank, a member of the Federal Reserve System to hold its
investments. Delivery of the applicable investment documents to the Company’s custodian is required
for all investments. For secured transactions, such as repurchase agreements, either the title to or a
perfected security interest in the securities, along with any necessary transfer documents, must be
transferred to the custodian. Such transactions will always use delivery versus payment procedures.

Recoverable Costs

In compliance with orders issued by the PGC, the cost of projects that produce benefits over an extended
period is recorded on the balance sheet as a recoverable cost in other assets. There is no return on the asset
being charged to the customers. There were no unamortized costs included in other assets as of August 31,
2014 and 2013. There were no unamortized costs in other current assets at August 31, 2014. The unamortized
costs included in other current assets were $0.2 million as of August 31, 2013.

In accordance with U.S. GAAP for regulated entities, the Company has recognized the long-term portion of
its environmental remediation liability as a regulatory asset because based on available evidence it is
probable that the previously incurred costs will be recovered through rates. In FY 2014, settlements by the
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Company’s insurance carriers provided less than $0.1 million associated with environmental remediation
costs. Environmental remediation costs of approximately $0.6 million in FY 2014 were offset by these
insurance settlements, and the remainder was recorded on the balance sheet as a recoverable cost in other
assets. The Company estimates additional expenditures to be approximately $34.7 million.

Deferred Compensation Plan

The Company offers its employees a deferred compensation plan (the Plan) created in accordance with
Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The Plan, available to all Company employees with at least 30 days of
service, permits them to defer a portion of their salary until future years. The Company provides an annual
10.0% matching contribution of applicable wages that immediately vests to the employee. The Company
contributed $0.4 million in FY 2014 and $0.3 million in FY 2013.

Notes Payable

Pursuant to the provisions of certain ordinances and resolutions of the City, the Company may sell short-term
notes in a principal amount that, together with interest, may not exceed $150.0 million outstanding at any
time. These notes are intended to provide additional working capital. They are supported by irrevocable
letters of credit and a subordinated security interest in the Company’s revenues.

The commitment amount is $120.0 million under the current credit agreements. The expiration date of the
credit agreements is August 14, 2017.

There were no outstanding notes payable at August 31, 2014 and 2013.
Commercial paper activity for the year ended August 31, 2014 was as follows (thousands of U.S. dollars):
Year ended August 31, 2014

Beginning Ending
balance Additions Deletions balance

Commercial paper $ — 400 400 —

GCR Tariff Reconciliation

During the fiscal year ended August 31, 2014, the Company’s actual gas costs were above its billed gas costs
by approximately $13.4 million. This amount was recorded in other current assets for FY 2014. Actual gas
costs were $6.9 million lower than billed gas costs in FY 2013.

Natural Gas Pipeline Supplier Refund

The Company received refunds including interest of approximately $4.5 million in FY 2014 and $0.1 million
in FY 2013, related to Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC)/Pipeline Rate Cases. This amount
was utilized as a reduction in the cost of gas for reconciliation purposes in the calculation of the applicable
GCR.
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Long-Term Debt and Other Liabilities

The following summary of long-term debt consists primarily of bonds issued by the City under agreements
whereby the Company must reimburse the City for the principal and interest payments required by the bond
ordinances for the fiscal years ended August 31, 2014 and 2013 (thousands of U.S. dollars):

August 31,2014 August 31,2013
Current Current
portion Long-term Total portion Long-term Total
Revenue bonds $ 50,975 964,945 1,015,920 49,800 1,015,920 1,065,720
Unamortized discount (234) (1,926) (2,160) (248) (2,160) (2,408)
Unamortized premium 2,486 17,730 20,216 2,854 20,216 23,070
Total revenue bonds $ 53,227 980,749 1,033,976 52,406 1,033,976 1,086,382

The following is a summary of activity related to revenue bonds and other liabilities and the respective
balances for the fiscal years ended August 31, 2014 and 2013 (thousands of U.S. dollars):

Year ended August 31, 2014

Beginning Ending
balance Additions Reductions balance
Revenue bonds $ 1,065,720 — (49,800) 1,015,920
Other liabilities:
Claims and judgments 5,486 — (270) 5,216
Environmental clean-up 29,522 3,977 — 33,499
Other postemployment benefits 109,060 — (7,272) 101,788
Interest rate swap liability 33,363 5,399 — 38,762
Other current liabilities 9,107 10,214 — 19,321
Total other liabilities 186,538 19,590 (7,542) 198,586
Less current portion 9,107 10,214 — 19,321
Total other non-current
liabilities $ 177,431 9,376 (7,542) 179,265
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Year ended August 31,2013

Beginning Ending
balance Additions Reductions balance
Revenue bonds $ 1,093,440 — (27,720) 1,065,720
Other liabilities:
Unamortized balance of
Guaranteed Investment
Contract in Sinking Fund 5,309 — (5,309) —
Claims and judgments 3,438 2,048 — 5,486
Environmental clean-up 29,195 327 — 29,522
Other postemployment benefits 111,068 — (2,008) 109,060
Interest rate swap liability 57,435 — (24,072) 33,363
Other current liabilities 10,265 — (1,158) 9,107
Total other liabilities 216,710 2,375 (32,547) 186,538
Less current portion 10,265 — (1,158) 9,107
Total other non-current
liabilities $ 206,445 2,375 (31,389) 177,431

(a)  Principal maturities and scheduled interest and swap payments

Principal maturities and scheduled interest payments for revenue bonds and estimated payments on
the interest rate swaps are as follows (thousands of U.S. dollars):

Revenue bonds

Net swap
Principal Interest amount Total
Fiscal year ending August 31:

2015 $ 50,975 38,030 8,039 97,044
2016 49,155 35,365 8,039 92,559
2017 49,895 32,997 8,039 90,931
2018 49,355 30,575 7,978 87,908
2019 50,190 28,736 7,497 86,423
2020 - 2024 266,245 116,922 28,627 411,794
2025 -2029 241,000 77,231 9,385 327,616
2030 - 2034 139,770 41,505 — 181,275
2035-2039 109,895 13,516 — 123,411
2040 - 2041 9,440 496 — 9,936

Total $ 1,015,920 415,373 77,604 1,508,897

Future debt service is calculated using rates in effect at August 31, 2014 for variable rate bonds which
ranged from 0.03% to 0.04%. The variable rate received under the swaps is 70.0% of one month
LIBOR until maturity, which was 0.10990% at August 31, 2014.
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Revision of Previously Reported Amounts

The Company revised previously reported future amounts in the table above to remove net swap
amounts incorrectly included as future interest payments and to correct future variable rate interest
payments using the variable interest rate in effect at the end of the fiscal year.

The effect of the correction of this error was to reduce total future interest payments by approximately
$90 million.

Bond Issuances

In September 2011, the underlying variable rate bonds were remarketed and were backed by letters of
credit. As of August 31, 2014, the Company’s Eighth Series variable rate debt was backed by letter of
credit agreements, which either extend to August 1, 2016 (Eighth Series B, C, and D) or August 30,
2016 (Eighth Series E).

Interest rates and maturities of the outstanding revenue bonds are detailed as follows (thousands of
U.S. dollars):

Maturity Balance outstanding
Interest date August 31, August 31,
rates (fiscal year) 2014 2013

4th Series 4.00% — 5.25% 2032 $ 77,825 81,075
17th Series 4.00% — 5.38% 2026 101,160 110,940
5th Series 4.00% — 5.25% 2034 106,310 109,310
Sth Series A-2 Variable* 2035 30,000 30,000
18th Series 5.00% — 5.25% 2021 27,050 30,360
19th Series 5.00% 2024 14,450 14,450
20th Series 2.00% — 5.00% 2015 2,725 9,595
7th Series 4.00% — 5.00% 2038 179,685 183,460
7th Series Refunding 5.00% 2029 28,360 28,385
8th Series A 4.00% — 5.25% 2017 37,905 48,035
8th Series B Variable 2028 50,260 50,260
8th Series C Variable 2028 50,000 50,000
8th Series D Variable 2028 75,000 75,000
8th Series E Variable 2028 50,260 50,260
9th Series 2.00% — 5.25% 2040 138,895 141,835
10th Series 3.00% — 5.00% 2026 46,035 52,755
$ 1,015,920 1,065,720

* As of August 31, 2014, the interest rate was 0.03%.

Debt Coverage and Sinking Fund Requirements

Under the terms of both general ordinances, the City is required to maintain rates to allow the Company
to satisfy 1975 and 1998 revenue bond debt coverage ratio requirements.
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Also provided by both general ordinances is the establishment of a sinking fund into which deposits
are made to meet all principal and interest requirements of the bonds in an amount equal to the
maximum annual debt service requirement on the bonds of each respective general ordinance in any
fiscal year.

Funds in the Sinking Fund Reserve are to be applied to the payment of debt service if, for any reason,
other funds in the Sinking Fund should be insufficient.

The revenue bonds are, and will be, equally and ratably collateralized by a security interest in all of
the Company’s project revenues, as defined in the general ordinances, and monies in the Sinking Fund.

Portions of certain revenue bonds were issued as zero coupon securities. Interest on these securities is
accrued and compounded on the payment dates of the current interest bonds within the issue. The
accrued interest in the amount of $10.5 million and $10.8 million in FY 2014 and FY 2013,
respectively, is reported as a component of accrued accounts.

Interest Rate Swap Agreements

In January 2006, the City entered into a fixed rate payer, floating rate receiver interest rate swap to
create a synthetic fixed rate for the Sixth Series Bonds. The interest rate swap was used to hedge
interest rate risk.

The swaps have a maturity date of August 1, 2031 and require the City to pay a fixed rate of 3.6745%
and receive a variable rate equal to 70.0% of one-month LIBOR until maturity.

In August 2009, the City terminated approximately $54.8 million of the notional amount of the swap,
issued fixed rate refunding bonds related to that portion and kept the remaining portion of the swap to
hedge the Eighth Series variable rate refunding bonds backed with letters of credit. The Company paid
a swap termination payment of $3.8 million to the counterparty to partially terminate the swap.

The original swap confirmation was amended and restated on August 12, 2009 to reflect the principal
amount of the Eighth Series B Bonds, with all other terms remaining the same. The remainder of the
notional amount was divided among separate trade confirmations with the same terms as the original
swap that was executed with the counterparty for the Eighth Series C Bonds through the Eighth
Series E Bonds.

In September 2011, the underlying variable rate bonds were remarketed with new letters of credit.
During the remarketing, PGW partially redeemed portions of the longest three maturities of the bonds,
and reallocated remaining principal amongst the bond subseries. At the same time, the City terminated
an aggregate notional amount of $29.5 million of the swaps, keeping the remaining portion of the swap
to hedge the remaining variable rate bonds backed with letters of credit. The partial termination was
competitively bid, with the winning swap counterparty providing the lowest cost of
termination/assignment. PGW paid a swap termination payment of $7.0 million to partially terminate
the swaps. The remaining notional amounts of each of the swaps were adjusted to match the
reallocation of the underlying bonds.
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In April 2013, each of the swaps was amended to include additional language specifying the exact
process to be used to calculate a termination amount in the event of an optional termination at the
request of the City on or before April 1, 2015.

In August 2013, two subseries of the underlying variable rate bonds (8th Series C and 8th Series D)
were remarketed with new letters of credit. The letters of credit for the remaining two subseries (8th
Series B and 8th Series E) were extended with the existing providers.

As of August 31, 2014, the swaps had a notional amount of $225.5 million and the associated variable
rate debt had a $225.5 million principal amount, broken down by series as follows:

o The Series B swap had a notional amount of $50.3 million and the associated variable rate bonds
had a $50.3 million principal amount. The interest rate at August 31, 2014 for the underlying
bonds is approximately 0.04%.

o The Series C swap had a notional amount of $50.0 million and the associated variable rate bonds
had a $50.0 million principal amount. The interest rate at August 31, 2014 for the underlying
bonds is approximately 0.04%.

o The Series D swap had a notional amount of $75.0 million and the associated variable rate bonds
had a $75.0 million principal amount. The interest rate at August 31, 2014 for the underlying
bonds is approximately 0.04%.

. The Series E swap had a notional amount of $50.2 million and the associated variable rate bonds
had a $50.2 million principal amount. The interest rate at August 31, 2014 for the underlying
bonds is approximately 0.04%.

The final maturity date for all swaps is on August 1, 2028.

As of August 31, 2014, the swaps had a combined negative fair value of approximately $38.8 million.
The fair values of the interest rate swaps were estimated using the zero coupon method. That method
calculates the future net settlement payments required by the swap, assuming current forward rates are
implied by the current yield curve for hypothetical zero coupon bonds due on the date of each future
net settlement on the swaps.

As of August 31, 2014, the City is not exposed to credit risk because the swaps had a negative fair
value. Should interest rates change and the fair value of the swaps become positive, the City would be
exposed to credit risk in the amount of the swaps’ fair value. The swaps include a termination event
additional to those in the standard ISDA master agreement based on credit ratings. The swaps may be
terminated by the City if the rating of the counterparty falls below A3 or A — (Moody’s/S&P), unless
the counterparty has (i) assigned or transferred the swap to a party acceptable to the City; (ii) provided
a credit support provider acceptable to the City whose obligations are pursuant to a credit support
document acceptable to the City; or (iii) executed a credit support annex, in form and substance
acceptable to the City, providing for the collateralization by the counterparty of its obligations under
the swaps.
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The swaps may be terminated by the counterparty if the rating on the Company’s bonds falls below
Baa2 or BBB (Moody’s/S&P). However, because the City’s swap payments are insured by Assured
Guaranty Municipal Corporation, as long as Assured Guaranty Municipal Corporation is rated at or
above A2 or A (Moody’s/S&P), the termination event based on the City’s ratings is stayed. At the
present time, the rating for Assured Guaranty Municipal Corporation is at A2/AA — (Moody’s/S&P).

The City is exposed to (i) basis risk, as reflected by the relationship between the rate payable on the
bonds and 70.0% of one-month LIBOR received on the swap, and (ii) tax risk, a form of basis risk,
where the City is exposed to a potential additional interest cost in the event that changes in the federal
tax system or in marginal tax rates cause the rate paid on the outstanding bonds to be greater than the
70.0% of one-month LIBOR received on the swap.

The impact of the interest rate swaps on the financial statements for the years ended August 31, 2014
and 2013 is as follows (thousands of U.S. dollars):

Deferred
Interest rate outflow
swap liability of resources
Balance, August 31, 2013 $ 33,363 12,059
Change in fair value through August 31, 2014 5,399 6,820
Balance, August 31, 2014 $ 38,762 18,879
Deferred
Interest rate outflow
swap liability of resources
Balance, August 31, 2012 $ 57,435 34,712
Change in fair value through August 31, 2013 (24,072) (22,653)
Balance, August 31, 2013 $ 33,363 12,059

The interest rate swap liability is included in other noncurrent liabilities on the balance sheet.
There are no collateral posting requirements associated with the swap agreements.

Guaranteed Investment Contracts in Sinking Fund

On August 23, 2002, the City entered into Guaranteed Investment Contracts (GICs) in connection with
a portion of its 1975 and 1998 Ordinance Sinking Fund Reserves for the Company. At settlement,
approximately 65.0% of the Sinking Fund Reserves, from the two ordinances, totaling $61.4 million
were invested in the GICs. In exchange for this investment, the Company received an up-front payment
of $21.8 million in lieu of receiving interest payments over the life of the GICs.

In March 2013, the City terminated the GICs in connection with 1975 and 1998 Ordinance Sinking
Fund Reserves for the Company. At settlement, the Company paid $4.8 million to terminate the portion

47 (Continued)



©)

(10

PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
August 31, 2014 and 2013

related to the 1975 Ordinance and $4.2 million to terminate the portion related to the 1998 Ordinance
Sinking Fund Reserves for the Company. As a result of the termination of the GICs, in FY 2013 the
Company expensed $4.2 million to Interest and Other Income.

Defeased Debt

Defeased debt of the Company (bonds issued by the Company payable from the proceeds of irrevocably
pledged assets) at August 31, 2014 was as follows (thousands of U.S. dollars):

Latest date Bonds
maturing to Interest rate outstanding
12th Series B 5/15/20 7.00% $ 28,755

Defeased debt of the Company (bonds issued by the Company payable from the proceeds of irrevocably
pledged assets) at August 31, 2013 was as follows (thousands of U.S. dollars):

Latest date Bonds
maturing to Interest rate outstanding
12th Series B 5/15/20 7.00% $ 32,510

The investments held by the trustee and the defeased bonds are not recognized on the Company’s balance
sheets in accordance with the terms of the Indentures of Defeasance. The investments pledged for the
redemption of the defeased debt have maturities and interest payments scheduled to coincide with the trustee
cash requirements for debt service.

The assets pledged, primarily noncallable U.S. government securities, had a market value of $30.3 million
at August 31, 2014, bearing interest on face value from 0.00% to 5.89%.

The assets pledged, primarily noncallable U.S. government securities, had a market value of $34.1 million
at August 31, 2013, bearing interest on face value from 0.00% to 7.74%.

Pension Costs
(a) Plan Description

The Pension Plan sponsored by the City provides pension benefits for all eligible employees of the
Company and other eligible class employees of PFMC and the PGC. The Company’s annual covered
payroll was $104.1 million and $106.0 million at August 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
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At September 1, 2014, the beginning of the plan year of the last actuarial valuation, the Pension Plan
membership consisted of:

Retirees and Beneficiaries Currently
receiving benefits and terminated
employees entitled to benefits, but

not yet receiving them 2,343
Participants:

Vested 1,140

Nonvested 251

Total participants 1,391

Total membership 3,734

The Pension Plan provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits. Retirement
benefits vest after five years of credited service. Employees who retire at or after age 65 are entitled
to receive an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly, in an amount equal to the greater of:

. 1.25% of the first $6,600 of Final Average Earnings plus 1.75% of the excess of Final Average
Earnings over $6,600, times years of credited service, with a maximum of 60.0% of the highest
annual earnings during the last 10 years of credited service or

. 2.0% of total earnings received during the period of credited service plus 22.5% of the first
$1,200 annual amount, applicable only to participants who were employees on or prior to
March 24, 1967.

Final Average Earnings are the employee’s average pay, over the highest five years of the last 10 years
of credited service. Employees with 15 years of credited service may retire at or after age 55 and
receive a reduced retirement benefit. Employees with 30 years of service may retire without penalty
for reduced age.

Covered employees are not required to contribute to the Pension Plan. The Company is required by
statute to contribute the amounts necessary to fund the Pension Plan. Benefit and contribution
provisions are established by City Ordinance and may be amended only as allowed by City Ordinance.

In December 2011, the Pension Plan sponsored by the City was amended by Ordinance and a new
deferred compensation plan was authorized by Ordinance as well. Newly hired employees will have
an irrevocable option to join either a new deferred compensation plan created in accordance with
Internal Revenue Code Section 401 or the existing defined benefit plan. The deferred compensation
plan provides for an employer contribution equal to 5.5% of applicable wages. The defined benefit
plan provides for a newly hired employee contribution equal to 6.0% of applicable wages. The
Ordinance did not affect the retirement benefits of active employees, current retirees and beneficiaries,
or terminated employees entitled to benefits but not yet receiving them.
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The City issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for the Pension Plan. The report may be obtained by writing to the Office
of the Director of Finance of the City.

Annual Pension Cost, Contributions Required, and Contributions Made

The normal cost, amortization of the unfunded balance, and annual required and actual contributions
for FY 2014 and the two preceding fiscal years were as follows (thousands of U.S. dollars):

Amortization Annual
of the required and
Normal underfunded actual
cost balance contributions
Fiscal year ended August 31:
2014 $ 8,533 15,988 24,521
2013 8,782 14,832 23,614
2012 8,171 15,801 23,972

Beneficiary payments of $43.2 million were made in FY 2014. Withdrawals from the pension assets
of $21.8 million were utilized to meet these beneficiary payments. Additionally, $0.8 million was due
to the Company from the pension fund at the end of FY 2014.

The Company’s annual pension cost is equal to its annual required contribution (ARC). The ARCs
were determined based on an actuarial study, or updates thereto, using the projected unit credit method.
Significant actuarial assumptions used for the above valuation include a rate of return on the
investment of present and future assets of 7.95% per year compounded annually; with salary increases
assumed to reach 4.5% per year; and retirements that are assumed to occur prior to age 62, at a rate of
10.0% at ages 55 to 61 and 100.0% at age 62. The assumptions did not include postretirement benefit
increases. These actuarial assumptions are consistent with the prior fiscal year.

The actuarial asset value is equal to the value of the fund assets as reported by the City with no
adjustments. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized over 20 years.
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The Pension Plan funding policy provides for periodic employer contributions at actuarially
determined rates that, expressed as percentages of annual covered payroll, are sufficient to accumulate
assets to pay benefits when due. Level percentages of payroll employer contribution rates are
determined using the Projected Unit Credit actuarial funding method. The actuarial value of assets,
actuarial accrued liability, unfunded actuarial accrued liability, funded ratio, covered payroll and the
unfunded actuarial accrued liability of covered payroll for FY 2014, and the two preceding fiscal years
were as follows (thousands of U.S. dollars):

(b)

(a) Actuarial (b)-(a) UAAL
Actuarial Actuarial accrued Unfunded (a/b) as a percent
valuation value of liability AAL Funded Covered of covered
date assets (AAL) (UAAL) ratio payroll payroll
September 1, 2013 $ 462,691 623,612 160,921 742% $ 104,123 154.5%
September 1, 2012 437,780 585,632 147,852 74.8 106,000 139.5
September 1, 2011 421,949 572,190 150,241 73.7 106,308 141.3

The ARCs, contributions made, and net pension obligation for FY 2014 and the two preceding fiscal
years were as follows (thousands of U.S. dollars):

2014 2013 2012
Annual required contribution $ 24,521 23,614 23,972
Contributions made (24,521) (23,614) (23,972)

Net pension obligation  § — — _

(11) Other Postemployment Benefits

(@)

Plan Description

The Company sponsors a single employer defined-benefit healthcare plan and provided
postemployment healthcare and life insurance benefits to approximately 2,053 and 2,044 participating
retirees and their beneficiaries and dependents in FY 2014 and FY 2013, respectively, in accordance
with their retiree medical program. The annual covered payroll (which was substantially equal to total
payroll) was $115.2 million and $110.1 million at August 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

The Company pays the full cost of medical, basic dental, and prescription coverage for employees who
retired prior to December 1,2001. Employees who retire after December 1,2001 are provided a choice
of three plans at the Company’s expense and can elect to pay toward a more expensive plan. Retirees
may also contribute toward enhanced dental plan and life insurance coverage. PGW pays 100% of the
cost for the prescription drug plan after drug co-pays. Union employees hired on or after May 21, 2011
and Non-Union employees hired on or after December 21, 2011 are entitled to receive postretirement
medical, prescription, and dental benefits for five years only. Currently, the Company provides for the
cost of healthcare and life insurance benefits for retirees and their beneficiaries on a pay-as-you-go
basis.
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Total expense incurred for healthcare and life insurance related to retirees amounted to $25.9 million
and $23.7 million in FY 2014 and FY 2013, respectively. In addition, the Company expensed
$18.5 million of funding for the OPEB Trust and retirees contributed $0.4 million towards their
healthcare in both FY 2014 and FY 2013. These contributions represent the additional cost of
healthcare plans chosen by retirees above the basic plan offered by the Company. Total premiums for
group life insurance were $2.2 million in both FY 2014 and FY 2013, which included $1.8 million and
$1.7 million for retirees. Retirees contributed $0.1 million towards their life insurance in both FY 2014
and FY 2013.

Annual Postemployment Benefit Cost, Contributions Required, and Contributions Made

The amount paid by the Company for retiree benefits in FY 2014 was $44.4 million, consisting of
$24.3 million of healthcare expenses, $1.6 million of life insurance expenses, and $18.5 million
contributed to the OPEB trust. In FY 2013, the Company paid $42.2 million, consisting of
$22.2 million of healthcare expenses, $1.5 million of life insurance expenses, and $18.5 million
contributed to the OPEB trust. The difference between the AOC and the Company’s contributions
resulted in a decrease in the OPEB obligation of $7.3 million and $2.0 million in FY 2014 and FY
2013, respectively, which was recorded to other noncurrent liabilities and expensed.

Funded Status

The actuarial accrued liability for benefits at August 31, 2014 and 2013 was $450.3 million and
$436.5 million, respectively. The ratio of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability to the covered payroll
was 312.1% as of August 31, 2014 and 340.3% as of August 31, 2013.

Historical trend information reflecting funding progress and contributions made by the Company is
presented in the Schedule of Other Postemployment Benefits Funding Progress (Required
Supplementary Information).

Assumptions

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the
probability of events far into the future, and are subject to continual revision as actual amounts are
compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. Projections of benefits for
financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer
and the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the
historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The
actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of
short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the
long-term perspective of the calculations.
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The assumptions used to determine the AOC for the current year and the funded status of the plan

include:

Actuarial cost method

Method(s) used to determine the actuarial

value of assets
Investment return assumption
(discount rate)

Mortality

Amortization method
Amortization period

Healthcare cost trend rates are as follows:

Projected unit credit
Fair value of plan assets held in the

OPEB trust

7.95%, which represents the long-term
expected investment return on OPEB

trust assets

2014 Static Annuitant and Non-Annuitant

Mortality Table
Level dollar amount

Open period of 30 years

Healthcare cost trend rates

Medical Medical
Year (pre-65) (post-65) Prescription Dental
2014 9.0% 7.0% 7.0% 4.5%
2015 8.0 6.0 6.0 4.5
2016 7.0 5.0 5.0 4.5
2017 6.5 4.5 4.5 4.5
2018 6.0 4.5 4.5 4.5
2019 5.5 4.5 4.5 4.5
2020 5.0 4.5 4.5 4.5
2021+ 4.5 4.5 4.5 4.5

The following table shows the components of the Company’s annual OPEB cost for FY 2014 and FY
2013, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and the Company’s net OPEB obligation (thousands

of U.S. dollars):

Annual required contribution
Interest on net OPEB obligation

Adjustment to the annual required contribution

Annual OPEB cost

Contributions made
Net OPEB obligation as of prior year

Net OPEB obligation as of August 31
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2014 2013
$ 38,062 41216
8,670 8,885
(9,642) (9,866)
37,090 40,235
(44,362) (42,242)
109,060 111,067
$ 101,788 109,060
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The annual OPEB cost is recorded in the Statements of Revenue and Expenses and Changes in Net
Position. For the year ended August 31, 2014, approximately $11.2 million was recorded to other
postemployment benefits expense and $25.9 million was recorded to administrative and general
expense. For the year ended August 31, 2013, approximately $16.5 million was recorded to other
postemployment benefits expense and $23.7 million was recorded to administrative and general
expense.

The Company’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and
the net OPEB obligation for FY 2014 and the two preceding fiscal years were as follows (thousands
of U.S. dollars):

Percentage of

Annual annual OPEB
OPEB cost Net OPEB
cost contributed obligation
Fiscal year ended August 31:
2014 $ 37,090 119.6% $ 101,788
2013 40,235 105.0 109,060
2012 46,105 96.5 111,067

(c) Other Coverage Information

PGW is self-insured for the healthcare of active employees and retirees under the age of 65. Retirees
over the age of 65 are insured on an experience rated basis. At August 31, 2014, the Company has in
place $192.3 million of group life insurance coverage for both active and retired employees, which is
retrospectively rated on a monthly basis.

Pollution Remediation

The pollution remediation obligations at August 31, 2014 and 2013 were $34.7 million and $30.8 million,
respectively, which reflect the impact of GASB Statement No. 49, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pollution Remediation Obligations.

Risk Management

The Company is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets, errors and omissions, injuries to employees, and natural disasters. While self-insured for many risks,
the Company purchases insurance coverage where appropriate. The Company’s real and personal property
is insured against the risk of loss or damage in the amount of $250.0 million, subject to a $0.5 million per
accident deductible at the Richmond and Passyunk Plants and a $0.1 million per accident deductible at all
other locations. There are separate sublimits for flood and earth movement at select locations. The
Company’s Property Insurance includes coverage for damage incurred from a terrorist attack. In addition,
the Company maintains Blanket Crime, which is a form of Property Insurance.
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The Company maintains $210.0 million in liability (including terrorism) coverage, insuring against the risk
of damage to property or injury to the public with a per occurrence self-insured retention of $1.0 million.

The Company maintains statutory limits for Workers’ Compensation (including terrorism) with a
$0.5 million per occurrence self-insured retention.

The Company maintains a $30.0 million Public Officials Liability (Directors and Officers Liability) policy
with a $0.5 million retention as well as a $60.0 million Fiduciary Liability policy with a $0.2 million
self-insured retention.

The Company has evaluated all open claims as of August 31, 2014 and has appropriately accrued for these
claims on the balance sheet.

Claims and settlement activity for occurrences excluded under the provisions of insurance policies for
injuries and damages are as follows (thousands of U.S. dollars):

Current year Current
Beginning of claims and Claims End of year liability
year reserve adjustments settled reserve amount
Fiscal year ended August 31:
2014 $ 10,411 2,498 (2,965) 9,944 4,728
2013 11,102 2,616 (3,307) 10,411 4,925
2012 10,697 3,725 (3,320) 11,102 7,664

Commitments and Contingencies

Commitments for major construction and maintenance contracts were approximately $25.1 million and
$21.6 million, as of August 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

The Company is committed under various noncancelable operating lease agreements to pay minimum annual
rentals as follows (thousands of U.S. dollars):

Fiscal year ending August 31:

2015 $ 654
2016 379
2017 334

Rent expense for the fiscal years ended August 31,2014 and 2013 amounted to $1.5 million and $1.4 million,
respectively.

The Company, in the normal course of conducting business, has entered into long-term contracts for the
supply of natural gas, firm transportation, and long-term firm gas storage service. The Company’s cumulative
obligations for demand charges for all of these services are approximately $5.0 million, per month.
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The Company has entered into seasonal contracts with suppliers providing the Company the ability to fix the
price of the purchase of natural gas during the period from November 1, 2014 through March 31, 2015.

The Company’s amended FY 2015 Capital Budget was approved by City Council in the amount of
$89.5 million. Within this approval, funding was provided to continue the implementation of an 18-mile Cast
Iron Main Replacement Program. Main replacement cost for this program in FY 2015 is expected to be
$21.4 million. The total six-year cost of the Cast Iron Main Replacement Program is forecasted to be
$136.4 million. In addition to this program, the FY 2015 Capital Budget includes funding for an incremental
Cast Iron Main Replacement Program for which PGW will request recovery through a DSIC. This
incremental program in FY 2015 is expected to cost $17.3 million. The total six-year cost of this incremental
program is forecasted to be $128.6 million. The FY 2015 Capital Budget also includes $2.3 million for the
purchase of replacement Automatic Meter Reading (AMR) units. The total six-year cost of this program to
replace AMR units is approximately $15.9 million.

Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated events and transactions that occurred between August 31, 2014 and
December 23, 2014, which is the date the financial statements were originally available to be issued, and
between December 23, 2014 and February 23, 2015, the date the financial statements were reissued, for
possible disclosure and recognition in the financial statements and noted the following:

On March 2, 2014, following a competitive bidding process, the City entered into an agreement to sell PGW
to UIL Holdings Corporation, subject to authorization by City Council and the Public Utility Commission.
On December 4, 2014, UIL exercised its option to withdraw from the agreement after no authorizing
ordinance was introduced in City Council.

On October 21, 2014, Standard & Poor’s Rating Services raised the rating on PGW revenue bonds, issued
under its 1975 (closed senior lien) and 1998 ordinances (subordinate working lien) to “A-“from “BBB+".
Rationale sited for the rating upgrades included improving trends related to coverage of fixed costs, liquidity,
debt ratios and collections, as well as the adoption of a number of credit supportive policies and procedures.

The Company’s 5th Series A-2 variable rate bonds are backed by irrevocable letters of credit, which were
extended on November 1, 2014 for a term of one year expiring on December 31, 2015.

56



PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
Schedule of Pension Funding Progress
(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

(b)
(a) Actuarial (b)-(a) UAAL
Actuarial Actuarial accrued Unfunded (a/b) as a percent
valuation value of liability AAL Funded Covered of covered
date assets (AAL) (UAAL) ratio payroll payroll
September 1, 2013* $ 462,691 623,612 160,921 742% $ 104,123 154.5%
September 1, 2012%** 437,780 585,632 147,852 74.8 106,000 139.5
September 1, 201 1*** 421,949 572,190 150,241 73.7 106,308 1413
September 1, 2010+ 381,975 533,630 151,655 71.6 106,125 142.9
September 1, 2009++ 355,499 519,773 164,274 68.4 106,003 155.0
September 1, 2008+++ 430,390 495,155 64,765 86.9 107,918 60.0

*  The required supplementary information is based on an actuarial valuation of the pension fund for the plan year September 1, 2013 through

August 31, 2014, updated for contributions and additional accrued benefits in the subsequent fiscal year.

** The required supplementary information is based on an actuarial valuation of the pension fund for the plan year September 1, 2012 through
August 31, 2013, updated for contributions and additional accrued benefits in the subsequent fiscal year.

*** The required supplementary information is based on an actuarial valuation of the pension fund for the plan year September 1, 2011 through
August 31, 2012.

+ The required supplementary information is based on an actuarial valuation of the pension fund for the plan year September 1, 2009 through
August 31, 2010, updated for contributions and additional accrued benefits in the subsequent fiscal year.

++ The required supplementary information is based on an actuarial valuation of the pension fund for the plan year September 1, 2009 through
August 31, 2010.

+++ The required supplementary information is based on an actuarial valuation of the pension fund for the plan year September 1, 2007 through
August 31, 2008, updated for contributions and additional accrued benefits in the subsequent fiscal year.

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
Schedule of Other Postemployment Benefits Funding Progress
(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

(b)
(a) Actuarial (b)-(a) UAAL
Actuarial Actuarial accrued Unfunded (a/b) as a percent
valuation value of liability AAL Funded Covered of covered
date assets (AAL) (UAAL) ratio payroll payroll
August 31, 2014* $ 90,838 450,289 359,451 202% $ 115,174 312.1%
August 31, 2013** 61,796 436,527 374,731 14.2 110,120 340.3
August 31, 2012%** 38,860 443,982 405,122 8.8 106,308 381.1
August 31, 2011+ 17,886 485,722 467,836 3.7 106,125 440.8

*  The required supplementary information is based on an actuarial valuation of the OPEB fund for the plan year September 1, 2013 through
August 31, 2014.

** The required supplementary information is based on an actuarial valuation of the OPEB fund for the plan year September 1, 2012 through
August 31, 2013.

*** The required supplementary information is based on an actuarial valuation of the OPEB fund for the plan year September 1, 2011 through
August 31, 2012.

+ The required supplementary information is based on an actuarial valuation of the OPEB fund for the plan year September 1, 2010 through
August 31, 2011.

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Statistical Section
Description of Schedules

August 31, 2014

This section of the Company’s comprehensive annual financial report presents comparative information in order
to better understand the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information and to more
fully comprehend the Company’s overall financial health.

Financial Trends

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the Company’s financial performance
and well being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the Company’s revenue.
Debt Capacity

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the Company’s current levels of
outstanding debt and its ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the environment within
which the Company’s financial activities take place.

Operating Information

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the information in the
Company’s financial report relates to the services the Company provides and the activities it performs.

Sources

Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the audited financial statements for the
relevant year.
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)
Balance Sheets
Fiscal Years 2005 through 2014
(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Assets 2014 2013 2012
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 105,734 100,933 75,826
Cash designated for capital expenditures 10,000 - -
Accounts receivable (net of provision for uncollectible accounts) 101,457 97,749 81,997
Gas inventories, materials, and supplies 69,989 80,234 81,086
Capital improvement fund - 44,055 88,838
Workers’ compensation escrow fund 2,597 2,597 2,597
Health insurance escrow fund 3,223 3,223 3,222
Other current assets and deferred debits 19,221 16,196 26,939
Total current assets 312,221 344987 360,505
Non-current assets
Utility plant, at original cost:
In service 2,018,234 1,951,546 1,894,129
Under construction 57,206 44,409 53,851
Total 2,075,440 1,995,955 1,947,980
Less accumulated depreciation 881,888 840,968 822,330
Utility plant, net 1,193,552 1,154,987 1,125,650
Unamortized bond issuance costs * (1) 14,136 15,736 17,417
Unamortized losses on reacquired debt - - -
Sinking fund, revenue bonds 105,909 105,280 105,312
City of Philadelphia - -
Other assets and deferred debits 37,528 33,097 30,996
Total non-current assets 1,351,125 1,309,100 1,279,375
Total assets 1,663,346 1,654,087 1,639,880
Deferred outflows of resources
Accumulated fair value of hedging derivatives 18,879 12,059 34,712
Unamortized losses on reacquired debt (1) 37,051 44,868 53,241
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 1,719,276 1,711,014 1,727,833

* For Fiscal Years 2014, 2013 and 2012 this category includes only bond insurance costs.

(1) During FY 2013, the Company implemented GASB Statement No. 65, ltems Previously Reported as Assets
and Liabilities , that amends or supersedes the accounting and financial reporting guidance for certain items
previously required to be reported as assets or liabilities. The objective is to either properly classify certain
items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities as deferred outflows of resources or deferred
inflows of resources or recognize certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities as

outflows of resources (expenses) or inflows of resources (revenues). This change was retroactive to FY 2012.

Source - PGW's Audited Financial Statements
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2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
105,386 79,052 13,750 49,338 51,698 6,697 15,221
98,925 92,173 105,496 99,304 88,618 74,360 87,634
85,993 103,133 125,023 187,539 147,770 149,438 129,984
122,332 170,809 62,714 111,207 172,134 39,636 102,701
2,596 2,595 2,593 2,383 1,924 1,637 1,579
35,523 27,212 4,895 5,626 5,615 25,259 2,632
450,755 474,974 314,471 455,397 467,759 297,027 339,751
1,856,303 1,794,277 1,754,297 1,685,593 1,633,300 1,555,669 1,515,463
40,555 46,339 30,953 46,969 48,013 65,122 57,383
1,896,858 1,840,616 1,785,250 1,732,562 1,681,313 1,620,791 1,573,346
785,780 746,607 708,783 670,467 640,940 613,143 591,624
1,111,078 1,094,009 1,076,467 1,062,095 1,040,373 1,007,648 981,722
24,585 27,066 27,516 38,738 42,086 42,089 39,094
62,039 70,873 79,945 47,902 53,359 55,859 38,494
112,038 111,409 110,227 106,198 102,438 94,352 104,530
- - - - 643 - -
30,640 22,925 23,465 33,125 8,282 9,035 16,231
1,340,380 1,326,282 1,317,620 1,288,058 1,247,181 1,208,983 1,180,071
1,791,135 1,801,256 1,632,091 1,743,455 1,714,940 1,506,010 - 1,519,822
25,360 25,906 - - - - -
1,816,495 1,827,162 1,632,091 1,743,455 1,714,940 1,506,010 1,519,822
(continued)
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Balance Sheets
Fiscal Years 2005 through 2014
(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Fund Equity and Liabilities 2014 2013 2012
Fund equity:
Excess (deficiency) of capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total fund equity
Current liabilities:
Notes payable - - -
Current portion of revenue bonds 53,227 52,406 30,545
Subordinate lease obligations - - -
Note payable — City Loan - - -
Accounts payable 58,888 59,379 57,127
Customer deposits 2,245 2,305 2,449
Other current liabilities and deferred credits 19,321 9,107 10,265
Accrued accounts:
Interest, taxes, and wages 14,646 14,823 15,555
Distribution to the City 3,000 3,000 3,000
Total current liabilities 151,327 141,020 118,941
Non-current liabilities:
Long-term revenue bonds 980,749 1,033,976 1,086,502
Other liabilities and deferred credits 179,265 177,431 206,445
Note payable — City Loan - - -
Total non-current liabilities 1,160,014 1,211,407 1,292,947
Total liabilities 1,311,341 1,352,427 1,411,888
Total fund equity and liabilities
Net position
Net investment in capital assets 159,576 112,660 97,442
Restricted (debt service) 111,729 111,100 111,131
Unrestricted (1) 136,630 134,827 107,372
Total net position 407,935 358,587 315,945
Total liabilities and net position 1,719,276 1,711,014 1,727,833

(1) During FY 2013, the Company implemented GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets
and Liabilities , that amends or supersedes the accounting and financial reporting guidance for certain items
previously required to be reported as assets or liabilities. The objective is to either properly classify certain
items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities as deferred outflows of resources or deferred
inflows of resources or recognize certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities as

outflows of resources (expenses) or inflows of resources (revenues). This change was retroactive to FY 2012.

Source - PGW's Audited Financial Statements
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2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
1,019 (4,466) (5,690) (7,754) 24,739
112,820 108,581 105,005 95,989 106,109
129,780 122,293 123,986 151,170 91,798
243,619 226,408 223,301 239,405 222,646
- - - 90,000 51,600 55,000 49,900
50,549 42,537 48,175 76,030 43,995 39,591 42,271
. _ ] - 43,000 - -
55,893 59,303 46,205 67,508 60,615 40316 63,918
2,869 3,998 4224 7,325 9,049 8,628 6,280
12,098 12,185 16,203 32,581 15,524 8,137 18,342
17,476 16,743 15,948 15,821 15,088 13,773 13,452
3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000
141,885 137,766 133,755 292,265 241,871 168,445 197,163
1,166,992 1,224,987 1,114,488 1,127,163 1,201,792 1,031,131 1,030,830
197,878 189,974 140,229 97,619 47,976 22,029 24,183
- - - - - 45,000 45,000
1,364,870 1,414,961 1,254,717 1,224,782 1,249,768 1,098,160 1,100,013
1,506,755 1,552,727 1,388,472 1,517,047 1,491,639 1,266,605 1,297,176
1,632,091 1,743,455 1,714,940 1,506,010 1,519,822
15,869 (2,706)
114,634 114,004
179,237 163,137
309,740 274,435
1,816,495 1,827,162
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)
Debt to Capital Ratio, Utility Plant, Net vs. Long-Term Debt, and Net Position
Fiscal Years 2005 through 2014

Debt to Capital Ratio
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85%

80%

75%
70%
65%
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
Fiscal Year
Utility Plant, Net/Long-Term Debt
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Fiscal Year
Net Position
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Fiscal Year
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)
Statements of Revenues and Expenses
Fiscal Years 2005 through 2014
(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Operating revenues:

Gas revenues:
Nonheating
Gas transport service
Heating
Total gas revenues
Appliance and other revenues
Other operating revenues
Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:

Natural gas
Gas processing
Field services
Distribution
Collection and account management
Provision for uncollectible accounts
Customer services
Marketing
Administrative and general
Pensions
Other postemployment benefits
Taxes
Total operating expenses before depreciation
Depreciation
Less depreciation expense included in operating expenses above
Net depreciation
Total operating expenses
Operating income

Interest and other income

Income before interest expense

Interest expense:

Long-term debt

Other

Allowance for funds used during construction
Total interest expense

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenses prior to City Payment

Distribution to the City of Philadelphia

Grant back of distribution from the City of Philadelphia
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenses

Net position, beginning of the year (1)

Net position, end of the year

M

2014 2013 2012

39,610 35,262 37,054
41,217 37,078 29,324
655,311 602,814 562,009
736,138 675,154 628,387
8,317 8,333 8,240
14,681 9,984 8,356
759,136 693,471 644,983
304,051 255,501 233,713
19,637 17,592 15,640
37,577 34,926 33,883
36,929 30,259 27,750
11,273 11,297 11,491
38,848 39,971 36,702
11,187 11,102 11,946
7,783 6,789 6,664
85,872 78,206 81,161
24,521 23,614 23,972
11,228 16,492 20,119
7,687 7,220 7,122
596,593 532,969 510,163
47,428 45912 45,045
5,771 4,870 4,870
41,657 41,042 40,175
638,250 574,011 550,338
120,886 119,460 94,645

3,597 1,147 4,659

124,483 120,607 99,304
48,261 49,655 53,012

9,380 10,740 16,824

(506) (430) (292)
57,135 59,965 69,544
67,348 60,642 29,760

(18,000) (18,000) (18,000)
49348 42,642 11,760

358,587 315,945 304,185

407,935 358,587 315,945

During FY 2013, the Company implemented GASB Statement No. 65, /tems Previously Reported as Assets
and Liabilities , that amends or supersedes the accounting and financial reporting guidance for certain items
previously required to be reported as assets or liabilities. The objective is to either properly classify certain
items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities as deferred outflows of resources or deferred
inflows of resources or recognize certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities as
outflows of resources (expenses) or inflows of resources (revenues). This change was retroactive to FY 2012.

Source - PGW's Audited Financial Statements
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2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

51,437 51,343 67,295 78,687 90,798 113,356 114,880
28,700 26,860 24,913 19,215 12,949 6,459 4,679
669,131 664,139 818,249 733,526 736,358 810,146 710,991
749,268 742,342 910,457 831,428 840,105 929,961 830,550
8,400 8,959 9,311 8,607 9,398 10,482 10,895
8,611 7,931 9,673 9,592 9,848 13,525 21,912
766,279 759,232 929,441 849,627 859,351 953,968 863,357
330,932 354,004 545,846 511,976 539,300 625,093 509,704
16,097 14,952 16,779 14,436 16,240 15,234 18,584
33,950 34,026 37,727 37,126 36,100 35,667 28,455
27,990 23,426 21,059 17,319 17,119 15,179 15,115
11,765 15,266 16,248 15,447 15,221 17,289 18,666
36,027 35,000 42,000 37,000 40,000 40,132 70,424
12,532 13,030 12,897 12,305 11,783 11,083 12,512
4378 3,900 3,436 2,628 2,418 2,467 2,592
76,850 71,620 63,820 60,716 56,819 59,484 60,995
22,597 24,633 15,425 14,258 26,421 17,563 14,702
22,472 27,269 25,952 25,834 15,217 - -
7,135 6,990 6,588 5,677 6,730 6,124 6,218
602,725 624,116 807,777 754,722 783,368 345315 757,967
43,629 43,168 42,200 42,868 39,708 37,955 39,547
4,714 4,690 4,419 3,344 3,328 3,230 4,502
38,915 38,478 37,781 39,524 36,380 34,725 35,045
641,640 662,594 345,558 794,246 819,748 880,040 793,012
124,639 96,638 33,883 55,381 39,603 73,928 70,345

4,348 5,301 12,240 15,732 13,073 8,518 4,778

128,987 101,939 96,123 71,113 52,676 82,446 75,123
57,225 52,527 63,602 56,075 52,146 51,799 53,856
18,884 18,986 15,558 12,269 17,042 14,869 10,902

(427) (390) (248) (338) (408) (981) (907)
75,682 71,123 78,912 68,006 68,780 65,687 63,851
53,305 30,816 17,211 3,107 (16,104) 16,759 11272

(18,000) (18,000) (18,000) (18,000) (18,000) (18,000) (18,000)

- 18,000 18,000 18,000 18,000 18,000 18,000
35,305 30,816 17,211 3,107 (16,104) 16,759 11272
274,435 243,619 226,408 223,301 239,405 222,646 211,374
309,740 274,435 243,619 226,408 223,301 239,405 222,646
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)
Operating Revenues, Natural Gas Expense, and Net Income
Fiscal Years 2004 through 2013

Millions of US dollars

Operating Revenues
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)
Average Number of Customers Billed by System
Fiscal Years 2005 through 2014

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Residential 474,300 475,300 477,300 477,300 476,200
Commercial 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000
Industrial 700 700 700 700 800
Total 500,000 501,000 503,000 503,000 502,000
Source - PGW Records
Customers
510,000 -
£ 505,000 -
E 500,000 -
5 495,000 -
Gt
S 490,000 -
é 485,000 -
Z 480,000 -
475,000 -
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
Fiscal Year
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2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
478,200 479,200 480,100 460,000 471,000
25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000
800 800 900 1,000 1,000
504,000 505,000 506,000 486,000 497,000
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS

(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Firm non-heat

Interruptible gas sales

Billed non-heating

GCR non-heating adjustment
Total non-heating

Billed heating

GCR heating adjustment

Total billed heating

Weather normalization adjustment (WNA)
Total heating

Total gas sold

Firm transportation (FT) non-heat (1)

FT heating (1)
WNA - FT (1)
Total heating FT (1)
Total FT (1)

Unbilled adjustment

GTS: transportation

GTS - customer/customer choice
GTS - supplier/customer choice
GTS - firm supplier

Total gas revenues

Operating Revenues

Fiscal Years 2005 through 2014

(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

2014 2013 2012 2011
30,324 31,401 33,282 36,779
9,068 4,703 3,338 14,431
39,392 36,104 36,620 51,210
218 (841) 434 228
39,610 35,263 37,054 51,438
660,942 605,761 519,950 659,681
6,174 (12,407) 4244 5,360
667,116 593,354 524,194 665,041
(11,810) 8,060 44,016 1,696
655,306 601,414 568,210 666,737
694,916 636,677 605,264 718,175
5,671 5,194 3,861 4,582
23,330 19,665 14,037 14,541
(488) 331 1,412 128
22,842 19,996 15,449 14,669
28,513 25,190 19,310 19,251
5 1,398 (6,201) 2,393
1,173 1,050 1,086 1,147
10,278 9,372 7,955 8,333
11 478 170 (790)
1,242 989 803 759
736,138 675,154 628,387 749268

(1) Firm transportation (FT) program began in FY 2007

Source - PGW Records
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2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
37,932 50,172 52,528 61,729 76,865 71,415
12,503 16,493 26,679 31,439 33,509 44,678
50,435 66,665 79,207 93,168 110,374 116,093

908 631 (521) (2,037) 2,210 (1212)
51,343 67,296 78,686 91,131 112,584 114,881

630,970 810,704 731,942 756,032 768,935 727,322
16,742 8,991 (8,407) (23,948) 24,792 (14,164)

647,712 819,695 723,535 732,084 793,727 713,158
12,970 445 11,923 6,438 13,406 (1,365)

660,682 820,140 735,458 738,522 807,133 711,793

712,025 887,436 814,144 829,653 919,717 826,674

3,306 2,857 2,120 928
13,254 12,265 8,205 3,111
455 60 315 60
13,709 12,325 8,520 3,171
17,015 15,182 10,640 4,099
3,457 (1,893) (1,931) (2,497) 3,785 (803)
1,928 1,948 2,228 2,480 2,335 2,249
7,421 6,813 6,177 6,017 4,115 2,407
(105) 842 85 220 9 23
601 129 85 133 - -
742,342 910,457 831,428 840,105 929,961 830,550
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(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Firm non-heat

Interruptible gas sales

Billed non-heating

GCR non-heating adjustment
Total non-heating

Billed heating

GCR heating adjustment

Total billed heating

Weather normalization adjustment (WNA)
Total heating

Total gas sold

Firm transportation (FT) non-heat (1)

FT heating (1)
WNA -FT (1)
Total heating FT (1)
Total FT (1)

Unbilled adjustment

GTS: transportation

GTS - customer/customer choice
GTS - supplier/customer choice
GTS - firm supplier

Utility Use

Unaccounted for gas

Total sendout

Unaccounted for gas as a % of total sendout

(1) Firm transportation (FT) program began
* Mcf = Thousand cubic feet

Source - PGW Records

PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS

Sales Volumes

Fiscal Years 2005 through 2014

(Sales in Mcf)*

2014 2013 2012 2011
1,955,220 2,003,583 2,148,736 2,218,768
1,096,381 890,383 192,058 1,004,185
3,051,601 2,893,966 2,340,794 3,222,953
3,051,601 2,893,966 2,340,794 3,222,953
46,577,983 42,741,706 36,196,469 45,795,915
46,577,983 42,741,706 36,196,469 45,795,915
46,577,983 42,741,706 36,196,469 45,795,915
49,629,584 45,635,672 38,537,263 49,018,868
795,971 701,712 542,271 629,683
3,291,193 2,725,563 1,941,019 2,038,726
3,291,193 2,725,563 1,941,019 2,038,726
4,087,164 3,427,275 2,483,290 2,668,409
95,656 62,646 (633,531) 204,694
12,069,664 10,708,926 11,429,993 12,024,712
13,201,076 12,346,548 10,459,723 10,581,753
350,974 410,193 394,574 465,505
1,051,828 1,492,946 2,067,268 2,563,662
80,485,946 74,084,206 64,738,580 77,527,603
1.3% 2.0% 3.2% 3.3%
in FY 2007
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2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
2,186,030 2,440,758 2,585,001 3,104,220 3,745,664 4,314,816
1,049,318 1,170,128 1,790,721 2,704,526 2,425,862 4,510,515
3,235,348 3,610,886 4,375,722 5,808,746 6,171,526 8,825,331
3,235,348 3,610,886 4,375,722 5,808,746 6,171,526 8,825,331
42,604,640 45,584,417 42,940,365 44,812,203 42,497,852 49,492,929
42,604,640 45,584,417 42,940,365 44,812,203 42,497,852 49,492,929
42,604,640 45,584,417 42,940,365 44,812,203 42,497,852 49,492,929
45,839,988 49,195,303 47,316,087 50,620,949 48,669,378 58,318,260
456,675 392,965 333,800 134,583
1,848,085 1,700,319 1,272,881 434,865
1,848,085 1,700,319 1,272,881 434,865
2,304,760 2,093,284 1,606,681 569,448
276,161 (12,364) 61,729 (130,643) 116,676 628,810
12,390,748 12,651,292 9,928,058 7,144,953 7,279,955 9,014,203
8,440,368 7,879,560 7,497,327 5,424,466 3,447,532 2,610,192
632,040 737,720 716,683 859,493 680,633 94,731
2,097,817 2,357,825 1,476,092 2,552,999 1,940,046 2,037,791
71,981,882 74,902,620 68,602,657 67,041,665 62,134,220 72,703,987
2.9% 3.1% 2.2% 3.8% 3.1% 2.8%



PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)
Gas Cost Rate
Fiscal Years 2005 through 2014
(U.S. dollars)

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
June 1 6.5642 6.0709 4.7129 6.0930 6.5139
March 1 6.0016 6.3991 4.9783 6.5400 7.3455
January 1
December 1 5.4473 5.7323 6.1270 6.2753 7.2497
October 7
September 1 5.4259 5.2247 6.0594 6.9050 7.0900

Shown in dollars per thousand cubic feet

Source - PGW Records

GCR at Year End

14.000 +
12.000 -
10.000 -
8.000 -
6.000 -
4.000 -
2.000 -
0.000

US dollars per Mcf

Fiscal Year

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
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2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
7.1815 13.0236 10.7251 11.2558 8.9980
8.4192 10.7226 10.4338 12.5632 8.1120

10.7007

10.5779 10.9119 12.5632 9.8857
12.5632
12.6527 10.1108 11.2558 9.7056 8.3085
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2014
2013
2012
2011
2010
2009
2008
2007
2006
2005

PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type
Fiscal Years 2005 through 2014
(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Subordinate Ratio to

Revenue lease Commercial Operating  Operating ~ Number of Debt per

Bonds obligations Paper City Loan  Grand Total Revenue Revenue Customers ~ Customer (1)
1,033,976 - - 1,033,976 136% 759,136 500,000 2,068
1,086,382 - - 1,086,382 157% 693,471 501,000 2,168
1,117,047 - - 1,117,047 173% 644,983 503,000 2,221
1,217,541 - - 1,217,541 159% 766,279 503,000 2,421
1,267,524 - - 1,267,524 167% 759,232 502,000 2,525
1,162,663 - - 1,162,663 125% 929,441 504,000 2,307
1,203,193 90,000 - 1,293,193 152% 849,627 505,000 2,561
1,245,787 51,600 43,000 1,340,387 156% 859,351 506,000 2,649
1,070,722 55,000 45,000 1,170,722 123% 953,968 486,000 2,409
1,073,101 49,900 45,000 1,168,001 135% 863,357 497,000 2,350

(1) Per customer data in whole dollars

Source - PGW's Audited Financial Statements and PGW Records

US dollars per custo

Debt per customer

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Fiscal Year
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)
Debt Service
Through Fiscal Year 2040
(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Total 1975 5th Series

Year 17th Series  18th Series  19th Series  20th Series Ordinance 4th Series 5th Series Variable

2015 14,127 9,220 723 2,834 26,904 7,349 8,416 531
2016 18,176 3,755 723 - 22,654 3,744 8,419 531
2017 16,621 3,781 723 - 21,125 3,744 8,419 531
2018 15,068 3,807 723 - 19,598 3,744 8,416 531
2019 13,507 3,840 723 - 18,070 3,744 8,418 531
2020 11,947 3,862 723 - 16,532 3,744 8,420 531
2021 10,390 3,894 723 - 15,007 8,399 8,416 531
2022 8,833 - 4,685 - 13,518 8,400 8,416 531
2023 7,276 - 5,457 - 12,733 8,397 8,415 531
2024 5,719 - 5,452 - 11,171 8,400 8,417 531
2025 4,159 - - - 4,159 8,399 8,417 531
2026 3,770 - - - 3,770 8,400 8,418 531
2027 - - - - - 8,396 8,416 531
2028 - - - - - 8,398 8,419 531
2029 - - - - - 8,399 8,417 531
2030 - - - - - 8,398 8,419 530
2031 - - - - - 8,396 8,419 530
2032 - - - - - 8,395 8,417 530
2033 - - - - - - 8,416 530
2034 - - - - - - 8,415 530
2035 - - - - - - - 30,265
2036 - - - - - - - -
2037 - - - - - - - -
2038 - - - - - - - -
2039 - - - - - - - -
2040 - - - - - - - -
Total 129,593 32,159 20,655 2,834 185,241 126,846 168,345 40,880

Source - PGW Records
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7th Series 7th Series Total 1998
New Money Refunding 8th Series A 8th Series B-E ~ 9th Series  10th Series  Ordinance  Grand Total

12,855 1,442 15,695 8,287 9,937 6,316 70,828 97,732
12,856 5,049 13,531 8,287 9,934 8,243 70,594 93,248
12,857 5,043 12,462 9,997 9,937 7,503 70,493 91,618
12,857 5,042 - 21,709 9,938 6,757 68,994 88,592
12,856 5,042 - 22,483 9,938 6,018 69,030 87,100
12,857 5,045 - 23,256 9,934 5,275 69,062 85,594
12,855 391 - 24,046 9,936 4,529 69,103 84,110
12,855 391 - 24,840 9,938 3,785 69,156 82,674
12,856 391 - 25,616 9,938 3,050 69,194 81,927
12,853 1,390 - 25,693 9,935 2,300 69,519 80,690
12,853 1,441 - 26,554 9,935 1,561 69,691 73,850
12,853 1,481 - 26,856 9,934 1,376 69,849 73,619
12,855 1,468 - 28,875 9,938 - 70,479 70,479
12,854 1,550 - 29,018 9,935 - 70,705 70,705
12,854 1,630 - - 9,935 - 41,766 41,766
12,854 - - - 9,935 - 40,136 40,136
12,853 - - - 9,937 - 40,135 40,135
12,855 - - - 9,938 - 40,135 40,135
12,853 - - - 9,936 - 31,735 31,735
12,858 - - - 9,937 - 31,740 31,740
12,856 - - - 2,243 - 45,364 45,364
12,857 - - - 9,938 - 22,795 22,795
12,855 - - - 9,934 - 22,789 22,789
12,853 - - - 9,934 - 22,787 22,787
- - - - 9,936 - 9,936 9,936

- - - - 9,935 - 9,935 9,935
308,520 36,796 41,688 305,517 250,645 56,713 1,335,950 1,521,191
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)
Debt Service Coverage
Fiscal Years 2005 through 2014
(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

2014 2013 2012 2011

Funds Provided

Total gas revenues 736,138 675,154 628,387 749,268
Other operating revenues 22,998 18,317 16,596 17,011
Total operating revenues 759,136 693,471 644,983 766,279
Other income increase restricted funds 4,079 196 8,311 13,175
City grant - - - -
AFUDC (Interest) 506 430 292 427
Total funds provided 763,721 694,097 653,586 779,881
Funds Applied

Fuel costs 304,051 255,501 233,713 330,932
Other operating costs 334,199 318,510 316,625 310,708
Total operating expenses 638,250 574,011 550,338 641,640
Capital lease cost - - - -
Less: non-cash expenses 50,346 48,103 47,619 47,854
Total funds applied 587,904 525,908 502,719 593,786
Funds available to cover debt service 175,817 168,189 150,867 186,095
Add-back lease costs - - - -
Funds available excluding lease costs 175,817 168,189 150,867 186,095
1975 ordinance bonds debt service 28,592 30,163 31,754 30,691
Debt service coverage 1975 bonds 6.15 5.58 4.75 6.06
Net available after prior debt service 147,225 138,026 119,113 155,404
PMA & other capital leases - - - -
Net available after prior capital leases 147,225 138,026 119,113 155,404
1998 ordinance bonds debt service 69,749 47,668 67,874 72,274
Debt service coverage 1998 bonds 2.11 2.90 1.75 2.15
Net available after 1998 debt service 77,476 90,358 51,239 83,130
1998 ordinance subordinate bond debt service - - - 1,988
Debt service coverage subordinate bonds - - - 41.82

Source - PGW's Audited Financial Statements and PGW Records
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2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
742,342 910,457 831,428 840,105 929,961 830,550
16,890 18,984 18,199 19,246 24,007 32,807
759,232 929,441 849,627 859,351 953,968 863,357
3,660 12,434 3,881 6,423 11,969 1,513
18,000 18,000 18,000 18,000 18,000 18,000
390 247 338 408 981 907
781,282 960,122 871,846 884,182 984,918 383,777
354,004 545,846 511,976 539,300 625,093 509,704
308,590 299,712 282,270 280,448 254,947 283,308
662,594 845,558 794,246 819,748 880,040 793,012
70,404 67,897 68,898 66,246 38,197 39,338
592,190 777,661 725,348 753,502 341,843 753,674
189,092 182,461 146,498 130,680 143,075 130,103
189,092 182,461 146,498 130,680 143,075 130,103
30,101 32,313 34,225 35,359 41,949 38,806
6.28 5.65 428 3.70 3.41 3.35
158,991 150,148 112,273 95,321 101,126 91,297
- - - - - 1,998
158,991 150,148 112,273 95,321 101,126 89,299
65,095 70,569 59,695 47,611 32,838 45,999
2.44 2.13 1.88 2.00 3.08 1.94
93,896 79,579 52,578 47,710 68,288 43,300
1,986 1,990 1,986 1,987 1,986 1,987
47.28 39.99 26.47 24.01 34.38 21.79
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)
Demographic and Economic Statistics
Principal Employers
Current Calendar Year and Nine Years Ago

2013 2004
Albert Einstein Medical Albert Einstein Medical
Children's Hospital of Philadelphia City of Philadelphia

City of Philadelphia

Comcast Corporation

Hospital of the University of Pennsylvania
School District of Philadelphia

SEPTA

Temple University

Thomas Jefferson University Hospitals
University Of Pennsylvania

Listed Alphabetically
Source - City of Philadelphia
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS

(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Demographic and Economic Statistics
Calendar Years 2004 through 2013

Personal Income Per Capita
Population (Thousands of US Personal Income Unemployment
Calendar Year (1) Dollars) (2) (US Dollars) Rate (3)
2013 1,553,165 63,473,002 42,155 10.0%
2012 1,547,607 54,151,742 41,452 10.5%
2011 1,538,567 62,632,520 40,708 10.8%
2010 1,526,006 56,970,074 37,333 10.8%
2009 1,547,297 54,061,223 34,939 9.6%
2008 1,540,351 54,262,716 35,228 7.1%
2007 1,530,031 50,672,227 33,118 6.0%
2006 1,520,251 47,566,075 31,288 6.2%
2005 1,517,628 44,944,207 29,615 6.7%
2004 1,514,658 43,463,015 28,695 7.3%
Sources:

(1) US Census Bureau

(2) US Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis
(3) US Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)
Budgeted Full-Time Personnel by Department
Fiscal Years 2005 through 2014

Departments 2014 2013 2012 2011

President & Chief Executive Officer 3 3 3 2
Chief Operating Officer 2 2 2 3
Chief Financial Officer 2 2 2 -
Gas processing 123 125 119 119
Field services 372 366 371 371
Distribution 472 468 467 467
Collection 31 31 35 36
Customer service 189 190 198 207
Marketing 44 46 41 34
Administrative and general 442 445 454 463

PGW Total 1,680 1,678 1,692 1,702
Personnel savings (40) (38) (37 (32)
Philadelphia Gas Commission 5 5 5 5

Grand Total 1,645 1,645 1,660 1,675

Source - PGW's Annual Operating Budget

Personnel

1.760
1.740
1,720
1.700
1,680
1660
1,640
1,620
1,600
1,580

Approved Headcount

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
Fiscal Year
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2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
2 2 2 2 3 4
2 2 2 7 5 6
119 123 133 133 141 141
341 342 342 342 359 359
467 467 470 470 476 476
91 104 110 92 132 128
207 208 194 214 199 193
34 30 30 30 32 30
459 460 465 463 457 451
1,722 1,738 1,748 1,753 1,804 1,788

(42) . (18) (23) (65) (48)
5 5 5 5 5 5
1,685 1,743 1,735 1,735 1,744 1,745
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)
Operating Indicators

Fiscal Years 2005 through 2014

2014 2013 2012
Financial
Debt service ratio (1975 Ordinance) 6.15 5.58 4.75
Debt service ratio (1998 Ordinance) 2.11 2.90 1.75
Debt to total capital ratio 71.7% 75.2% 78.0%
Bad debt as a % of revenue 5.1% 5.8% 5.7%
Bad debt reserve as a % of accounts receivable 51.4% 51.9% 54.4%
Collection factor (receipts/billings) 94.9% 91.9% 96.6%
Cash balance (Thousands of US dollars) 105,734 100,933 75,826
Natural Gas (NG) storage (Thousands of US dollars) 60,089 70,638 73,086
Payroll
Total payroll (Thousands of US dollars) 115,174 110,120 106,308
Overtime (Thousands of US dollars) 13,629 9,495 7,948
Overtime as a % of Total Payroll 11.8% 8.6% 7.5%
Liquefied Natural Gas (LNG)
LNG to storage (Mcf)* 1,821,935 1,677,268 1,422,440
LNG from storage (Mcf) 3,210,133 1,537,601 974,238
Net to (from) storage (Mcf) (1,388,198) 139,667 448,202
Off-system sales contributed to GCR (Thousands of US dollars) 321 743 748
Natural Gas Cost
Gas utilized (Mcf) 52,961,786 50,178,147 43,017,936
Gas utilized (Thousands of US dollars) 304,040 255,496 233,709
Cost per Mcf ($) 5.74 5.09 5.43
Natural Gas Sales Information
Firm gas sold (Mcf) 48,533,203 44,745,289 38,345,205
Interruptible gas sold (Mcf) 1,096,381 890,383 192,058
Total gas sold (Mcf) 49,629,584 45,635,672 38,537,263
Transportation gas — GTS (Mcf) 29,357,904 26,482,749 24,373,006
Other (Mcf) 1,498,458 1,965,785 1,828,311
Total gas sendout (Mcf) 80,485,946 74,084,206 64,738,580
Unaccounted for gas as a % of total gas sendout 2.0% 2.0% 3.2%
Transportation gas — GTS as a % of total gas sendout 36.5% 35.7% 37.6%
Firm gas sold as a % of total gas sold 97.8% 98.0% 99.5%
Degree Days
Fiscal Year 4,405 3,889 3,037

* Mcf = Thousand cubic feet

Source — PGW Records
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2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
6.06 6.28 5.65 428 3.70 3.41 3.35
2.15 2.44 2.13 1.88 2.00 3.08 1.94
79.7% 82.2% 82.7% 84.2% 84.8% 81.7% 82.8%
4.7% 4.6% 4.5% 4.4% 4.7% 4.2% 8.2%
50.3% 52.9% 53.8% 58.6% 62.9% 69.4% 70.3%
95.1% 98.7% 93.8% 95.5% 95.8% 96.6% 96.0%
105,386 79,052 13,750 49,338 51,698 6,697 15,221
78,579 96,097 117,889 179,750 138,388 139,870 121,266
106,125 106,003 107,918 105,596 106,018 102,544 102,500
9,700 8,494 10,171 10,115 10,684 10,342 10,239
9.1% 8.0% 9.4% 9.6% 10.1% 10.1% 10.0%
1,286,742 1,354,605 562,629 2,034,715 1,831,202 1,471,653 1,988,627
1,428,896 1,117,628 1,545,034 1,280,180 1,948,310 1,083,873 2,199,046
(142,154) 236,977 (982,405) 754,535 (117,108) 387,780 (210,419)
867 274 27 887 148 298 -
55,023,503 51,820,468 55,471,710 53,516,593 58,089,383 55,106,496 64,967,340
330,926 353,998 545,859 511,938 539,296 625,076 509,701
6.01 6.83 9.84 9.57 9.28 11.34 7.85
48,014,683 44,790,670 48,025,175 45,525,366 47,916,423 46,243,516 53,807,745
1,004,185 1,049,318 1,170,128 1,790,721 2,704,526 2,425,862 4,510,515
49,018,868 45,839,988 49,195,303 47,316,087 50,620,949 48,669,378 58,318,260
25,274,874 23,135,876 22,624,136 19,032,066 13,138,867 10,727,487 11,624,395
3,233,861 3,006,018 3,083,181 2,254,504 3,281,849 2,737,355 2,761,332
77,527,603 71,981,382 74,902,620 68,602,657 67,041,665 62,134,220 72,703,987
3.3% 2.9% 3.1% 2.2% 3.8% 3.1% 2.8%
32.6% 32.1% 30.2% 27.7% 19.6% 17.3% 16.0%
98.0% 97.7% 97.6% 96.2% 94.7% 95.0% 92.3%
4,005 3,730 4,190 3,746 3,773 3,819 4333
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)
Capital Asset Information
Calendar Years 2005 through 2014

2014 2013 2012 2011

Gas main (Miles) 3,023 3,025 3,026 3,027
Services (Miles) 2,860 2,779 2,736 2,772
Number of meters

Residential/Small commercial 499,375 498,765 501,250 497,151

Large diaphragm 2,695 2,579 2,401 2,298

Rotary 9,883 9,778 9,690 9,551

Turbine 291 288 289 287

Total 512,244 511,410 513,630 509,287

Source - Gas Annual Report of PGW to the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission
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2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
3,029 3,029 3,022 3,023 3,019 3,016
2,815 2,984 2,829 2,794 2,699 2,775

502,145 503,201 497,472 503,737 505,716 503,879
2,245 2,185 2,113 2,047 2,040 2,753
9,513 9,479 9,322 9,336 9,256 8,541

297 291 291 290 286 291

514,200 515,156 509,198 515,410 517,298 515,464
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)
Ten Largest Customers
Current Fiscal Year and Nine Years Ago
(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

2014 2005

Customer 1 (A) 5,035 Customer 1 (C) 9,905
Customer 2 4,434 Customer 2 (A) 6,547
Customer 3 (B) 4,353 Customer 3 (B) 5,531
Customer 4 (C) 3,639 Customer 4 (D) 4,036
Customer 5 2,675 Customer 5 1,736
Customer 6 1,998 Customer 6 1,618
Customer 7 1,993 Customer 7 1,463
Customer 8 (D) 1,918 Customer 8 (E) 936
Customer 9 1,724 Customer 9 914
Customer 10 (E) 1,202 Customer 10 846

Total 28,971 Total 33,532

Note - A letter designation indicates a repeat customer from the Fiscal Year
2005 list identified on the fiscal year 2014 list.

Source - PGW Records
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BLACK &VEATCH BLACK & VEATCH CORPORATION

Building a world of difference: 11401 LAMAR AVENUE, OVERLAND PARK, KS 66211
+1724-935-3027 | FEINGOLDRA@BV.COM

2 July 2015

Mr. Rob Dubow

Director of Finance

City of Philadelphia

13th Floor, Municipal Services Building
1401 John F. Kennedy Boulevard
Philadelphia, PA 19102

Dear Mr. Dubow:

In accordance with our agreement with the Philadelphia Gas Works (“PGW”) through the
Philadelphia Facilities Management Corporation, the management entity for PGW, we submit
herewith our independent consulting engineer’s report (the “Report”) to be included as an
appendix to the official statement or official statements (“Official Statements”) prepared in
connection with the issuance of the City of Philadelphia, Pennsylvania (the “City”) Gas Works
Revenue Refunding Bonds, (1998 General Ordinance) which have been authorized to be issued
from time to time, pursuant to Ordinance of Philadelphia City Council. The bonds to be issued
may be issued as Thirteenth Series Bonds or as Bonds of subsequent series in an aggregate
amount not to exceed $891,000,000. The Thirteenth Series Bonds proceeds will be used to
achieve the refunding of all of PGW’s outstanding 1975 General Ordinance Gas Works Revenue
Bonds and a portion of PGW’s outstanding 1998 General Ordinance Gas Works Revenue Bonds.

The purpose of this Report is to present the findings of our evaluation of PGW’s gas works
system (the “System”) and to set forth information concerning financial factors relating to the
Thirteenth Series Bonds. This Report is based on our analysis of the records and capital
improvement programs of PGW, discussions with key PGW personnel in January and June 2015,
physical inspections of predominately above-ground facilities conducted in January 2015, and
such other investigations as we have deemed necessary.

The evaluation of the System, which includes a discussion of organization, management, and
staffing; system service area; supply facilities; distribution facilities; and the Capital
Improvement Program (the “CIP”) for fiscal years 2015 through 2020, is presented in the first
part of the Report. The second part of the Report contains: (a) financial feasibility information,
including analyses of gas rates and rate methodology, (b) projection of future operation and
maintenance expenses, (c) CIP financing plans, (d) projection of revenue requirements as a
determinant of future revenues, and (e) an assessment of PGW’s ability to satisfy the covenants
in the General Gas Works Revenue Bond Ordinance of 1998, as amended and supplemented
(the “1998 General Ordinance”) authorizing the issuance of the Bonds (as defined below). “Prior
Bonds” are defined as the outstanding bonds issued under the General Gas Works Revenue
Bond Ordinance of 1975, as amended and supplemented (“1975 General Ordinance”) and the
1998 General Ordinance. Together, the Prior Bonds and Thirteenth Series Bonds are collectively
referred to as the “Bonds”. A listing of our principal assumptions and opinions developed as a
result of our studies is presented at the end of the Report.
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This Report was prepared for the City by Black & Veatch Corporation (“Black & Veatch”) and is
based on information not within the control of Black & Veatch. In conducting our studies, we
reviewed the books, records, agreements, capital improvement programs, and customers, sales
and financial projections of PGW and investigated such physical properties of PGW as we
deemed necessary to express our opinion of PGW’s operating results and projections. While we
consider such books, records, documents, and projections to be reliable, Black & Veatch has not
verified the accuracy of these documents or the validity of the information provided by others.
This Report is subject to the limitations set forth herein.

Black & Veatch is one of the oldest, largest and most diversified engineering, procurement, and
construction companies in the United States. Black & Veatch operates and maintains a global
network of regional, marketing, and project offices. Founded in 1915, Black & Veatch employs
over 10,000 people performing financial, economic, and engineering studies and design and
construction of facilities for clients in government and industry in the fields of energy, water,
wastewater, and telecommunications. Black & Veatch has extensive experience in the design
and analysis of the operation and financing of electric, natural gas, water, and wastewater
systems serving communities ranging in size from small cities to large metropolitan systems of
the magnitude of the System.

In this Report, where standards or requirements are indicated as being applicable, being
fulfilled, or to be attained, such standards or requirements are those promulgated by the
Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission (the “PUC”) and other Federal, State, and local agencies,
in accordance with the provisions of Federal laws and the laws of the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania governing the storage, delivery, and sale of natural gas. Capitalized terms not
otherwise defined herein have the same meanings as ascribed to them in the 1975 General
Ordinance or the 1998 General Ordinance. References made herein to specific years are for the
fiscal years of PGW ending August 31, unless otherwise noted.

The Report includes our assessment of the condition of PGW’s physical plant, including PGW’s
existing storage and distribution facilities, based upon site inspections of certain PGW facilities
as deemed appropriate during January 2015. We also reviewed and evaluated existing and
planned natural gas transportation and supply contracts with respect to volumes of natural gas
to be delivered. The general physical condition of the System’s facilities has been evaluated
using three rating categories - good, adequate, and poor - as described below.

Good: The facility is in condition to provide reliable operation in accordance with design
parameters and requires only routine maintenance.

Adequate: The facility is operating at or near design levels, however, non-routine renovation,
upgrading, and repairs are needed for continued reliable operation. Significant expenditures
for these improvements may be required.

Poor: The facility cannot be operated within design parameters. Major renovations are
required to restore the facility to reliable operating condition. Major expenditures for these
improvements may be required.
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The ratings assigned in this Report are the result of physical inspections of individual above-
ground facilities at existing sites conducted in January 2015.

An evaluation of a gas storage and distribution system of the magnitude and complexity of
PGW’s requires an assessment of each of the System’s various components. The evaluation
described in this Report is based on estimates of the degree of improvement that has been or
will be provided by the projects in the current CIP and their impact in meeting service
requirements.

The projections set forth in this Report are “forward-looking statements.” In formulating these
projections, Black & Veatch has made certain assumptions with respect to conditions, events,
and circumstances that may occur in the future. The methodologies utilized by Black & Veatch
in performing these analyses follow generally accepted practices for such projections. Such
assumptions and methodologies are summarized in this Report and are reasonable and
appropriate for the purpose for which they are used. While Black & Veatch believes the
assumptions are reasonable and appropriate and the projection methodology valid, actual
results may differ materially from those projected, as influenced by conditions, events, and
circumstances that may actually occur that are unknown at this time and/or which are beyond
the control of Black & Veatch. Such factors may include PGW’s ability to execute the capital
improvement plan as scheduled and within budget, regional climate and weather conditions
affecting the demand for gas, and adverse legislative, regulatory or legal decisions (including
environmental laws and regulations) affecting PGW’s ability to operate the System.

Based on these analyses and the assumptions set forth or referred to in this Report, we offer the
following opinions to indicate PGW’s conformance with specific requirements which must be
met for the issuance of the Thirteenth Series Bonds as provided in the 1998 General Ordinance:

1. PGW is a competently managed and operated gas distribution utility. PGW and the System
are organized, operated, and maintained at a level equal to, or in excess of, regulatory
requirements and generally accepted industry practices. The System is in good operating
condition.

2. Based upon Black & Veatch’s evaluation of financial projections and certain assumptions
with respect to the System which Black & Veatch believes to be reasonable, and on the basis
of actual and estimated future annual financial operations of the System, the System should
yield Gas Works Revenues (which are pledged under the 1998 General Ordinance) over the
amortization periods of the Bonds issued under the 1998 General Ordinance which will be
sufficient to: (a) meet all expenses of operation, maintenance, repair and replacement of the
System, (b) meet all reserve or special funds required to be established under the 1998
General Ordinance, (c) meet the principal of and interest on all Bonds issued under the
1998 General Ordinance as the same shall become due and payable, and (d) provide such
surplus requirements as are contained in the rate covenant of the 1998 General Ordinance.
The Gas Works Revenues forming the basis of this opinion comply with the requirements of
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the definition of Project Revenues contained in Section 2 of the First Class City Revenue
Bond Act (the “Act”).

3. The Gas Works Revenues which are pledged as security for the Bonds issued under the
1998 General Ordinance are currently, and are projected to be, sufficient to comply with the
rate covenant set forth in Section 4.03(b) of the 1998 General Ordinance.

4. The capital improvements proposed during the projection period, September 1, 2015,
through August 31, 2020, should, along with continued good operation and maintenance
practices, enable PGW to maintain the System in good operating condition. Review of
present management practices indicates that good operation and maintenance is likely to
continue.

5. Contracted PGW gas supplies plus: (a) spot market purchases, (b) anticipated additional
contracted supplies plus supplemental gas capacities, as well as, (c) the pipeline transport
capacity to move these supplies to PGW, appear adequate to meet PGW’s projected demand
on a day of maximum demand (a “design peak day”), in an hour of maximum demand (a
“design peak hour”), and during a year of maximum demand (a “design peak year”).

Very truly yours,
BLA/C & VEATCH CORPORATION

Vice President

Enclosure
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